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Chairman’s Statement

SERWMES

Twenty-fourteen was a year with both challenges and opportunities
for the agri-food industry. The global economy underwent an uneven
recovery. The United States continued to improve; Europe remained
sluggish and growth in emerging markets tended to be slow. The
Chinese economy entered into a new phase of growth — the “new
norm” — with GDP growth moving towards a more moderate rate. The

Vietnamese economy meanwhile continued to recover.

The agri-food industry in China and Vietnam are undergoing a
period of reform. Production and business models are transforming
while commercialization of the agri-food industry is accelerating.
Alongside urbanization and increase in disposable income, demand
for safe and quality products is on the rise. The next decade is going
to be a golden era for the agri-food industry in China and Vietnam.
Commercialization of the industry will lead to market consolidation,
which in turn would provide unprecedented opportunities to players
who possess advance technologies and industry know how. With its
years of solid experience in the agri-food industry, C.P. Pokphand
Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) will be able to further

strengthen its leading market position.

The Group posted solid performance in 2014. Profit attributable
to shareholders rose by 35% to US$251 million. In pursuing its
integrated agri-food strategy, the Group is leveraging its competitive
advantages to move downstream into the food business in China.
Guided by our Three Benefits Principle — benefitting the country,
its people and the company — the Group will continue to adopt
advanced technologies, modern management techniques and stringent
quality standards to produce safe, premium-quality and delicious food

products for our customers.

In 2014, Itochu Corporation became a strategic shareholder of the
Group. Both companies are leading organizations in their respective

fields. The alliance, leveraging our respective strengths, would bring

about synergies and foster closer collaborations.
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Looking ahead, the Group will continue to develop our agri-food
downstream businesses in both China and Vietnam and to fulfil our
mission to become “The Kitchen of the World”.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
thanks to our team for their efforts and contributions to the Group
over the past year. I would also like to extend my gratitude to our

shareholders for their continued trust and support.

Dhanin Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2015
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 BB R 2 7
Financial Highlights
BB E
(Unit: US$ million) (Hifr : B #FET) 2014 2013
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FEE2HKHEREH
Revenue N 5,619 5,414
Gross Profit FA 894 690
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company GRS VR NN S o | 251 186
Basic Earnings Per Share (US cents)* B I ARE A (SEAI) * 0.996 0.745
Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents) F I 9 5 A (A 0.994 0.739
Total Dividend Per Share (HK cents) /BB B (HAI) 3.9 2.9
Interim Dividend Per Share (HK cents) 5 5 o B L (s AI) 1.7 1.0
Final Dividend Per Share (HK cents) 05 I R B I B, (s AI) 2.2 1.9
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEMBERNERIEA
Property, Plant & Equipment W~ WE Rk 1,071 819
Total Assets A5 3,154 2,759
Total Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings HAGT BB B Al B 1,125 971
Issued capital OB AR 253 251
Shareholders' Equity JI R A B A 1,179 1,069
Total Equity RE 25 58 %1 1,386 1,246
Revenue US$ million Gross Profit US$ million
WA BEET EF BEET
6000 — 5,414 5,619 1000 — 894
800
690
4000
600
400
2000 —
200
0
2013 2014 2013 2014
Profit Attributable US$ million Dividend HKcents
to Shareholders HEXT Per Share (|l
of the Company 300 _ BREBE 40— 3.9
A ERF 251 '
AATRBRR | 29
Z3a Al 200 - 186 3.0
2.0
100 -
1.0
0 0
2013 2014 2013 2014

Remark 7k ¢

*

Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year. $¥ASA B B HOBEAN ARG A > B AR g T8 A7 38 408 e T wT 45 It 5 S Je = o e

TGS -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

The Group’s overall performance in 2014 was solid. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenue grew 3.8% to
US$5,619 million (2013: US$5,414 million), of which the agri-
food business in China, the agri-food business in Vietnam and the
chlortetracycline business contributed 61.1%, 36.9% and 2.0%
respectively. Benefiting from an improvement in the Group’s farming
business in Vietnam, profit attributable to shareholders of the Group
increased by 35.0% to US$251 million (2013: US$186 million).
Opverall gross margin increased from 12.7% in 2013 to 15.9% in 2014.
Basic and diluted earnings per share were US 0.996 cents (2013: US
0.745 cents) and US 0.994 cents (2013: US 0.739 cents) respectively.
The board proposed final dividend per share (“DPS”) of HK$0.022.
Including interim DPS of HK$0.017, total DPS in 2014 was HK$0.039
(2013: HK$0.029).

Others
oAt

2.0%

LGN

5,619

US$ million
BEETL

Vietnam Agri-food
L AR

36.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

In order to focus on the development of its core agri-food business,
the Group divested its equity interest in Luoyang Northern Ek Chor
Motorcycle Co. Ltd. (“Luoyang Motorcycle”) in July 2014. Luoyang
Motorcycle was one of three investments in the Group’s industrial
business division, and was engaged in the manufacture and sale of
motorcycles in mainland China. In addition, in October 2014, the
Group announced to spin-off and list its biochemical and industrial
businesses on the main board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
This plan is currently on-going.

In September 2014, Itochu Corporation became a strategic
shareholder of the Group, holding 25% of the ordinary share capital
of the Group. With extensive industry experience and professional
know-how, both parties are leading enterprises in their own fields.
The cooperation will bring about synergy as well as mutual benefit.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Agri-Food Business in China

Expansion of its food business is the main direction of strategic
development for the Group. Based on its solid upstream foundation,
the Group will leverage its advanced technical know-how and
industry experience to break new ground in the downstream food
business in China. In December 2012, the Group announced its
plan to enter into the food business in China, and invested in the
construction of food processing plants in Qinhuangdao and Qingdao.
The first phase of construction of the Qinhuangdao food processing
plant was completed on schedule at the end of 2014, and trial
production is starting in early 2015. Qingdao food processing plant is
expected to commence trial operation in 2016. In 2014, feed business
was still the sole contributing segment in the Group’s China agri-food
business.

The farming sector in China experienced a challenging year in 2014.
China’s gross domestic product in 2014 had a year-on-year growth
of 7.4%, which was the lowest in the past two decades. There was a
general softness in prices of agricultural products. Swine price reached
its low point in recent years, which reduced farmers’ incentive to
raise animal inventory and consequently brought about pressure on
the animal feed market. According to preliminary statistics from the
China Feed Industry Association, total feed production in China
dropped by 4% in 2014.

Owing to weak overall demand, the Group’s China feed sales volume
posted a slight decrease of 0.6% to 5.69 million tons. Revenue was
US$3,435 million, a 1.5% drop from the previous year. Despite a
decline in revenue, gross profit margin for the Group’s China agri-
food business climbed from 15.2% in 2013 to 17.0% in 2014.
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Swine feed continued to be the most important component in the
Group’s China feed business segment; it accounted for 50.0% of
revenue in 2014. Poultry, aqua and other feed products and premix
accounted for 28.1%, 9.8%, 7.0% and 5.1% respectively. The Group’s
swine feed sales volume in 2014 increased by 0.5% to 2.74 million
tons while revenue fell by 1.8% to US$1,718 million. As for poultry
feed, revenue dropped by 6.0% to US$965 million and sales volume
decreased by 5.9% to 1.87 million tons. Revenue of aqua feed
remained at US$338 million and sales volume dropped by 0.8% to
0.46 million tons.

Premix

»

Gl

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

W —PAE > B BG4 1) o 3 4 B 3 7 i
AW R EEIA > A MH50.0% > KE - KiE -~ |
i 7 4 3 S B FEIRRE 43 A 28.1% ~ 9.8% ~ 7.0% K&
5.1% o ZF— W4 > AREEFHG R R ETH0.5% %
2T4EME > WA 1.8%FE17. 18 E T - K&K
FHITW > WA T BG6.0%E9.65(835 7T » s & T %
5.9%% 18755 WH o 7K 28 fifl B 2 5 WA F¢ 73,3868 3
JC o BB T I2k0.8% F 465 M o

5.1%

TR A ERE

Aqua Feed
INE TR

9.8%

7 0 () /0 Other Feed Products

Breakdown of China

Feed Revenue
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AR

28.1%

Agri-Food Business in Vietham

According to figures from the General Statistics Office of Vietnam,
Vietnam’s gross domestic product grew by 6.0% in 2014. The
Vietnamese economy continued to improve and swine prices steadily
recovered, creating a more favourable environment for the agri-
food industry in Vietnam. In 2014, the performance of the Group’s
agri-food business in Vietnam witnessed a steady recovery from the
previous year. Revenue of the Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam
increased by 14.6% to US$2,073 million. Feed business accounted
for 41.8% of the Group’s Vietnam revenue, while farm and food
businesses combined accounted for the remaining 58.2% of the
Group’s Vietnam revenue. Benefiting from a significant improvement
in the Group’s farming business in Vietnam, overall gross profit
margin of the Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam improved from
6.8% in 2013 to 13.4% in 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

A

Vietnam - Revenue

MR — WA

Farm and Food
EEMNR M

Feed
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Feed

The Group’s feed business in Vietnam maintained steady growth in
2014 and further consolidated its leading position in the market.
Revenue of the Group’s feed business in Vietnam grew by 2.9%
to US$867 million, in which swine, aqua, poultry and other feed
products accounted for 47.6%, 27.9%, 22.7% and 1.8% of feed
revenue respectively. Total sales volume of feed in 2014 was 1.51
million tons, a slight increase of 1.7% from the previous year.
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Farm and Food

In 2014, the Group’s farm and food businesses in Vietnam achieved
solid overall performance, recording significant improvement from
the previous year. Combined revenue of the Group’s farm and food
businesses in Vietnam was US$1,206 million, a 24.9% growth from
the previous year. The substantial recovery of the performance of
farm business in Vietnam was mainly due to an improvement in live
swine prices in the country — an annual average increase of 15%-20%.
Average price of poultry in 2014 was approximately the same as last
year; however, prices were volatile and short-term outlook remains
uncertain. For the aquaculture business, the negative impact of Early
Mortality Syndrome on the shrimp industry is still a concern. As a
countermeasure, the Group continues to focus on improving our farm
set-up and management practices. For the Group’s food business in
Vietnam, the shrimp processing plant in Hue and the fish processing
plant in Ben Tre have commenced commercial production in 2014.
The Group’s food business in Vietnam is still in its initial stage of
development and the Group will continue to grow this segment. The
large potential of the Vietnamese food market will bring long-term
benefit to the Group.

OTHER BUSINESSES

The Group’s other businesses comprise chlortetracycline (“CTC”) and
industrial businesses. In 2014, the CTC business recorded revenue
of US$111 million, representing a year-on-year drop of 6.8%. For
industrial businesses, after the divestment of its equity interest in
Luoyang Motorcycle, the remaining two joint ventures are engaged
in the manufacture and sale of automobile parts and the distribution
of Caterpillar machinery products. In 2014, the industrial businesses
contributed a profit of US$18 million to the Group, representing a

year-on-year increase of 3.3%.

OUTLOOK

Despite the complex environment, the Group achieved solid results
in 2014. At this stage, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about
2015. The Chinese economy is expected to grow under the “new
norm,” whilst the Vietnamese economy is expected to recover slowly
and steadily. The agri-food sector is speeding up its transformation
into a more scaled and commercialized industry. Consumption and
living standard are improving steadily across our core markets, which
in turn drive market demand for protein and high-quality food
products. Embracing new technologies and leveraging its competitive
strengths, the Group is determined to seize relevant opportunities in
the agri-food industry as it fulfils its vision to be the “Kitchen of the
World.”
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total assets of US$3,154.0
million, increased by 14.3% as compared with US$2,759.5 million as
at 31 December 2013.

Net debt (31 December 2014: US$628.8 million, 31 December 2013:
US$476.3 million) to equity ratio (defined as total borrowings minus
cash and deposits divided by total equity) was 0.45 as compared to
0.38 as at 31 December 2013.

The borrowings of the Group are denominated in U.S. dollars (“US$”)
(31 December 2014: US$565.5 million, 31 December 2013: US$493.8
million), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) (31 December 2014: US$472.4
million, 31 December 2013: US$454.3 million) and Renminbi
(“RMB”) (31 December 2014: US$87.3 million, 31 December 2013:
US$28.6 million).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current portion of long-term
bank borrowings amounted to US$63.0 million (31 December 2013:
US$30.6 million) and fixed interest rate borrowings amounted to
US$7.7 million (31 December 2013: US$4.9 million).

The Group monitors foreign exchange movements and determines

appropriate hedging activities when necessary.

All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam are transacted in
RMB and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in foreign
currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of certain
raw materials, equipment etc.. The Board considers the fluctuation
of RMB and VND during the year had no material impact on the

Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents of US$455.6
million as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: US$470.1
million), a decrease of US$14.5 million.
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The carrying amounts of the time deposits and cash and cash
equivalents of the Group are denominated in US$ (31 December
2014: US$122.8 million, 31 December 2013: US$103.2 million),
VND (31 December 2014: US$10.1 million, 31 December 2013:
US$9.1 million), RMB (31 December 2014: US$321.8 million,
31 December 2013: US$356.7 million) and other currencies (31
December 2014: US$0.9 million, 31 December 2013: US$1.1

million).

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, out of the total borrowings of US$1,125.2
million (31 December 2013: US$976.7 million) obtained by the
Group, US$39.0 million (31 December 2013: US$12.8 million)
were secured and accounted for 3.5% (31 December 2013: 1.3%)
of the total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, land lease prepayments and trade and bills receivables

with an aggregate net book value of US$7.2 million (31 December
2013: US$10.1 million) have been pledged as security.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by the Group in respect of certain
indebtedness of joint ventures. There were no facilities granted
(2013: US$68.1 million) or utilized (2013: US$17.5 million) as at 31
December 2014.

Guarantees were given by the Group to financial institutions in the
PRC for certain indebtedness of independent third party customers of
the Group. In the case of financial guarantees provided exceeds the
net asset value of the relevant subsidiaries, our maximum contingent
liabilities are limited to the net asset value of these subsidiaries. The
total registered capital and net asset value of the relevant subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2014 were approximately US$80.6 million and
US$82.2 million respectively. The contingent liabilities of the Group
in respect of such guarantees as at 31 December 2014 were US$51.5
million (31 December 2013: US$18.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS IN VIETNAM

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s biological assets amounted
to US$343.1 million (2013: US$327.5 million). The change in the
value of biological assets during the year ended 31 December 2014 of
US$15.6 million (2013: US$34.7 million) was mainly attributable to
(i) increase due to purchases/raising of biological assets of US$1,124.7
million (2013: US$885.7 million); and (ii) decrease due to sales of
biological assets of US$1,026.5 million (2013: US$798.1 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded
gains arising from net changes in fair value less costs of disposal of
biological assets of US$9.3 million (2013: US$10.7 million). The

decrease was mainly due to decrease in selling price of swine.

We have complied with relevant Vietnam laws and regulations
and have obtained the requisite licenses and permits from relevant
regulatory authorities, including the Investment Certificate issued
by the Management Board of Dong Nai Industrial Zone which is

necessary for the Group to carry out our farming business in Vietnam.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Save for the acquisitions and disposal as disclosed in note 36 and 37
to the financial statements, the Group did not make any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies during
the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed around 37,000 staff
(including 31,000 staff from subsidiaries, 3,000 staff from joint
ventures and 3,000 staff from associates) in the PRC, Vietnam
and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, experience and prevailing market rate while
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include, for example, medical insurance and

training.
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Corporate Governance Report

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. The principles
of which are to uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
accountability and integrity in all aspects of business and to ensure
that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises fifteen directors including
nine executive directors, one non-executive director and five
independent non-executive directors. Biographies of all the
directors are set out on pages 32 to 37 of this annual report.
The relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material relationships) among directors have been
disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity considerations,
which include but are not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of service.

The Board believes that it has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements
of the businesses. The balance between executive and non-
executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
check and balance that safeguard the interests of shareholders

and the Group.
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TEERRE

(a)

(b)

(c)

Board Composition (continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which have been formalised into
the terms of reference of the Board (or Board committees).
The Board (or Board committees) is responsible for developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct applicable to employees and directors; and
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has adopted an inside information handling policy
to provide guiding principles and procedures to employees of
the Group so as to enable the Group to timely handle inside
information and communicate with the Group’s stakeholders
in ways which are in compliance with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other relevant rules

and regulations.
Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is Chairman of the Group.
The Group has three chief executive officers, namely Mr.
Thanakorn Seriburi, Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Sooksunt
Jiumjaiswanglerg who are responsible for industrial business,
China area and Vietnam area respectively. The roles of
chairman and chief executive are separate. Chairman is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board while
chief executive officer is responsible for managing the Group’s

businesses.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and the number of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.

n

(a)

(b)

(c)
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(e)

(f)
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from all independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent and meet the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for formulating and reviewing
business strategies and directions, overseeing the management
and monitoring the performance of the Group. The Board
delegates its responsibilities to the management to execute
these business strategies and to deal with day-to-day
operations.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiries of all directors, the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has also adopted a code of securities dealing for
senior management and relevant employees (the “Code”) in
terms no less exacting than the required standard indicated by

the Model Code.

The directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations are disclosed in the Report of the
Directors on pages 38 to 57 of this annual report.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the business activities and development
of the Company. During the year, the Company provided all
directors with monthly updates on the Company’s performance
and position.

All directors are encouraged to participate in professional
development courses and seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. Having made specific enquiries
of all directors, the directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending professional courses/
seminars or by reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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(9)

General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
held one annual general meeting, two special general meetings,
five Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one
Remuneration Committee meeting and one Nomination
Committee meeting. The attendance of individual director is

set out in the following table:

A H

(9)

BRRAE EFSSRESTETNEESEE
ik

PRE_ZE—-WET A=+ —HIAERE >
AT CBRAT — OB B AR R~ R BR
FRRE - hkEREGTH®  WAFEEEZR
CAE RS 1 R r ViRl € X
Bk > M5 % F i R s sk r -

No. of meetings attended/held

LS V8 F L

Annual Special

General General Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination

Meeting Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee

133 i3
HERE LYIVN | #HE  HWEEG  HMZEE  RAZHEE

Executive Directors Hii##F
M. Dhanin Chearavanont R R e o1 0N 5/5 - - 11
M. Adirek Sripratak V315 1y 11 Wi 55 - 11 !
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi B 1/1 0N 45 - I -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont E AN 01 2 45 - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HEREE 1 1 565 - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg 54 il 02 55 - - -
Mr. Anan Athigapanich HEREA Vi 02 55 - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont i EAw 01 0n 25 - - -
Ms. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan& +: 1/1 12 5/5 - - -
Non-executive Director FAEF
M. Meth Jiaravanont Btk o1 01 4/5 0N - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BiFAnEF
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew B L 11 2 5/5 2 11 i
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isres g & 11 112 5/5 2 11 111
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul%t 11 112 4[5 Wy 11 111
M. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej J6 4 1/1 12 505 - - -
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon& £ 1/1 0N 5/5 - - -
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General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings (continued)

The directors can attend Board meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance with

the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The directors are consulted to include matters for discussion in

the agenda of Board meetings.

The Company gives notice of regular Board meetings at least
fourteen days in advance and reasonable notice for all other

Board meetings.

Agendas and board meeting materials are sent to the directors
at least three days prior to the Board or Board committee

meetings.
Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers

liability insurance for its Directors and officers.
Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
27 March 2012. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, substantially the same as the provisions set out in
the CG Code, are available at the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two
executive directors, namely Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
(Chairman), Mr. Adirek Sripratak, and three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung,
Andrew, Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul.
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U]

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
and reviewing the nomination policy and board diversity
policy, reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board
at least annually, making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and organisational needs, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting individuals nominated for directorship, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive
officer. In considering the nomination of new directors, the
Nomination Committee will take into account the gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service of the candidates, the
benefits of diversity on the Board as well as other requirements

under the Listing Rules.

All non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual

general meetings in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

In addition, according to the Company’s Bye-Laws, at each
annual general meeting of the Company no less than one-
third of the directors for the time being shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The Nomination Committee has held a meeting during the

year to review the Board composition.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

(a)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 13
September 2005. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, substantially the same as the provisions set out in
the CG Code, are available at the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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(a)

(b)

b E B ER

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu
Cheung, Andrew (Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr.
Sakda Thanitcul and two executive directors, namely Mr.
Adirek Sripratak and Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for overseeing
the establishment and operation of formal and transparent
procedures for developing the remuneration packages
of directors and senior management. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee provides effective oversight and

administration of the Company’s share option scheme.

The Remuneration Committee has held a meeting during
the year to discuss and review the remuneration policy
and package for directors and senior management. No
individual director is involved in decisions relating to his own
remuneration. Details of emoluments of each director are set

out in note 10 to the financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management

by band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:
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Remuneration Policy

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who will underpin the success
of the Company and enhance the value of the Company to
shareholders. The objective of the Company’s remuneration
policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages based on

business requirements and industry practices.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in

annual and interim reports.
Annual Report and Accounts

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditors of the Company about its responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent

Auditors’ Report on pages 58 and 59.
Accounting Policies

The Board considers that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.
Going Concern

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 28
January 1999. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
substantially the same as the provisions set out in the CG
Code, are available at the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung,
Andrew (Chairman), Mr Sakda

Thanitcul and the non-executive director, Mr. Meth

. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr.

Jiaravanont.

The Audit Committee met two times during 2014. The
following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during 2014:

° reviewed the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2013

with recommendation to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditors to the
Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December

2013;
o reviewed compliance with the CG Code;
o reviewed internal audit reports of the Group;
o reviewed the interim report and the interim results

announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2014

with recommendation to the Board for approval;

° reviewed the report from the external auditors to the
Audit Committee for the six months ended 30 June
2014;

° reviewed audit and non-audit services undertaken by

the external auditors; and

. reviewed the effectiveness of internal controls.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2014 with recommendation to the

Board for approval.

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors and the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors. To ensure external auditors’ independence,
the Audit Committee has reviewed audit and non-audit

services undertaken by the external auditors during the year.
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(e)  Audit Committee (continued) (e) BHREER (H)
During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the T BT RRAE A > S 48 ) S A D TP A R Vi T
Group’s external auditors is set out below: W -
2014
Lk
(US$°000)
Category of Services IR 75 35 51 (FoL T IT)
Audit services TR 1,227
Reporting accountants services FH i & R TR 1,082
Non-audit services I % e s
— taxation services — B R 1
— review engagements and — W R
agreed-upon procedures AT ER T 483
Total k] 2,793
(h)  Internal Controls (hy HEREEEE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s internal

controls, assessment and management of risks.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and particularly
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting

function, and their training programs and budget.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is kept regularly
appraised of significant risks that may have impact on the

Group’s performance.

The Board considers that the Group’s internal controls are

adequate and effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Bermuda Companies Act 1981, members of the Company
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company can
make request to convene a special general meeting. Any number of
members of the Company representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than one hundred
members can make request to put forward proposals at general
meetings. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company.

Members of the Company can make enquiry to the Board by writing
to the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to the
communication with shareholders, with the objective of maintaining
full, open and timely communication with shareholders. Information
would be communicated to shareholders mainly through the
publication of the Company’s corporate communications including
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars in a timely
manner. These publications are also available on the website of the

Company.

During the year under review, there had been no significant change in

the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mzr. Dhanin Chearavanont, aged 75, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Chairman
of the Company in 2005 and this title was subsequently changed
to Chairman with effect from 28 February 2010. Mr. Chearavanont
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Charoen Pokphand Group. He
has extensive experience in establishing and operating businesses in
Asia, Europe and USA. He also holds directorship in a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), True Corporation
Public Company Limited (“True Corporation”) and CP ALL Public
Company Limited (“CP ALL”), which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Mr.
Chairman of the Company and a member of the Remuneration

Adirek Sripratak, aged 68, has been appointed as a Vice

Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company since
1 April 2012. Mr. Sripratak has been President and Chief Executive
Office of CPF since 2003. He is also a director of several subsidiaries
of CPF and of the Company. Mr. Sripratak is also a director of CP
ALL and Siam Makro Public Company Limited (“Siam Makro”),
companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. He has more
than 40 years’ experience in the agri-business and food industry.
His valuable experience is widely recognised and has led to his
appointment to a number of public offices and positions. His public
service experiences include serving as a Senator of the National
Assembly of Thailand, the Honorary Chairman of the Thai Broiler
Processing Exporters Association and an Honorary Director of Chiang
Mai University Council. He received Honorary Doctorates from
a number of universities in Thailand including Maejo University,
Mae Fah Luang University, Rajamangala University of Technology
Suvarnabhumi, Chiang Mai University, Rajamangala University of

Technology Isan and Kasetsart University.

RS - 755K 0 ALV VERIHEARA R Z
PATHEF - WA BRI RAE R AL 5 AT
EHER KR R -FE A ZHN\HE I
AR ERR - SR RN —H
BRERBRATEGLNE - W h MgLEZ
HHRREEHAGR - oL mA W - B &
5 o et 3 B AR B 2 RIS o OB EA A ]
— KM A B 2 H B AL o # S8 A I8 £ Charoen
Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited ([ CPF]) ~
True Corporation Public Company Limited ([ True
Corporation]) B8CP ALL Public Company Limited
(TCP ALL)) 2 # = (ZFH 2 it 48 B8 27 22 5 Pt
EWiZzAN) -

BN AE 68K A T~ FENH —HE#
ZEMARNGZHEFR AN FAHME R G
WAZRBTHRE o AN R =41 % CPF
Z BAEANE AT R o IR R CPFRIA & F 4 T Mt
BAF ZHEH o 4L RCP ALLKSiam Makro
Public Company Limited ([ Siam Makro]) (W % #
RBEBHRRH EHZAA) ZEF - A #
404 f 38 Al £ il T 38 B RC B o A T RSB
i8IS I oA AR T A WA B AL o B 2 AR
BAARREEEH2HE > Thai Broiler Processing
Exporters Associationf) % 2 3 i & % M Chiang
Mai University 2 & 1) % 2 # 3 o i 78 2 B
T K B % A% B 1 2 A B F5Maejo University »
Mae Fah Luang University * Rajamangala University
Chiang Mai
University » Rajamangala University of Technology

of Technology Suvarnabhumi »

Isanf1Kasetsart University ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

—®-m

F F ®



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B FE R 2

7

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi, aged 69, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Vice
Chairman in 2005 and Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company in 2008. His titles
were subsequently changed to Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (Industrial Division) with effect from 28 February 2010.
Mr. Seriburi resigned as the chairman but remains as a member of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 April 2012. He
also holds directorships in several companies within the Group.
Mr. Seriburi is also the chairman and chief executive officer of
the automotive industrial business group (China) of the Charoen
Pokphand Group. He has been working on investment projects
for the Charoen Pokphand Group in the PRC since 1979 and has
extensive experience in industrial operations in Asia and elsewhere.
Furthermore, Mr. Seriburi is the chairman of Zheng Xin Bank Co.,
Ltd., a licensed bank in China.

Mr.
Director of the Company since 2005 and has been appointed as a
Vice Chairman with effect from 28 February 2010. He obtained a

Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business and Public

Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 50, has been an Executive

Administration of New York University, USA and has extensive
multinational investment and management experience in various
industries. He also holds directorships in several companies within
the Group. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman of C.P. Lotus
Corporation (“C.P. Lotus”), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and True Visions Public Company Limited
(“True Visions”). He is also a director of True Corporation, CP ALL
and Siam Makro and a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mzr. Bai Shanlin, aged 55, has been appointed as Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer (Feed Division) of the Company
with effect from 28 February 2010. His title was changed to Chief
Executive Officer (China Area) with effect from 1 April 2012. Mr.
Bai obtained a Professional Diploma in Animal Science, Gansu
College of Animal Husbandry, the Governmental Exchange Specialist
in Agricultural Management from the Australian Ministry of Foreign
Affairs and a Specialist Certificate in Livestock Management in
the PRC. He joined the Charoen Pokphand Group in 1991. He is
currently the senior vice chairman of the Group’s agri-food business,
responsible for the operation of agri-food business in Xinjiang,
Ningxia, Gansu, Shaanxi, Shanxi, Neimenggu, Heilongjiang, Jilin
and Liaoning. Mr. Bai has extensive experience in the management of
agri-business operations. He is also a part time professor honored by
Agricultural University of Gansu and People’s University of China.
Mr. Bai also holds directorships in several companies within the

Group.
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Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 62, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since 12 October 2011 and Chief
Executive Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since 1 April
2012. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg had over 30 years of experience in animal
feed sales and breeding, having been with the Charoen Pokphand
Group since 1 February 1980. He has been the general director of
C.P. Vietnam Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company, since 2005.
Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg also holds directorship in a subsidiary of the
Company. He graduated from the University of the Thai Chamber of

Commerce with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mr. Anan Athigapanich, aged 63, has been an Executive Director
since 28 February 2010. Mr. Athigapanich obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Agriculture from Sukhothai Thammatirat University,
Thailand and received his Doctor of Agriculture Management degree
from Maejo University, Thailand. He joined the Charoen Pokphand
Group in 1977. He is currently the senior vice chairman of the
Group’s agri-food business, responsible for the operation of agri-food
business in Guangxi. Mr. Athigapanich has extensive experience
in the management of agri-business operations. He also holds

directorships in several companies within the Group.

Mr.
Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a

Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 47, has been an Executive

Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Boston
University in USA, majoring in Financial Management. He has
extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. Mr. Chearavanont is also an executive director of C.P.
Lotus and a director of Siam Makro. He is also a director, president
and chief executive officer of True Corporation and a director and
chief executive officer of True Visions and True Move Company
Limited.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 66, has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company since 1 April 2012. Mrs.
Watcharananan has been an Executive Director of CPF since 2000.
She is also a director of several subsidiaries of CPF. She graduated
from Thammasat University, Thailand with a bachelor’s degree in

Economics.
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Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 56, has been re-designated as Non-
executive Director of the Company and appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee of the Company since 9 August 2010. Prior to
his re-designation, Mr. Jiaravanont has been an Executive Director
and an Executive Vice Chairman of the Company since 2005.
Mr. Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
from Occidental College, California, USA and a master’s degree in
Business Administration from New York University, USA. He has
extensive experience in investment, finance, banking and strategic
business development in Asia and USA. Mr. Jiaravanont is also an
executive director of C.P. Lotus. He is currently the senior executive
assistant to the chairman-finance of the Charoen Pokphand Group
and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew, aged 73, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company since 2005. He has been a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since 2006. Mr. Ma was appointed as
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma is
a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly known
as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited) and is presently a director of
Mayee Management Limited. He has more than 30 years’ experience
in the fields of accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Ma received his
bachelor’s degree in Economics from the London School of Economics
and Political Science (University of London) in the United Kingdom.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent non-executive director
of Asia Financial Holdings Limited, China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited and Chong Hing Bank Limited (companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Ma was appointed
a director of Asiaray Media Group Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 15 January 2015) on 20 May
2014 and designated as an independent non-executive director on
12 June 2014. Mr. Ma was an independent non-executive director
of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited from August 2004 to November
2013; Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited from September 2004
to December 2014; and Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited from
January 2002 to September 2004 and reappointed from April 2005
to January 2015 (companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange; with Asia Citrus Holdings Limited also listed on the AIM
Board of The London Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Sombat Deo-isres, aged 73, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2005. He is also a member of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr.
Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Deo-isres obtained a bachelor’s

Deo-isres was appointed as a member of the Nomination

degree in Laws from Thammasat University and a master’s degree in
Laws from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand. He has held various
senior positions with the Thai judiciary. He was a former Senior Judge
of the Supreme Court of Thailand and currently is a member of the

academic justice committee of the President of Supreme Court.

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul, aged 56, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company since 2008. Mr. Thanitcul
was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee on 1
April 2012. Mr. Thanitcul holds a Bachelor of Law degree from
Chulalongkorn University, Thailand, a Master of Law degree from
Kyoto University, Japan and University of Washington, USA and a
Doctor of Law degree from Kyoto University, Japan and University
of Washington, USA. He has extensive experience in the legal field
and specialises in competition law and the World Trade Organization
Agreements. Mr. Thanitcul was a former Dean and presently is a

Professor of Law, at the Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn University,
Bangkok, Thailand.

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 64, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 31
December 2012. Mr. Vittavasgarnvej obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Accountancy and a master’s degree in Political Science from
Thammasat University, Thailand. Currently, Mr. Vittavasgarnvej is
the chairman of Sahamitr Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd. and
independent director and the chairman of the audit committee of
Ekarat Engineering Public Company Limited, companies listed on The
Stock Exchange of Thailand. He was the Director General of The
Treasury Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand from 2010 to
2011 and the Director General of The Revenue Department, Ministry
of Finance, Thailand from 2008 to 2010.

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, aged 62, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 25
September 2013. Mrs. Vimooktayon has held various government
positions in Thailand since 1997 and has retired from the position
of Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce in September
2013. Mrs. Vimooktayon obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Accounting) from Thammasat University, Thailand,
a bachelor’s degree in Laws from Sukhothai Thammathirat University,
Thailand and a master’s degree in Business Administration from

National Institute of Development Administration, Thailand.
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A ~ Z& B Sukhothai Thammathirat University3
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Bobby Bo Wai Chang, aged 45, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 2011. Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in Engineering from Princeton University and a
Master of Science degree from Stanford University in the USA. He
has extensive international experience in management consulting,

investment as well as business and financial management.

Mr. Lau Wing Yuen, aged 49, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lau joined the Company in
2011. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Social Sciences from University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, he worked for an
international accounting firm and several listed companies in Hong

Kong.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont and uncle of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont are
brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Adirek
Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan. Saved
as disclosed above, there is no other material relationship among

members of the Board and senior management.
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Report of the Directors
EERFTE

The directors present their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in (i) the manufacture and sale of animal feed
in the PRC and Vietnam, (ii) breeding, farming and sale of livestock
and aquatic animals in Vietnam and (iii) manufacture and sale of
value-added processed food products in Vietnam. Additionally, the
Group is also involved in various other relatively smaller businesses
including the manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline products,

automotive parts and the trading of machinery.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 60 to 199.

An interim dividend of HK$0.017 per share (equivalent to
approximately US 0.219 cents) was declared and paid during the year
under review (2013: HK$0.010 per share (equivalent to approximately
US 0.129 cents)).

The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend for 2014
of HK$0.022 (equivalent to approximately US 0.284 cents) (2013:
HK$0.019 (equivalent to approximately US 0.245 cents)) per share,
totaling approximately US$71,913,000 (2013: US$61,422,000)
(based on the total number of issued ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares as at the date of this report). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 9 June 2015, the final dividend will
be paid on or about 30 June 2015 to the ordinary share holders and
convertible preference share holders, whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 16 June 2015.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 8
June 2015 to 9 June 2015, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2015.
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A H
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

In addition, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 15 June 2015 to 16 June 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend for 2014, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 12 June 2015.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests,
and results of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2014,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, are as
follows:

. LTD.
A F
Report of the Directors
ESREE
¥ERKRE (E)

WA s RAFRMR F—HEANATHEEZR
—HAENA T BHRE (8RR EIEAER ) W55
FRAAF B P BT AT ERR A B
RBEVREE —F— DU R BB R > R A i M 3
PR A RS R —HEANHAHTZH TN
W= 20 B0 s B AR W] A U B4y 4 P B S
BE > U S A R A ] > Mk 2 A AT
B RERISIPEA RO 1717128 171654 > B¢
HIEG T -

MBENRE

AHEEEE T -NET A=+ Bk TR AR
A~ AR e o e B i DL T A (4K B
H T A F LM s W -

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“ENE DR -ZSE DR DR DR RE
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FxxFrx FxTr FrxTfrx FrxTFr FExTrx
Total assets AR R 3,154,018 2,759,488 2,116,880 1,968,271 1,086,534
Total liabilities #8110 1,767,610 1,513,173 1,024,325 982,811 528,375
Non-controlling interests I e i e E 2 207,780 177,193 173,896 156,948 61,974
Equity attributable to NN
shareholders of the Company — HE#& 1,178,628 1,069,122 918,659 828,512 496,185
3,154,018 2,759,488 2,116,880 1,968,271 1,086,534
Profit for the year A2\ ] IR HEAR
attributable to shareholders i Fl
of the Company 251,425 186,211 204,154 173,199 132,840
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are

set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 16 to the

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 33 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2014.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements and

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to US$1,678,582,000 (2013: US$241,274,000)
which included the proposed final dividend for the year 2014 of
US$71,913,000 (2013: US$61,422,000) proposed on 26 February
2015. Details of the proposed final dividend are set out in note 13 to

the financial statements.
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2 2 ) A0 B S T 2 T 3 191 S 8 S L MEE = MK

A 2 ) 8 76 2 b A5 1) AT B SR 5 T IR Ay
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il

BARQBHEHES

BREZZ-WETZH=ZT—HILFEEN » KAH
o H A O g 2 0RO O~ ) O D A T A
Al iR o

i 18

AR o AR 2 R B A 45 T ik A4 5 Bl 4 A 40 T SO
W R M aE3s R AR B HESR S B Ry o

a1 2 B e
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other

purposes amounted to US$1,962,000 (2013: US$2,698,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest customers and
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s turnover and

purchases for the year ended 31 December 2014, respectively.

DIRECTORS

»

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Bai Shanlin

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg
Mr. Anan Athigapanich

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 82, Mr. Dhanin
Chearavanont, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, Mr. Anan Athigapanich,
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul and Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company.

All non-executive director and independent non-executive directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year and subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in

accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and that the Company considers such

directors to have remained independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a

party during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long

=

Report of the Directors
ESREE

EERITETBRAERBEARRAARE AR
FENROREBRONESZR AR

PR AR A=A H o AR R IR R
SE3520 BLAE B A 24 ]l AF 2 % i A T % o Bk
AL A U 1k A 2 ) R T A2 T R L A > 4
PR B EATBON B H A A4 T B KA T 1 e
B R Bl P v 2 2 R R (3% o7 M M0 & e ol ([
ZF W B ARG ) SEXVER BT R 2 #H) BT -

(a) EBRAQITNER (FR)

Positions)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued ordinary
Number of ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
AR W AT
Jt e 3 40 i 5 38 B Jie A
HRALW By &ty 8 H L& | e
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 37,600,000 0.16%
A R A A R &
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 62,584,807 0.26%
B R T HiR R E
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.09%
A e AR e A R

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body

corporate.
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Report of the Directors

EEHREZ

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b)

Directors’

interests in shares of associated

corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

()

(i)

Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited

A

EERIETHRAEREERRAARA
EENRORARRONEERKE (&

~ =T

(b) EBSRAAFHNEBEEOES (FR)

(i) Charoen Pokphand Group Company

Limited

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

capital of the

Number of associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

A1k R T 2

OB AT A

HRAW 54 B ¢ ik 4y 8 H A E

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 228,277,810 12.96%
B R4 A R

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 11,322,605 0.64%
LA R

Kinghill Limited (i) Kinghill Limited

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

capital of the

Number of associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

A0 4 W% 2

O3 AT IR A

HRLM 54 B ¥ e 4 B H MAAE G

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 8,403,137 2.80%
R 4 A YA &

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 1,352,857 0.45%
LA YA &

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

e LA e g A > R F-NEHF A=+ —H >
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B A > BT # R ek B AT BN BAEA A
A BRI o P (3% 27 390 B e B SE X VAR B 2 )
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND

PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE

Report of the Directors

EEHREE

FTERRRBREZZRBERAKEERT

UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES

ORDINANCE

At 31 December 2014, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 336 of the SFO:

REEEREIABHAL

Number of shares and

PEF R ZH = H o AR R
SE336M BLAE B AR 2 v A7 2 X% i B A 8% > T 51
At GERAFRMEFREETBEANR) RAAF W
Jie 53 S AH I B Ay B AT ) B 2 R IR TN T ¢

Approximate
percentage of the
issued ordinary

share capital of

Name of shareholder Notes Capacity underlying shares held the Company
AL F O
&
A B B A 40
i 3 4 1 i3 20} JH AT % H Ak
(Note 1)
(kL)
Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (2) Interest of controlled corporation 12,774,814,845 (L) 53.1 (L)
el A 7 R 2%
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public (2) Beneficial owner and interest of 12,774,814,845 (L) 53.1 (L)
Company Limited controlled corporation
B R b A v R
ITOCHU Corporation (3) Beneficial owner 6,017,959,308 (L) 25.0 (L)
P S Ak A g TR
Notes: Pt 5k -
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position. (1) LR FEIFA -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(2)

3)

Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) has a long
position in 12,774,814,845 shares of the Company which includes (i)
1,261,077,748 shares of the Company beneficially owned by CPF and
(ii) 11,513,737,097 shares of the Company beneficially owned by its
wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment Limited (“CPFI”). As CPF,
CPFI and ITOCHU Corporation (“I'TOCHU”) entered into agreement
in relation to the sale of an aggregate of 6,017,959,308 ordinary
shares of the Company to ITOCHU, as a result of which, and for the
purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, CPF was taken to
be interested in the shares owned by ITOCHU. As such, CPF has a
long position in 18,792,774,153 shares of the Company in aggregate.
Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited has also declared interest

in these shares by virtue of its shareholding in CPF.

ITOCHU beneficially owned 6,017,959,308 shares of the Company.
For the purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, ITOCHU
was taken to be interested in the shares owned by CPF. As such,
ITOCHU has a long position in 18,792,774,153 shares of the

Company in aggregate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person (not

being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest

or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

B AR

N

TERREBRBEZRBEROARERT
REZGRZIXBENHAL (H)

Fif 3+ (49)

(2)

3)

Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited
(TCPF ) #412,774,814,845 B A 24 7 Bt 4y (%
) o WG 1,261,077, 7480 AR 2 W] B 4y B
CPFE 25 M M (i) 11,513,737,097 /B AR 24 w) Je Ay Hhi
L2 % Mt B A W]CPF Investment Limited ([ CPFL])
B3 PEA o I RCPF ~ CPFIM fF i B 1 2 Ak X
Rl AN I R v i e R S
6,017,959,308 B A 4 7] 5 1 JB 3¢ w1 o e > WO 2
B 1 15 R B 583 17(1) (a) R B SB3 18R T & » CPFA
EAEGEAT B I D SR S A BT BT B MR A
B I CPFR: A A 3618,792,774,153 A A W) AR (F
#) ° Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
75 H i R AT CPERY JBAE » 30 W) B R A % 55 IR A 114
RERS o

PR R R AL B 2R HE756,017,959,308 AR A
w] ey o b g SO BB BE317(1) ()R K BB 318
PR > A S8 bk = AL b 1 B AT CPF A B
RO RIRERS > BRUL > PR FAR R E AL E
£ 3£18,792,774, 153 AR A T ey (37 ) -

B LAt e g 4 > R F-WETFZA=Z+—H >
B8 55 5 10 B R 9] SR 33 oMk M R Hh AR A ] M A 2 B
AC M PR A 8% > 3L 1) AR 2 ] e g A2 B 8% A
BEEAN L GEAAF M ERREZTBAR) AL
] M A R R MR A v AR A R
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share options of the Company were granted, cancelled and lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2014. 129,248,078 share options
and 149,848,078 share options of the Company were exercised
on 25 February 2014 and 18 July 2014 respectively. Details of the
movements in share options under the share option scheme during the

year are set out below:
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179,096,156 279,096,156 -
CONNECTED TRANSACTION BEx S

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had entered into
the following connected transactions that were subject to the Listing

Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report:
Acquisition of the Entire Equity Interest in Hefei Chia Tai

On 24 February 2014, Chia Tai (China) Investment Company
Limited (“Chia Tai Investment”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the acquisition agreement with Chia
Tai (China) Agro-Industrial Company Limited (“Chia Tai China
Agro”), an indirect subsidiary of Thana Holding Company Limited
(“Thana Holding”) for the purchase of the entire equity interest in
Hefei Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (“Hefei Chia Tai”) at a consideration of
RMB220 million (equivalent to approximately US$36.4 million)
(“Hefei Acquisition”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Acquisition of the Entire Equity Interest in Hefei Chia Tai
(continued)

As at 24 February 2014, Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited (“CPF”) was interested in approximately 71.3% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company and approximately 45.1% of
CPF’s issued share capital was held by Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which was owned as to approximately
51.3% of its issued share capital by the Chearavanont Shareholders
(four members of the Chearavanont family, namely Mr. Jaran
Chiaravanont, Mr. Montri Jiaravanont, Mr. Sumet Jiaravanon and
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont) in aggregate. Thana Holding was also
owned as to approximately 51.3% of its issued share capital by the
Chearavanont Shareholders. Due to CPG’s near majority shareholding
in CPF and the Chearavanont Shareholders’ aggregate majority
shareholding in CPG and Thana Holding, Thana Holding and its
associates were treated as connected persons of the Company for the
purposes of the Listing Rules. The Hefei Acquisition was therefore
treated as if it was a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The Hefei Acquisition was reported and announced

under the Listing Rules as if the same were to be applicable.

Acquisition of the Entire Equity Interest in Kaifeng Chia Tai
and Disposal of the Entire Issued Share Capital in Rapid
Thrive

On 21 May 2014, Chia Tai Investment, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the acquisition agreement
(“Kaifeng Acquisition Agreement”) with Chia Tai China Agro, an
indirect subsidiary of Thana Holding, pursuant to which Chia Tai
Investment conditionally agreed to purchase the entire equity interest
in Kaifeng Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (“Kaifeng Chia Tai”) at a consideration
of RMB311 million (equivalent to approximately US$49.8 million)
(“Kaifeng Acquisition”).

On 21 May 2014, the Company entered into the disposal agreement
(“Disposal Agreement”) with CT Bright Holdings Limited (“CT
Bright”), an indirect subsidiary of CPG, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to dispose of the entire issued share
capital in Rapid Thrive Limited (“Rapid Thrive”) at a consideration
of US$49.5 million (“Disposal”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Acquisition of the Entire Equity Interest in Kaifeng Chia Tai
and Disposal of the Entire Issued Share Capital in Rapid
Thrive (continued)

As at 21 May 2014, CPF was interested in approximately 70.85% of
the issued ordinary share capital of the Company and approximately
39.1% of CPF’s issued share capital was held by CPG. Due to
CPG’s near majority shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG
had agreed to treat CPG and its direct and indirect subsidiaries as
connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. CT Bright was an indirect subsidiary of CPG and therefore

treated as a connected person of the Company.

CPG was owned as to approximately 51.3% of its issued share capital
by the Chearavanont Shareholders in aggregate, and they also
owned approximately 51.3% of the issued share capital of Thana
Holding. Due to the Chearavanont Shareholders’ aggregate majority
shareholding in CPG and as they also held in aggregate the majority
shareholding in Thana Holding, Thana Holding and its associates,
including Chia Tai China Agro, were treated as connected persons of
the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Kaifeng Acquisition Agreement and the
Disposal Agreement were therefore treated as connected transactions

for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Since the Kaifeng Acquisition, the Disposal and the Hefei Acquisition
were entered into by the Company with the same party or with parties
connected or otherwise associated with one another, the Company
had aggregated these transactions and treated them as if they were one

transaction.

Based on the relevant percentage ratios, the Kaifeng Acquisition,
the Disposal and the Hefei Acquisition constituted discloseable

transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

On the above basis, the Kaifeng Acquisition and the Disposal
were subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules
applicable to connected transactions as if the same were to be
applicable, and the reporting and disclosure requirements under the

Listing Rules applicable to discloseable transactions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Acquisition of the Entire Equity Interest in Kaifeng Chia Tai
and Disposal of the Entire Issued Share Capital in Rapid
Thrive (continued)

The Kaifeng Acquisition Agreement, Disposal Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were approved at the special

general meeting of the Company held on 8 July 2014.
Construction Project Management Contracts

Project management fee paid to Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd. disclosed as
related party transaction in note 42 to the financial statement were
in relation to the connected transaction announced by the Company
on 6 August 2013 and were disclosed in the Company’s 2013 annual

report.

Project management fee paid to Chia Tai Handing Engineering
Management Co., Ltd. disclosed as related party transaction in note
42 to the financial statement also constitute connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but was below the
de minimis thresholds and thus are fully exempt from shareholders’

approval and all disclosure requirements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that were subject to the

Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report:

Supply

On 14 November 2013, the Company entered into a new CPP supply
agreement with High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) (“New
Master CPP Supply Agreement”) for the supply by the Group to
HOEL and any related entity designed by HOEL of various feed-
related, farm-related and food-related products such as animal feed,
chlortetracycline, animal drugs and feed raw materials, breeding and
farming livestock, and processed meats and food products (“CPP
Supply Products”). The New Master CPP Supply Agreement took
effect on 1 January 2014 and continued until 31 December 2016.
The New Master CPP Supply Agreement and the annual caps were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 20
December 2013.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Supply (continued)

HOEL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated as connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the New Master CPP Supply Agreement
were treated as if they were continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31
December 2014, the actual sale and annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the New Master CPP Supply Agreement
amounted to US$545,247,000 and US$1,106,000,000 respectively.

Purchase

On 14 November 2013, the Company entered into a renewed
CPP purchase agreement with C.P. Trading Co., Ltd. (“CPT”)
(“Renewed Master CPP Purchase Agreement”) for the purchase of
raw materials, machinery and equipment, promotional products,
packaging materials, breed and farm livestock and aqua stock, meats
and other items required for production and sale of animal and aqua
feed, farm and food products and chlortetracycline products (“CPP
Purchase Products”) by the Group in the normal course of business
from CPT and its related entities. The Renewed Master CPP Purchase
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2014 and continued until 31
December 2016. The Renewed Master CPP Purchase Agreement and
the annual caps were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company on 20 December 2013.

CPT is a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.P. Intertrade Co. Ltd.
which was owned as to approximately 51.31% by the Chearavanont
Shareholders. As such, CPT was treated as connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Renewed Master CPP Purchase Agreement were treated
as if they were continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2014,
the actual purchase and annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the Renewed Master CPP Purchase Agreement amounted to
US$455,039,000 and US$1,009,000,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Business Carve-out

On 31 December 2012, the Company entered into a renewed business
carve-out agreement with Orient Success International Limited
(“OSIL”) (“Renewed Master Business Carve-out Agreement”) for
OSIL’s lease and/or use of non-feed related fixed assets (comprising
land, buildings and plant and machinery) located in the PRC. The
Renewed Master Business Carve-out Agreement took effect on 1
January 2013 and continued until 31 December 2015. The Renewed
Master Business Carve-out Agreement and the annual caps were
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval, reported
and announced under the Listing Rules as if the same were to be

applicable.

OSIL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated as connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Renewed Master Business Carve-out Agreement were treated as if
they were continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
actual rental and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under
the Renewed Master Business Carve-out Agreement amounted to
RMB15,446,000 and RMB30,200,000 respectively.

Lease

On 31 December 2012, the Company entered into a renewed lease
agreement with OSIL (“Renewed Master Lease Agreement”) for
the Group’s lease and/or use of relevant fixed assets related to feed
production (comprising land, buildings and plant and machinery)
located in the PRC. The Renewed Master Lease Agreement took
effect on 1 January 2013 and continued until 31 December 2015. The
Renewed Master Lease Agreement and the annual caps were exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval, reported and announced

under the Listing Rules as if the same were to be applicable.

OSIL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated as connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Renewed Master Lease Agreement were treated as if they were
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the actual
rental and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the
Renewed Master Lease Agreement amounted to RMB14,965,000 and
RMB38,900,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CPG Technical Assistance Services

On 14 November 2013, C.P. Vietnam Corporation (formerly known
as C.P. Vietnam Livestock Corporation) (“CPVC”) entered into
a renewed CPG technical assistance services agreement with CPG
(“Renewed CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement”) for the
provision of certain technical assistance services by CPG to CPVC
in connection with CPVC’s business in Vietnam. The Renewed
CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement took effect on 1
January 2014 and continued until 31 December 2016. The service
fee was equivalent to 1.5% of the net sales value of the products
manufactured, produced and/or sold by CPVC in Vietnam or exported
from Vietnam, exclusive of value added tax chargeable on the sale
of such products under applicable Vietnam laws and regulations,
commercial discounts, rebates and returned goods. The Renewed
CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement and the annual cap
were exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval, reported
and announced under the Listing Rules as if the same were to be

applicable.

CPG was treated as connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Renewed CPG Technical Assistance
Services Agreement were treated as if they were continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the actual service
fee and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the
Renewed CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement amounted to
US$30,128,000 and US$40,000,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

MS Technical Assistance Services

On 14 November 2013, CPVC entered into a renewed MS technical
assistance services agreement with Modern State Investments Limited
(“Modern State”) (“Renewed MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement”) for the provision of certain technical assistance services
by the Group through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Modern State, to
a non-wholly owned subsidiary, CPVC, in connection with CPVC’s
business in Vietnam. The Renewed MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2014 and continued until 31
December 2016. The service fee was equivalent to 1.5% of the net
sales value of the products manufactured, produced and/or sold by
CPVC in Vietnam or exported from Vietnam, exclusive of value
added tax chargeable on the sale of such products under applicable
Vietnam laws and regulations, commercial discounts, rebates and
returned goods. The Renewed MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement and the annual cap were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval, reported and announced under the Listing

Rules as if the same were to be applicable.

CPVC is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in which
CPF (being a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore
a connected person of the Company other than at the level of the
Company’s subsidiaries) will be able to exercise more than 10% of the
voting rights in the general meeting. Hence CPVC was a connected
person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions under the Renewed MS Technical
Assistance Services Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the actual service
fee and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the
Renewed MS Technical Assistance Services Agreement amounted to

US$30,128,000 and US$40,000,000 respectively.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group and
have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

In respect of the connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions, the Company has complied with the relevant
announcements, reportings and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements under the Listing Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transactions with joint ventures and associates, interest income
and expenses from/to HOEL and its related entities, and sales to
ITOCHU, disclosed as related party transactions in note 42 to the
financial statements do not fall under the definition of connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions or was below the de
minimis thresholds under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and thus

are not disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance
with the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed below, the directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2014.

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated
term loan facility agreement with KASIKORNBANK Public
Company Limited, as mandated lead arranger and agent, and other
lenders (“Lenders”) relating to a facility amount of US$410 million
granted to the Company by the Lenders (“Facility Agreement”). The
facility will be used for the Company’s general corporate purposes,
working capital, new investment projects and/or expansion of existing

projects.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
CPF ceases to own directly or indirectly at least 51% of the beneficial

interest in the total issued ordinary share capital of the Company.

Following the sale of an aggregate of 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares by
CPF to ITOCHU Corporation, the Company obtained the consent
from all the Lenders to amend the clause on ownership of the
Borrower under the Facility Agreement (“Amendment”) on 19 August
2014. Pursuant to the Amendment, such event of default has been
amended to the effect that it will be an event of default if the CPF
Group (being Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited and
its subsidiaries from time to time) ceases to own the largest percentage
of the legal and beneficial interest in the total issued ordinary share
capital of the Company and ceases to have control over the Company.
Except for the aforesaid Amendment, all other terms under the

Facility Agreement remain unchanged.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render any
commitments under the facility to be cancelled and/or all outstanding
liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement to become

immediately due and payable.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors were not
aware that any of the directors has interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

A

BRETHRAUEISASENEE

BRDLF ik & Ah > =R —WE+ZH =10
S 0 2B A o D0 SO 4 W ZEAR B R
IS+ = FE 5813, 180k B B S At B 8% o

REF-ZHETZAHILE > RAF HEERRAT (FF
Ty 32wl B b R SRAT MBI ) B A BN ([ 3k
AD T A BRSNS T A R B R4 1SR R
K PR T A 0 B K T e ([ B0k o ik 1) o % B0t
RAAF R — B ARG - BEE S FEHA
Fo,/ SR KBIREREIHE o

A% B K B ok > CPFRY A 2 W] 22 8 © 3847 15 38 it
JBEAR 458 1k L o P R A E D51 % Z TR A
A BT ) I

BECPE 1 {7+ 15 A 7 o A X o 48 £ 65 366,017,959,308
HmgE . RAR R ZF—M4ENH T RE
PR BN [ G RT B AR o AR RN Z B
ek ([ZAEFT]) - RIBEAETT - BAFEHCOE
% W CPF4E B (BPCharoen Pokphand Foods Public
Company Limited & 7 B Z [t B A &) R A A 5] &
BT S B A R B B KA b 2 E
AR RE RS o DL IR A AR B P IR o R L
EA)HEIH o B LA ZAERT A - B E T A

St 3 4 = T A AR SO BRI AT A R G A
B e SO B BOA o v Rk I Z A R
G 958 L AP o 2 300 Sl RO

BEES

PR -PAET A= HIREERN > ERHEAR
R0 5 A 4 = R A T R A R O S L T 2
B AT BE AR A T R SE B (3% i B R 2R H
) MR

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

—®-m

F F ®



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director of the Company. The
establishment of the Audit Committee serves to enhance corporate
governance practices. The principal duties of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements prior to the

publication of the interim and final results.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The Company has appointed KPMG as auditors of the Company on
14 September 2012 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Ernst & Young.

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan
Director

Hong Kong
26 February 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB RS

chlc

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 199, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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b E B FE R 2

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 February 2015
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b B A R 2 7

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e mEWKaE R

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

2014 2013
—E 4 R =8
Note US$’000 US$’000
Hf i FF FLFo
REVENUE B A 5 5,619,444 5,414,290
Cost of sales 8 B pii A (4,725,605) (4,724,122)
Gross profit EH 893,839 690,168
Net changes in fair value W& EA E
of biological assets 2 5 R 6 9,287 10,680
903,126 700,848
Other income, net At e A 7 26,525 18,328
Selling and distribution costs 8 B T o 8 B A (289,174) (246,962)
General and administrative expenses THRAREHEN (247,922) (206,254)
Finance costs 7 R AR 8 (50,522) (50,842)
Share of profits and losses of: R A i F) B s 48
Joint ventures BEAE 21(a) 21,670 20,969
Associates 1 2 W] 22(a) 20,577 13,331
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B wir v A 9 384,280 249,418
Income tax B 45 Bt 12 (88,444) (45,759)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A 4 fiit F) 295,836 203,659
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H At 2 W AR
Items that will not be reclassified KM AgHEE R
subsequently to profit or loss: BEZHE -
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of WM A
office premises, net Btk (BR)FH 15 3,844 (6)
Income tax effect Fifr 15 ot 5 28 32 (836) —
3,008 (6)
[tems that will be reclassified subsequently HEeSaENIEE
to profit or loss, including B2 HH (L
reclassification adjustments: TR SR ) -
Exchange differences on translation of AbH S B R 2
foreign operations [ B, 25 B (24,334) 25,838
Share of other comprehensive income of: JREE Ay G At 2 T W B
Joint ventures GEAE 21(a) (564) 4,389
Associates W 2 A w] 22(a) (926) 1,821
Disposal of available-for-sale investments HETHEZRE - (21)
Deregistration of a subsidiary PR — KA A (225) —
Disposal of subsidiaries and H 8 B A | %
a joint venture —RaBik (7,954) -
(34,003) 32,027
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEtEKRER
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+H=+—H IL4)¥

2014 2013
—F N4 R =8
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt it FoF FILFo
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR  Bi B % A< 45 H fil
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX EIIL & (30,995) 32,021
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME % AT 2 T WL A5 48 A
FOR THE YEAR 264,841 235,680
Profit attributable to: b I LTV i
Shareholders of the Company NN 251,425 186,211
Non-controlling interest I o ) e M 2% 44,411 17,448
295,836 203,659
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2 T W 2 A8 A ATt 4 G T
Shareholders of the Company PN/ 213,410 216,026
Non-controlling interest I e 3] 1 RE R 51,431 19,654
264,841 235,680
US cents US cents
il FAly
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A 2 w) it 3¢ HE 1
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 4 Jiit ¥ Al 14
— Basic B 0.996 0.745
— Diluted — 0.994 0.739

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the  A4EJEZ B BFHE N M B REM 3R BE -

financial statements.
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b#% B B & R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AN A
e
31 December 2014 —~&F— N4+ _H=+—H
2014 2013
e Sl U1 -2 R =
Note US$’000 US$’000
Hf i FF FLFo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik B &
Property, plant and equipment LE BN & 15 1,071,181 819,349
Investment properties EigsgES 16 18,927 29,537
Land lease prepayments TEAF - oA S 17 62,493 55,996
Non-current biological assets JEE A& E 18 47,598 44,609
Intangible assets M E R 19 38,532 -
Investments in joint ventures REBESENE 21 90,903 124,435
Investments in associates W2 o w] B 22 57,988 49,654
Available-for-sale investments ]k R 23 8,826 1,345
Goodwill T 36 39,303 -
Other non-current assets oAl IR B A 34,035 23,233
Deferred tax assets R S B E A 32 741 -
Total non-current assets 8 JE R B A 1,470,527 1,148,158
CURRENT ASSETS B &
Inventories T7E 24 588,332 603,679
Current biological assets EW Y EE 18 295,507 282,869
Trade and bills receivables JRE Wi B 5 MR ok e 25 160,056 139,084
Prepayments, deposits and AR SR ~ 4 J oAt
other receivables JRE W B 3% 26 143,123 85,270
Pledged deposits ORI AE 3K 27 40,870 30,357
Time deposits with maturity over W HBB =
three months 7 W17k 27 168,462 95,931
Cash and cash equivalents e MBI E&EEY 27 287,141 374,140
Total current assets HE B A A 1,683,491 1,611,330
CURRENT LIABILITIES it By 116
Trade payables FE AT B 5 iRk 28 245,702 230,147
Other payables and accruals JAth, W A MR R K FEAR B 29 305,552 257,183
Bank and other borrowings SRAT T Ho A A 3 30 515,902 534,003
Income tax payables FEAT B 45 B 22,512 19,915
Total current liabilities H8 B A 1,089,668 1,041,248
NET CURRENT ASSETS B A 593,823 570,082
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT R R T ) £ 0
LIABILITIES 2,064,350 1,718,240
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEBARRE
31 December 2014 —~Z—WN4E+_H=+—H

2014 2013
L —g=
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt it FoF FILFo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I B A
Bank borrowings AT K 30 609,333 442,713
Other non-current liabilities HAb IR 7 B A H 31 21,803 13,686
Deferred tax liabilities % S Bt I £ £ 32 46,806 15,526
Total non-current liabilities # Ik 3 Bh A 677,942 471,925
NET ASSETS R A 1,386,408 1,246,315
EQUITY HE #5
Equity attributable to shareholders A2 ) B R A RE 25
of the Company
Issued capital AT AR 33 253,329 250,538
Reserves ] 35(a) 853,386 757,162
Proposed final dividend K % B 13 71,913 61,422
1,178,628 1,069,122
Non-controlling interest I e i) 1 W 2 207,780 177,193
TOTAL EQUITY HE £5 48 3 1,386,408 1,246,315

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 W —FAE_H -+ A HREHGHELTHT

February 2015. DL 8§ o
Arunee Watcharananan Thanakorn Seriburi 2541
Director # 3 Director # %
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B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEER

B &

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AL AR RES
Available-
for-sale
Share Share Property  investment PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium Contributed option  Capital ~ Merger revaluation revaluation  reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account  Surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve profits  dividend Total  interest equity
Erail
L 4] fE o R fik il fiE  RAER EOMENE AR it | FlRE
Wk BER  EER il i Bl EERE Bl R il R MRS A i ERAE
Note  US§000  USS000  USS000 LSS0 USSO0 - USS00 USS000 US§O0 OSSO0 USSo0 OSSOl DS LSSl USSo US§ o
Wit Fifr Fifr #Fifr Eufr Eifr T Fifi #ifr Efr Eofr Eifr Fifi #ifi Eifr #ifr
(note 35 (note 35 (note 33 (note 35 (note 35
(a)i)) ()fi) — (a)(iv) (@) ()i
(k33 (a5 (s (s (W
(a)ii)) (@)fi) — (a)(iv) (@) (i)
At 1 January 2014 e Sl i 150538 1319153 - 5339 13109 (1612918) 2964 164 110998 74095 6758 6Ll 1069022 177193 L4631
Profit for the year RAEER - - - - - - - - - - DBIgS - DBIgs 4410 29586
Other comprehensive income R 2R
for the year:
Exchange diffrences on translation SRR HSIRZ
of foreign operations EREH - - - - - - - - - (313%4) - - (3134 00 (4334)
Surplus on revaluation of HEMTEFaR 15 - - - - - - 3844 - - - - - 3844 - 3844
office premises, net
Income tax efect it 3 - - - - - - (B - - - - il - )
Share of other comprehensive A2 s
income of:
Joint ventures AErE 2(a) - - - - - - - - - (564) - - (364) - (564)
Associates BEA N(a) - - - - - - - - - (926) - - (926) - (926)
Deregistration of a subsidiary HH-AREAR - - - - - - - - (13) (229) I§] - (103) - (229)
Disposal of subsidiaries and HEREADR-% 3 - - - - - (1,40) (164)  (6474)  (77%) 1114 - (7.954) - (7.954)
ajoint venture AErE
Total comprehensive income LR eE
for the year - - - - - - 1,768 (l64)  (6487)  (40859) 139,15 - 13410 SIA3L ledsdl
Issue of shares upon exercise RiEEREREIRE 3 PACII ] - ) - - - - - - (317) EITARNEN ] - BB
of share options
Capital injection by non-controlling 345 1R 5 B
equity holders EAEA - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1358 1358
Reduction of share premium R E 3 - (154364) 1,524,364 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Change of non-controlling interests ¥ e 12
without a change in control (BHERS) - - - - - - - - 3 3 15 - il (21) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling % AP Bl k.
equity holders (e 3 - - - - - - - - - - - - - (B8 (3181
2013 final dividend declared FR-F-ZEANRAE - - - - - - - - - - - (6179 (61,739) - (6179)
2004 nterim dividend ZR-WETARE B - - (550) - - - - - - - - - B - B
2014 final dividend proposed RE-Z-WERARA 13 - - (119D) - - - - - - - - 9B - - -
Transfer in/{out) HAH) - - - - - - - - 11,168 - (0168 - - - -
At 31 December 2014 REZ-WELZH
Zt-H 153309 10,740¢ 1396,882¢ S 13000% (1L612018)F 31,392 SO I568F B9 855260 71913 LIT8628 207780 1386408
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 B BE R 2 7
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREER
Year ended 31 December 2014 & E - F—W4E+_H=+—H ILF)¥
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
AL AR R
Available-
for-sale
Share Share Property  investment PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium Contributed option  Capitll ~ Merger revaluation revaluation  reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account  Surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve  profits  dividend Total interest equity
wikiE
LEff 4] g Bk fik Gl fiE  RAER EOMENE AR it | FlME
Wk EEE  EER il i Bl EERE Bl R i R MRS A i ERAE
Note  US§000  USS000  USS000 USS000 USSO0 LSS0l USSO00 USO USSn0 USSO0 USSn0 DS Usson USso US§ o
Wit Fifr Fifr #Fifr Enfr Eifr T Fifr #Fifr Anfr Eofn EFfr Fifi #ifi Eifr #ifr
(note 35 (note 35 (note 35 (note 35 (note 35
(a)ii)) ()fi) — (a)(iv) (@) (i)
(k33 (W5 (s (Hbss (B
(a)ii)) (@)fii) — (a)(iv) (@) (a)loi)
At 1 January 2013 e St i 6854 1,501,569 - 8470 13109 (1,612918) 29630 18 &8 453 B9 51300 91869 116 1092555
Profit for the year RAERA - - - - - - - - - - 186201 - 18611 17448 203,699
Other comprehensive income R 2R
for the year:
Exchange diffrences on translation SRR HSIR L
of foreign operations EREH - - - - - - - - - 13,031 - - 13,03 1,206 15,838
Deficit on revaluation of HERTERERAR
office premises, net 15 - - - - - - (6) - - - - - (0) - (0)
Share of other comprehensive et 2w
income of:
Joint ventures HEtE 2(a) - - - - - - - - - 4389 - - 4389 - 4389
Associates BAAR 1(a) - - - - - - - - - 1821 - - 1821 - 1821
Disposal of available-for-sale HET &2 R%
investments - - - - - - - () - - - - () - ()
Total comprehensive income ERRTREAE
for the year - - - - - - (6) (1) - ns 18 - N6 1964 235680
Issue of shares upon exercise Rt RRER R Rk
of share options 3 3,084 17,584 - (3,111) - - - - - - - - 18,157 - 18,157
Capital injection by non-controlling ~ JE4% 1 R K
equity holders HINLS - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,065 1,065
Disposal of a subsidiary i A1 UG - - - - - - - - - - - - - 101 101
2012 final dividend declared ER-F-CERYRA - - - - - - - - - - - (5139 (51392 - (5139)
2013 interim dividend SRR 13 - - - - - - - - - - (013 - () - ()
2013 final dividend proposed BRZF-ZEAMRA 13 - - - - - - - - - - (o14)  el4n - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling % P Bl HdE
equity holders e - - - - - - - - - - - - - (1753) (113B)
Transer inflou) B - - - - - - - - B - (%) - - -
At 31 December 2013 RoZ-ZELCR
=t-H 250538 1519,153* - 5359% 13,109 (1612918) 29,624 164 110998* 74093 6ITST8F 61410 1069020 170193 L4631
*

US$853,386,000 (2013: US$757,162,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 B A R o =
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
2014 2013
ks —E =5
Note US$’000 US$’000
B itk FIL T FL T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING HENHZHSRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax g A iy ¥4z Al 384,280 249,418
Adjustments for: B
Bank and other interest income SRAT B oAb R B WA 7 (12,379) (9,098)
Changes in fair value of investment properties BHEWENRMEE) 7 618 (1,497)
Finance costs T 5 B AR 8 50,522 50,842
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W R 9 72,834 59,716
Amortisation of intangible assets T G R 8 9 1,726 -
Amortisation of land lease prepayments FE AT R 9 2,622 2,285
Depreciation of biological assets stated at e AR U R wH TR K
cost less accumulated depreciation WAEBREIIRZ EY
and impairment Bz Pt 9 29,779 28,565
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - R
and equipment, net A4 s 1R A 9 640 809
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale R R TR ' <
investments ZEH 9 - 13
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary PR KB AR Z WA 7 (225) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and H B B A F e — K
a joint venture HBEEFEZIWE 7 (6,502) (1,158)
(Write back of impairment)/impairment A W B MR ok AL [l 43 )
of trade receivables, net DA 9 (71) 1,051
Net changes in fair value of EYEEARMEZ
biological assets S E) A 6 (9,287) (10,680)
Share of profits and losses of: R A i P K s 4R
Joint ventures GEAE 21(a) (21,670) (20,969)
Associates W 2 O W] 22(a) (20,577) (13,331)
472,310 335,966
Decrease in inventories e & 18,019 17,042
Increase in biological assets A ) B (41,047) (57,077)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JE W B 5 B ik S S 15 3 (19,425) (15,497)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits AR - &4 KAl
and other receivables JRE IRk (34 ) s A (60,334) 2,317
Increase in trade payables JE £} B2 5 M sk 3 14,928 2,654
Increase in other payables and accruals Atk A W Ak K T AR
22 5 m 44,560 40,860
Cash generated from operations REEEZHE 429,011 326,265
Interest paid [EEEE D= (59,708) (55,644)
Income tax paid et R (61,620) (53,616)
Net cash flows from operating activities RBEHMGZHE
i B B 307,683 217,005
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ZAEBRERER
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F— N4+ H=+—H IL4)¥
2014 2013
—F N4 R =8
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt it FoF FILFo
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREGH B SR
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment W R B (315,286) (268,971)
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment WE—H B RS (7,697) (1,125)
Increase in other non-current liabilities JE 7 B A 5 8,416 1,198
Increase in land lease prepayments FH AT 1 A A B B (11,156) (11,195)
Increase in other non-current assets HAth IR 37 B & A B (8,788) (14,706)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wit S Y g 2 D 36 (84,511) (10,543)
Disposal of subsidiaries and a joint venture MEKE AR R —FK
BB 37 49,414 1,009
Dividends received from joint ventures WeB A A R E 8,444 8,226
Dividends received from associates W B U 2 ] BB 9,838 9,608
Proceeds from disposal of property, WEwmE - WEK&
plant and equipment BdiEET e 1,216 2,265
Proceeds from disposal of land lease prepayments H} £ A} + HufH & 2 i 15 3k 6 10,049 -
Proceeds from disposal of HETHEHEZRE
available-for-sale investments Ak ] - 656
Receipt from PRC government on TR 5 % 2 10 A€ H B BT
factories relocation B s E - 5,408
Interest received B EPs 12,379 9,098
Net cash flow used in investing activities BEFHEH N Z B &
it (327,682) (269,072)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEHHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank and other borrowings BT 4 SR AT B Al A K 1,474,030 1,715,503
Repayment of bank and other borrowings 18 352 SR AT B H At A 3 (1,327,258) (1,274,641)
Capital injection from non-controlling e 4 o) ek R A B R
equity holders HEAE AR 2,358 1,065
Increase in pledged deposits O HE A8 77 2k 3 (10,534) (27,561)
Increase in time deposits with maturity B HEB=MAZ
over 3 months S 1 AF 38 (73,869) (95,931)
Dividend paid [REE S-S (117,308) (83,720)
Dividends paid to non-controlling SCAY T I Fae ol ek i A
equity holders J BRI S (23,181) (17,523)
Proceeds from exercise of share options A7 158 % e A T 45k JEL 13,383 18,157
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from R E () iRz
financing activities BHEenRem (62,379) 235,349
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH HERHEFHED
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CCLAVE: V¥ (82,378) 183,282
Cash and cash equivalents at EMZ B & RB4
beginning of year LED 374,140 183,154
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A RE B A2 B) 2 5 B H (4,621) 7,704
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BERZHE LB &
AT END OF YEAR FEM 27 287,141 374,140
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% B B & R 2 A

Statement of Financial Position

B %k R &

31 December 2014 —~&F— N4+ _H=+—H

2014 2013
L sl
Note US$’000 US$’000
Hf it FF FLFo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I I B ¥ e
Property, plant and equipment L E RN Y X 15 208 320
Investments in subsidiaries T B g A | B 20 1,846,477 1,846,477
Due from subsidiaries JRE WAL B} g A ) ik VE 20 307,158 -
Total non-current assets #8 Ik B 2,153,843 1,846,797
CURRENT ASSETS B &
Due from subsidiaries JRE WL R Je A ] Kk JE 20 163,244 503,659
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR -~ BER
A 8 WM ik 26 381 352
Time deposits with maturity over three months EIH HBB=MHZ
R W K 27 - 10,613
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kBEEEEY 27 30,664 72,288
Total current assets HE B & 194,289 586,912
CURRENT LIABILITIES L =K
Due to subsidiaries JREASF Bf e A =] kI 20 679 4,349
Other payables and accruals L Al A IR T % PR 29 8,346 8,241
Bank borrowings SRATIE 3K 30 40,600 10,106
Total current liabilities #E B £ 08 49,625 22,696
NET CURRENT ASSETS R UpE g 144,664 564,216
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A8 7 Dol B £
LIABILITIES 2,298,507 2,411,013
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik I B £1 £
Bank borrowings SRAT A K 30 355,248 394,146
Other non-current liabilities oAl IR B A R 31 608 543
Total non-current liabilities #8JE B A 355,856 394,689
NET ASSETS jog-uixic 1,942,651 2,016,324
EQUITY HE 3
Issued capital OB AT AR 33 253,329 250,538
Reserves ik A5 35(b) 1,617,409 1,704,364
Proposed final dividend AR A B S 13 71,913 61,422
TOTAL EQUITY HE 25 4B 5 1,942,651 2,016,324

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

February 2015.

Arunee Watcharananan

Director #

SUE &
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R &= MY &E

Year ended 31 December 2014 & E - F—W4E+_H=+—H ILF)¥

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda and ordinary shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company are
located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and 21st Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt

Road, Hong Kong, respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were

involved in the following activities:

o manufacture and sale of animal feed products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”)

° breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic

animals in Vietnam

o manufacture and sale of value-added processed food

products in Vietnam

° manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline products

o manufacture and sale of motorcycles (the motorcycle
business was disposed during the year) and automotive

parts and trading of machinery

° investment and property holding

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b % H

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for office
premises, investment properties and certain biological assets,
which have been measured at fair value or at fair value less
costs of disposal, where appropriate. These financial statements
are presented in United States dollars (“US$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“US$’000”) except when

otherwise indicated.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full, except for
the unrealised loss which are eliminated only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit

balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without

loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

B AR

n

2.1
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2.2

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as

appropriate.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following amendments to IFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities and IAS 27 (2011)
Separate Financial statements-

Amendments to [FRS10,
[FRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)

Investment Entities

Amendments to [AS 32 Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation- Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36 Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

The adoption of these amendments to IFRSs has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation

that is not yet effective for the current year.

2.1

2.2
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the

Group:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’®
Amendments to [AS 16 Amendments to [AS 16 Property, Plant and
and TAS 38 Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible
Assets- Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amoritisation*
Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of [FRSs!
[FRSs 2010-2012 cycle
Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of [FRSs!

[FRSs 2011-2013 cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and
amendments to IFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact

on the consolidated financial statements.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO.

LTD.

b E B ER

~ F

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that

control commences until the date that control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.
Joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are arrangements of which the
Group has joint control, established by contracts
requiring unanimous consent for decisions about the
activities that significantly affect the arrangements’
returns. They are classified and accounted for as

follows:

(i) Joint operation — when the Group has rights
to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to an arrangement, it accounts for
each of its assets, liabilities and transactions,
including its share of those held or incurred

jointly, in relation to the joint operation.

Joint venture — when the Group has rights
only to the net assets of the arrangements,
it accounts for its interest using the equity

method, as for associates (note 2.4(c)).

24 FESHHERBE

(a)

(b)
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies. Significant
influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another
entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The

cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees,
after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant
influence commences until the date that significant

influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount
of the investment including any long-term interest
that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has

made payments on behalf of the investee.
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(a) has control or joint control over the

Group;

has significant influence over the Group;

or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group; or

B AR

A H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Related parties (continued)

(ii)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint

ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

and

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2.4(1)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common
control are accounted for using the pooling-of-interests
method. Under the pooling-of-interests method, the
assets and liabilities of the acquiree are stated at their
historical carrying values at the date of acquisition and
the difference between the consideration transferred
for a business combination under common control
and the total of (i) the acquisition date historical
net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the
acquiree combined by the Group is accounted for as a
contribution from or a distribution to, as appropriate,
holding companies in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Accordingly, there is no goodwill
or a gain on bargain purchase as a result of a business
combination under common control. The results of the
acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market
values on the basis of annual professional valuations
performed at each financial year end. Changes arising
on the revaluation of office premises are dealt with as
movements in the property revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual premise basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
deficit previously charged.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the valuation of the office premises over their
estimated useful lives of 30 years to 50 years.

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion
of the property revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of other property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of other property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of other property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to 33.33%
9% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles and transport facilities
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of other property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.

Where the fair value of investment properties could
not be reliably determined on a continuing basis, such
properties are accounted for using the cost model in
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment i.e., stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on
the straight-line basis to write off the cost of these
investment properties over their estimated useful lives

of 20 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in

the period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner
occupied property becomes an investment property,
any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property at the date of change in use is

accounted for as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(h)

REME

'S <E/E VLR Y Eod - AQ kS
AR A REMEER > ROERE
RELEE v g R TR S ) ) DL B IDUREL £ Mk
AR,/ B A A i I AT 2 2 o 4
B Ay o P s AR AT BT 98 5 SO DA
T H RS A o A 3 S DA
A (BHE 32 5 AC) G i o BRI R
%> BE W SR HOE BUOR & LA Rl
AR DA T B3R UL o BB EA R
AL 538 o 48 R 2 WAL 4 2R i A
it AREEN -

BT A2 IR > 5% 0 S A B¢ R oy T A B
SE1CURH H - B f5 R i 5 P IR A
B> B DLBAS 25 B AT B AT A R
st A R AR o 385 T 3 i
SE204F Z Al st AT B P4 391 DL A L
B A I 5 o

HB AR B A 48 W S 2 AT ] M i
AR IR At B 2 0 A SR i P e,

W SRR M AL R B A
A T BRI o ECE YRR IR
T i 525 R 98 H IR R A R AL AT T
ZEEAMRWMT

TR -0 FF R

79



80

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B AR

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

U]

Investment properties (continued)

(i)

(ii)

any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of
the property is recognised in profit or loss in the

period the change in use took place.

any resulting increase in the carrying amount
is credited to profit or loss, to the extent the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for
that property, or restores the carrying amount
of the property to an amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the property in prior years; and any remaining
part of the increase in the carrying amount
is credited directly to equity in the property
revaluation reserve. On subsequent disposal
of the property, the relevant portion of
the property revaluation reserve realised is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

Intangible assets

A H

24 FESTHHRBE (A

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets represents customer relationship

of the Group and are stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position at cost less accumulated

amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)

and impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite

useful lives is amortised on a straight-line basis over

the assets’ estimated useful lives, from the date they

are available for use. The estimated useful lives used

for this purpose are 14-15 years. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Land lease prepayments represent costs of land use
rights paid to governmental authorities in mainland
China and Vietnam. Land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

1)

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

KeEHEE

FHLEE R AN O B 8K 2 By B B A
B IO A% 0 L B % [l R o o R AL
B o M AR AN > BEACSE 14
e A AL A A A T A AR IR IR
Bl AR P9 > AR R A L T M AL
<2 B2 RH 090 PR DL B A i AR 2R -
il 5 AR 4 I AR AN > MR BB AL LR
JEASH A AL 7 41 B R AL O Z AT
i 58 Jih A58 AL B 401 PR DA L AR 95 R H 2
HAIBR

T B A B AT o B RO R
TR AR R g o 1 P RE S o AL AL
BIH R 2 A A 5 2 35 ) LR AR 1) iR
b B A% 42 £ P RE 2 L 0T P DL AR
g -

—®2-m# 7

#

81



82

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B AR

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic
livestock and are measured at their fair value less costs
of disposal, except where the fair value cannot be
measured reliably or when the costs are not materially
different from the fair value due to short production
cycle, in those cases they are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and where appropriate,

less any accumulated depreciation.

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of
biological assets at fair value less costs of disposal and
from a change in fair value less costs of disposal of
biological assets are included in profit or loss in the

period in which it arises.

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase
price and any costs attributable in raising the biological

assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
the depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
method to write off the cost of these biological assets
over their estimated productive period of 12 months to
36 months. The expected productive period of these
biological assets is reviewed regularly, and adjusted
when appropriate. The carrying values of these
biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that

the carrying values may not be fully recoverable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of
disposal and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(m)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables and available-
for-sale investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus

transaction cost.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in “Other
income, net” in profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in “General and

administrative expenses” in profit or loss.
(ii)  Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity
investments. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at

fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale
investments are subsequently measured at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss.

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
either directly or through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no

realistic prospect of future recovery.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to “General and administrative

expenses” in profit or loss.
Available-for-sale investments carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value

For available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of

investments is impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value (continued)

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired,
an amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit
or loss, is removed from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve and recognised

in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost.
The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form

of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39
are classified as loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities
at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

“Finance costs” in profit or loss.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the

obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,

or expires.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
deferred income within other payable and accruals at
its fair value. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information is

obtainable.

Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial

recognition of any deferred income.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

The amount of the financial guarantee contracts
initially recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the terms of the guarantee as income
from guarantee issued. In addition, provision are
recognised if and when (i) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in other payables and accruals in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the
weighted average basis, and net realisable value after
making due allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the statement of cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs”

in profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business
combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
the general guidance for provisions above; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

the guidance for revenue recognition.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

(u)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the period that the costs, which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:
(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(ii) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(iii)  interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(iv)  dividend income, when the equity holders’ right

to receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by using the Black-Scholes pricing model, further
details of which are given in note 34 to the financial

statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into

the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC
government, each of the joint ventures in mainland
China is required to make specific contributions to
the state-controlled retirement plan at rates not more
than 20% (the percentage to be determined by each
of the government of the provinces, autonomous
regions or municipalities) of the total salaries of the
employees in mainland China. Certain provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities are overburdened
by the pension insurance due to higher number
of retired people, it is required to make specific
contributions at rates higher than 20% (the percentage
to be determined by each of the government of the
provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities) of
the total salaries of the employees upon approval of
the ministry of labour and the ministry of finance. The
PRC government is responsible for the pension liability
to the retired employees. The employees of the joint
ventures are entitled to a monthly pension at their
retirement dates. The joint ventures have no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the

annual contributions.

Severance allowance

The severance pay to employees in Vietnam is accrued
at the end of each reporting period for Vietnamese
employees who have more than 12 months in service
up to 31 December 2008 at the rate of one-half of
the average monthly salary for each year of service
up to 31 December 2008 in accordance with the
Labour Code, the Law on Social Insurance and related
implementing guidance in Vietnam. Commencing from
1 January 2009, the average monthly salary used in
this calculation is revised at the end of each reporting
period using the average monthly salary of the 6-month
period up to the reporting date. Any changes to the

accrued amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Severance allowance (continued)

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance effective from 1
January 2009, a subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam
and its employees are required to contribute to
an unemployment insurance fund managed by the
Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The contribution
to be paid by each party is calculated at 1% of the
lower of an employee’s basic salary and 20 times the
general minimum salary level as specified by the
Vietnam government from time to time. With the
implementation of the unemployment insurance
scheme, the Group is no longer required to provide
severance allowance for the service period after 1
January 2009.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. The
capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual
cost of the related borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

()

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are

recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s Bye-Laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United
States dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period and differences are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the United States dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into United States dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of the exchange fluctuation
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into United States dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries, which arise
throughout the year are translated into United States
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic, operating and/or
other characteristics. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis.
(a) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements are as follows:
(i) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with

future tax planning strategies.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

% H

B A R 2

3

Notes 15(e), 16(b) and 18(e) contain information

about the assumptions and estimation uncertainties

realating to valuation of property, plant and equipment,

investment properties and biological assets. Other

information about assumptions and estimation

uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in

a material adjustment in the year ending 31 December

2014 are as follows:

(i) Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment loss

of the Group’s trade receivables is based

on the evaluation of collectability and the

(ii)

aging analysis of the trade receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional

allowances may be required.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group depreciates its property, plant and
equipment on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, and after taking into
account of their estimated residual values, at
rates ranging from 2% to 33.33% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant
and equipment are placed into productive use.
The estimated useful lives and dates that the
Group places the property, plant and equipment
into productive use reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use

of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
(continued)

(iii)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and
equipment is recognised for the amount
by which the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount when events or changes
in circumstance indicate the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount of the assets, or, where appropriate,
the cash generating unit to which they belong,
is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on fair value
less costs of disposal which are based on
the best information available to reflect the
amount obtainable at the reporting date, from
the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.
For the estimation of value in use, the Group’s
management estimates future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and chooses a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
(continued)

(iv)

v)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
aging analysis of its inventories at each
reporting date, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use
in production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a product by
product basis at each reporting date and makes

allowances for obsolete items.
Provision for guarantee

Provision for guarantee are recognised if and
when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and the amount of that claim on
the Group is measured at the higher of the best
estimate of the expenditure require to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date, and the
amount initially recognised as deferred income
less cumulative amortisation. The Group
carries out regular review on the creditability
of its customers which the Group has provided
guarantee for. A provision is made based on the
assessment on the probability of cash outflow
to settle the obligation under the guarantee.
The ultimate liability due may vary from the
amounts provided and will be dependent upon

the eventual outcome of any settlement.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has five

reportable operating segments as follows:

° the China agri-food segment is engaged in the

manufacture and sale of animal feed products in the

PRG;

o the Vietnam agri-food segment is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of animal feed products, breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and
the manufacture and sale of value-added processed food

products in Vietnam;

o the biochemical segment is engaged in the manufacture

and sale of chlortetracycline products;

° the industrial segment is engaged in the manufacture
and sale of motorcycles (the motorcycle business was
disposed during the year) and automotive parts and

trading of machinery; and

° the investment and property holding segment is
engaged in leasing properties owned by the Group and

investments in group companies.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance

costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits,
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings, income
tax payables and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are

managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.

4
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Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(a)

Reportable operating segments

The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and

certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information

for the Group’s reportable operating segments for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Group

Year ended 31 December 2014

Segment revenue
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Reconciliation:

Elimination of intersegment sales

Consolidated revenue

Segment results
The Group

Share of profits and losses of:

Joint ventures
Associates

Reconciliation:

Elimination of segment results
Bank interest income

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Vg L'ON
HETFHREF
vig. |iba:

WEEA
A 2 A B

BEBA

UEES
REH
WAt e ) 12
Bt
AEEFE
B aw

WHEE
AR Z R
HATHL B

0t 7

Wl

A H

4 RETEEHR

(a) TERKESE
VLT 3R A A 4 1 45 W) 2 R AR 43
RERE R R R -EZ4 T2
HE+—HILEERZBA - Hig Kk
A TEE - AEEHXER -
A4
BEF—NETL A= —HILEE
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food Biochemical ~ Industrial holding
operations ~ operations  operations  operations  operations Total
TERE MBRY RERIE
RREE  mEER RER TEER BREE ki
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000
FrTrn  FrTrz Frfrx FrTrz Frtrz Frlz
3,435,406 2,073,140 110,823 - 75 5,619,444
- - 6,377 - - 6,377
3,435,406 2,073,140 117,200 — 75 5,625,821
(6,377)
5,619,444
211,591 169,337 17,225 (8,667) (2,535) 386,951
4,063 - - 17,607 - 21,670
10,895 - - 9,682 - 20,577
226,549 169,337 17,225 18,622 (2,535) 429,198
(68)
5,672
(50,522)
384,280
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

4

b E B E R 2

Year ended 31

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(a)

Reportable operating segments (continued)

Group

Year ended 31 December 2014

China
agri-food
operations
R A
RES
US$’000
FIL T
Other segment information Tl EE B
Depreciation and amortisation WE LS 31,635
Capital expenditure* AR 251,335
Additions of other B oAbk
non-current assets** TG 112,259

k3

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
December 2014 #E _F—WHE+ _H =+ —H IL4EE

4 REIEER(E)

(a) HERLLSE(E)
A 5 W

BRE-Z—4EF A=+ —HILEE

Investment

and

Vietnam property

agri-food  Biochemical ~ Industrial holding
operations  operations  operations  operations Total

T R A BRIk

REEH  RRE O TRRE BERER EL
US$°000  US$000  US$000  US$°000  US$’000
Frtn Frtrn Fritxn FriTtxn FrTx

69,225 5,543 21 5317 106,961
80,250 4,940 1 42 336,568
37,892 567 - - 150,718

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,
plant and equipment and land lease prepayments, but

excludes assets from acquisition of subsidiaries.

Additions of other non-current assets consist of (i)
non-current assets from acquisition of subsidiaries,
and (ii) additions to non-current biological assets and

other non-current assets.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—W4E+_H =+ —H L4 )%
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFHER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWUEHRKLEIE(E)
Group A4
At 31 December 2014 R_-F-NWEF+_A=Z1+—H
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food  Biochemical ~ Industrial holding
operations  operations  operations  operations  operations Total
WERY EERA LIRS
BmER  BRER  RUER 0 LEER  BERER Fx
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
#nfrx  FErxfr Frfr Frfxr FErfr  FrTx
Segment assets AEEE 1,353,580 1,081,017 95,512 95,065 497,781 3,122,955
Reconciliation: WEEHE
Elimination of intersegment MBI Z R B
receivables (468,758)
Unallocated assets RABE FE 499,821
Total assets &R 3,154,018
Segment liabilities AHAR 819,037 191,877 17,303 4,576 9,022 1,041,815
Reconciliation: WEEHE
Elimination of intersegment MBI 2 e A G 8
payables (468,758)
Unallocated liabilities RABAHE 1,194,553
Total liabilities A 1,767,610
Other segment information K BER
[nvestments in joint ventures REBLEENRE 20,458 - - 70,445 - 90,903
[nvestments in associates RIS A F R E 38,975 - - 19,013 - 57,988
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2014 B E _~F—NE+ _H=+—H L4 FE

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESBER (E)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKLEDIE(E)
Group N

Year ended 31 December 2013

BEZFR=FT A= —HIEaE

Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food  Biochemical Industrial holding
operations operations operations operations operations Total
TERR O ERRK 3 SES
RMER O GMER  RER TEER  BREER gLk
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
#Frtr FxTr Fxirz FxTrz FrTrz FxTx
Segment revenue AEBA
Sales to external customers HETPIHREF 3,486,746 1,808,323 118,955 - 266 5,414,290
Intersegment sales DREEZHE - - 3,197 - - 3,197
3,486,746 1,808,323 122,152 - 266 5,417,487
Reconciliation: WEIEH
Elimination of intersegment sales 4% #] < 8 £ 4G 8 (3,197)
Consolidated revenue ZaBA 5,414,290
Segment results PEESR
The Group N 21,757 37,882 19,656 (1,877) (5,095) 262,323
Share of profits and losses of: B A i ) B i 4
Joint ventures aEbE 5,055 - - 15,914 - 20,969
Associates T A+ 9,785 - - 3,546 - 13,331
226,597 37,882 19,656 17,583 (5,095) 296,623
Reconciliation: WEIEH
Elimination of segment results BN B (53)
Bank interest income BATHI BB 3,690
Finance costs 8 AR (50,842)
Profit before tax W B i i 249,418
Other segment information ot 4 & B
Depreciation and amortisation 78§ & # 24,126 60,153 5,136 2 530 90,566
Capital expenditure* BB 3 187,140 93,310 5,485 96 363 286,394
Additions of other non-current  Fi ¥ A Ik
assets** i 27,620 22319 4,746 - - 54,685
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Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4
(continued)

4

(a)

Reportable operating segments (continued)

Group

Year ended 31 December 2013

ok

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,
plant and equipment and land lease prepayments, but

excludes assets from acquisition of a subsidiary.

Additions of other non-current assets consist of (i)
non-current assets from acquisition of a subsidiary,
and (ii) additions to non-current biological assets and

other non-current assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2014 & E - F—WE+_H=+—H ILF)¥
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKLEDIE(E)
Group N
At 31 December 2013 REF-=ZFFZH=Z+—H
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food  Biochemical Industrial holding
operations operations operations operations operations Total
TERR O ERRK B8 R

RS REEE RRE O TEEE BRCRHK L
US$000  US$000  US$000  USF000  US$O00  US$000

Frtr Frtr FriTr EriTr EriTr EILTx

Segment assets SHEE R 970,585 1,013,420 109,301 131,776 525,884 2,750,966
Reconciliation: EEE
Elimination of intersegment A8 2 e B

receivables (500,595)
Unallocated assets RO TE & 509,117
Total assets Mg E 2,759,488
Segment liabilities AEAR 746,707 186,676 22,072 37,302 8,854 1,001,611
Reconciliation: EEE
Elimination of intersegment MBI A 3G B

payables (500,595)
Unallocated liabilities AT AR 1,012,157
Total liabilities HAE 1,513,173

Other segment information s EE R

Investments in joint ventures REBLENRE 20,287 - - 104,148 - 124,435
[nvestments in associates P A F R E 36,873 - - 12,781 - 49 654
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Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4
(continued)

(b) Geographical information

Bl

ReE>HER (E)
(b) HEEH

(i) Revenue from external customers (i) KENKEFZHA

2014 2013
R R =
US$’°000 US$’000
By an FEoLFoo
Mainland China Hh R K 3,489,961 3,528,259
Vietnam Fie) 1,970,288 1,749,314
Elsewhere oAb 3 5 159,195 136,717
5,619,444 5,414,290
The revenue information shown above is based AW AR ¥R B R AE H

on the location of the customers. S %E o

(ii) Non-current assets (ii) EREEE

2014 2013
R R =4
US$’000 US$’000
e an FEIL T
Mainland China L PN 1,000,313 717,344
Vietnam o B 431,127 401,968
Elsewhere Al 3 5 29,520 27,501
1,460,960 1,146,813

The non-current assets information shown
above is based on the location of assets and
excludes financial instruments and deferred tax

assets.
(c) Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,

there was no single external customer that contributed

10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

REVENUE 5

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents: (i)
the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-

added tax and government surcharges, and after allowances

WA

We N s IR R ACSR B 2 8 SR> 4R ¢ () BRIEE
Tt B BORF B e > B fn BB & & B 5 P g
Z BB SR A RGO RE K%

for goods returned and trade discounts; and (ii) rental income BREGNHERA -
from investment and property holding operations.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA T :
Group
A4
2014 2013
- S 1! F4 2 —EF—-=
US$’000 US$’000
FF FILFo
Sales of goods from: SHET MR -
China agri-food operations o R R AR SRS
— Feed business — il Rl B 3,435,406 3,486,746
Vietnam agri-food operations R R AR
— Feed business — BBl B 867,373 843,222
— Farm business —HIHER 1,045,610 858,191
— Food business — R EH 160,157 106,910
Biochemical operations HALER 110,823 118,955
5,619,369 5,414,024
Rental income from investment and BERWEERETZ
property holding operations MERA 75 266
5,619,444 5,414,290
NET CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF 6 EYPEEARBEZEEFE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group’s net changes in fair value of biological assets
represent the difference in fair value less costs of disposal from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014. Net fair value changes
consist of (i) realised fair value changes of US$74,623,000
(2013: US$64,361,000) in respect of biological assets held
as at 1 January 2014 and (ii) unrealised fair value changes in
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal as at

31 December 2014 of US$83,910,000 (2013: US$75,041,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements

BF 7% R & M
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
7 OTHER INCOME, NET 7 Hit W A F 88
An analysis of other income, net is as follows: H B A FHESHWT
Group
A 4 1
2014 2013
e L= ey
US$’000 US$’000
B n FKILT T
Bank interest income SRAT A B 5,672 3,690
Other interest income HAb A Bk A 6,707 5,408
Rental income HERA 2,500 2,570
Government grants BT # BY 6,279 4,441
Gain on relocation of factories TR 28 U 25 - 3,448
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary FES — K P B 2 W] 2 Weak 225 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and HEREARR—XK
a joint venture GR-goe Pl & 6,502 1,158
Income from sales of consumables and 59 8RB b I B
packaging materials BB 3,201 4,398
Changes in fair value of derivative A Em T HARMEES)
financial instruments (709) -
Changes in fair value of investment BREWHEARALE T
properties (note 16) (P 5E16) (618) 1,497
Foreign exchange differences, net A s P 5 28 B (4,314) (9,764)
Others HoAt 1,080 1,482
26,525 18,328
Government grants included above are subsidies or incentives b bt TR A B G B A A A A R R A
from the government in respect of certain investments of the BEIRFR R B R HE B UE B M T 18 2w Bk
Group in the agricultural industry, production process and SE RN o A I M 25 R A B 3 SEAT 1] 1 A B AT
areas promoted by the government in mainland China. There Mok B EE - HBE SN AERZ T
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to W B JRF A B 42 B S AR A A e IR TR UK
these grants. Government grants received for which related AW (MtaE298%31) o

expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position (notes 29 and 31).
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FINANCE COSTS 8

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥
B 3% B A<
W B A A AT R

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Group
A KW
2014 2013
e L e
US$’000 US$’000
B o e n
Interest expense on bank and DL AR A S IR Y
other borrowings wholly HAT B L AbAE R Z
repayable: FEER -
Within five years HERN 56,070 57,071
Not within five years AELEN 4,578 -
Total interest expense A B A 60,648 57,071
Less: Interest expense capitalised* W R B B AL (10,126) (6,229)
50,522 50,842
* The interest expense have been capitalised at a rate of 3.5% — * F R F & AR T3 3 4R R 23.5% % 10.3%

10.3% per annum (2013: 4.5% — 10.3%).

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
Cost of inventories sold CHEFREA
Depreciation of property, plant LUE )

and equipment Rz e

Amortisation of land lease prepayments TH AT A R S

Depreciation of biological assets stated i WA Uk R wE IR &
at cost less accumulated depreciation WAHBE KRR Z
and impairment G YT

Amortisation of intangible assets TR & e 8
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BR B A 0% A

A 45 1) ok B A ¥R A A Bk (BEA) T A4
JH

Group

AHH
2014 2013

S L

Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt itk B/ n FIL T
4,725,605 4,724,122
15 72,834 59,716
17 2,622 2,285
18 29,779 28,565
19 1,726 -
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B 7% R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

9

b#% B B & R 2 A

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9 BB AR (&)
Group
A4
2014 2013
—Z 4 R —=
Note US$’°000 US$’000
A B o Ere n
(Write back of impairment)/impairment &Y B 5 Bk 2k
of trade receivables, net (VAL BT B8, AR A 25(a) (71) 1,051
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE K
and equipment, net W R 640 809
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HETHHEZ
investment BEER - 13
Minimum lease payments of leasehold FE L R - B
land and properties, plant and SRz REHEZ
machinery under operating lease T AR B A sk 4 40,343 36,217
Auditors’ remuneration A% S B T 4 2,793 1,461
Employee benefit expenses & B 18 A 52
(including directors’ (1955 2 W 4 — Bk 10)
remuneration — note 10):
Wages, salaries and benefits in kind T~ ¥4 RIEB LR 322,334 302,371
Pension scheme contributions BAR 4tk 24,021 21,224
346,355 323,595
Rental income* FHE W A+ (2,575) (2,836)
Foreign exchange differences, net AT A S BB 4,314 9,764
* The amount comprised rental income of US$75,000 (2013: * ZAHANAIEASNRE R Lk

US$266,000) included in revenue from the investment and
property holding operations and of US$2,500,000 (2013:
US$2,570,000) included in other income from the China agri-

food operations.
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10

N

¥ BH B A R D 8

Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to Section 78 of

Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 622), with reference to Section 161 of the predecessor

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2014 B E _~F—NE+ _H=+—H L4 FE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10

EEME

R85BT 0 7 ¥ A R B (6223) BE R 115878
B E > W2 7% Wi By i U A B GR) (323F)

161k > EHMEWEWT ¢

Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Bonus Total
B
HEH - R Bika
e e e sk e ok
Note Uss’o0o Uss'000 Uss oo Uss’o0o Us$ 000
Wit FLFI FrFr ErL T FLFI EL T
Year ended 31 December 2014 BKEZZ N4
ToRAE R
Executive directors: rESE:
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont R EE - 1,174 - - 1,174
Mr. Adirek Sripratak b 3551y e - - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi ERREL - 532 - 113 645
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont LRSS - - - - -
M. Bai Shanlin HERSEE - 757 8 320 1,085
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg - 563 - 74 637
Mr. Anan Athigapanich BEREA - 840 - 128 968
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont WA - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan & £ - - - - -
- 3,866 8 635 4,509
Non-executive director: FoNESE:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont LEY ks - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FHITER
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew B EAE 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresJ 2 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul /4 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej & 4 31 - - - 31
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon &: (i) 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ remuneration EHMELEE 155 3,866 8 635 4,664
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

H B EF R 2 A

10 E=ME (&)

(continued)
Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits scheme
Fees in kind contribution Bonus Total
M-
R R Bikg
fie REeRH it e B
Note Uss’00o Uss 000 Uss 0o Uss 000 Uss oo
W#  ErTx ErTr FrLTr FrTr FrTr
Year ended 31 December 2013 T St
TERZEA—HIEEE
Executive directors: BfEE:
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont i R - 1,184 - - 1,184
Mr. Adirek Sripratak BNk - - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi RN LS - 532 - - 532
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont E RN - - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HEREE - 752 1 401 1,160
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg s - 471 - 58 529
Mr. Anan Athigapanich HEREE - 833 - 41 1,074
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont £ 2L - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan & £ - - - - -
- 311 7 700 4479
Non-executive director: FBfTHEE
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont AR - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FHITEH
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew B 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isres 2 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul /6 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Ji 4 31 - - - 3
Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach Yanyong Phuangrachft 4 (ii) 15 - - - 15
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari VimooktayonZ £ (i) 8 - - - 8
147 - - - 147
Total directors’ remuneration §$MQ%§E 147 3,712 1 700 4,626
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2014 & E - F—WE+_H=+—H ILF)¥
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10 EE=M<E (&)
(continued)
Notes: it -
(i) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 25 (i) Y = o 1 = e ok TN E B R Y YA
September 2013 JEBATH F
(ii) Resigned as independent non-executive director on 26 June (ii) WoF—=4ENA SN HEBHEE L IR
2013 TH#H
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or T TSI 0 BB = i EE B R R R AR T e 2
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2013: nil). R (B =4 fE) o
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 EUESHHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three N TR AR B B3 (SR =
(2013: three) directors. Details of their remuneration are set A 34n) B > K4 2 FE TR bk
out in note 10 above. The remuneration (including salaries, ffsE10 e B R (B — =48 : ) FEESH
allowances and benefits in kind) of the remaining two (2013: Z 4 (R FEH I HEBE IEB 4R 25) L4
two) non-directors, was approximately US$2,195,000 (2013: 21958 E L (ZF—=4 : 2193 EIL) o
US$2,193,000) in total.
2014 2013
e S 11 K ZREAg
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
L #H EAHH
US$968,000 to US$1,032,000 968,000 JC #1,032,0003 76
(equivalent to $7,500,001 (FH 3 747,500,001 8 50 £
HK to HK$8,000,000) 8,000,000% JG ) - 1
US$1,032,000 to US$1,097,000 1,032,0003 78 £1,097,0003 76
(equivalent to HK$8,000,001 (FH 48,000,001 % 76 2
to HK$8,500,000) 8,500,000%5 7)) 1 -
US$1,161,000 to US$1,226,000 1,161,0003€ 6 % 1,226,0003 5T
(equivalent to HK$9,000,001 (FH & 149,000,001 # 7C =
to HK$9,500,000) 9,500,000% JG) 1 1
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

12

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in

Hong Kong during the year (2013: nil).

The subsidiaries operating in mainland China and Vietnam
are subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2013: 25%)
and 22% (2013: 25%) respectively on their taxable income
according to the PRC and Vietnam corporate income tax laws.
In accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations in
the PRC and Vietnam, certain subsidiaries of the Group in

PRC and Vietnam enjoy various income tax exemptions or

n

12

Bl

FriEw

A AR [ I A AR B R A T A U e AT ] R R B
WA > Bt AR T A 47 JBE P9 AR A 9 ) 74 B 488 A
(ZB =48 -

R o 1B K e b A SR R R BB >
Hh 588 2 B R A ) Tk R R M A 43
WBR25% (ZF— =40 25%) R22% (&
— AR 1 25%) SR AR B o MR BE P I M e
Z B BB S ) B ) o A A [ o I R ek
M2 T HE A 7AW e sl i sz

reductions.
Group
A% 4 [
2014 2013
e S UE: 2 e SN2
US$’000 US$’000
E VT FTTx
Current — mainland China AR — o [ K
Charge for the year AR BE S 63,289 58,908
Over-provision in prior years A 25 R (5,218) (4,942)
Current — Vietnam ARAE — R
Charge for the year Y NGy 11,819 2,599
Under-provision in prior years 4R A5 201 -
Deferred (note 32) R 4L (FfF5E32) 18,353 (10,806)
Total tax expense for the year A4 J3E L TE 48 57 88,444 45,759
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for mainland China and Vietnam in
which the Group principally operates to the tax expense at the

effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable tax

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2014 B E _~F—NE+ _H=+—H L4 FE

INCOME TAX (continued) 12 Fii8% (&)

rates (i.e. statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

e v 1 K e B (A 5 T 2 B T B ) 1Y
58 LA FT S DA OB &R BB S i
M a R > SRIE B (ML ERR) EHK
PR Z MR 2HMT

Group
A 45 M
2014 2013
e L2 SRZ4E
US$’000 % US$’000 %
FiLFr FEx T

Profit before tax [k . i ¥ A1) 384,280 249,418
Tax expense at statutory tax rate i i BT SR B 83,478 21.7 62,355 25.0
Lower tax rates for specific provinces %45 & 24 5 Hb [ B8 % J= 5

or enacted by local tax authority Z AR B R (17,573) (4.6) (21,148) (8.5)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% or A SRR P KR Z

10% on the distributable profit WA~ GEAER

of the Group's subsidiaries, Tk 2 2 ] W 43 T A1)

joint ventures and associates BT A5 %EK10%

in mainland China ZHE 13,737 3.6 (4,382) (1.8)
Effect of withholding tax on Hils % B Z BBt 7,780 2.0 9,726 3.9

technical service fee
Adjustments in respect of current AAEA B DA WA Y (5,017) (1.3) (4,942) (2.0)

tax of prior years T o 4
Profits and losses attributable to JRE A 8 A 3 B 8 A W

joint ventures and associates i A % i 48 (7,314) (1.9) (8,575) (3.4)
Income not subject to tax i VN (1,680) (0.4) (1,681) (0.7)
Expenses not deductible for tax NGIEF ] 10,095 2.6 7,581 3.0
Tax losses not recognised RIEHBHREEH 4,677 1.2 6,896 2.8
Tax losses from prior years utilised 5 ) DA AR B R i - - (271) (0.1)
Others oAty 261 0.1 200 0.1
Tax expense at the Group’s oA B A BB R G

effective tax rate ik S 88,444 23.0 45,759 18.3

The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to US$7,794,000 (2013: US$8,958,000)
and US$4,830,000 (2013: US$2,862,000), respectively, are
included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

and associates” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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b B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—W4E+_H =+ —H L4 )%
13 DIVIDENDS 13 KRE
Group
A% 4 [
2014 2013
SEemE SRS
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve Fo T
Interim — HK$0.017 (equivalent to Hp T — 4 B A i &
approximately US 0.219 cents) W 40 i 45 S8 JB0.01 73 7T
(2013: HK$0.010 (equivalent to (FH 20 #90.2 19541l
approximately US 0.129 cents)) (ZF—=4F 1 0.0105T
per ordinary share and convertible (FHZE Y 490.1293411))
preference share 55,569 32,328
Proposed final — HK$0.022 B R — B R K
(equivalent to approximately W 40 i 45 S JB0.0229 7T
US 0.284 cents) (2013: HK$0.019 (FH 481 #90.2843 A1)
(equivalent to approximately (ZF— =41 0.019%0
US 0.245 cents)) per ordinary share (FH &R £10.2453E41l))
and convertible preference share 71,913 61,422
127,482 93,750
The proposed final dividend for the year is calculated based on AAEEE 2 A R B IR AERA T
the number of shares in issue on the date of this annual report BEAT B A 3 2 AN ZE A R R AR e R
and subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at A F ) U o

the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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b E B ER

~ F

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
and convertible preference shares used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, adjusted to reflect the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at nil
consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive share

options of the Company.

14
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

14

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14

b#% B B & R 2 A

TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based

on the following data:

AAFARREGzEREN (F)

B 5 A e S P U ML DA R R

2014 2013
L
US$’000 US$’000
FiL T B on
Earnings i A
Profit for the year attributable to FH R T 54 I SRR A T 4 o ¥6i
shareholders of the Company, Z AR ) B HROAR AT A i
used in the basic and diluted
earnings per share calculation 251,425 186,211
2014 2013
R L

Number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares in issue
during the year, used in the
basic earnings per share

calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted

average number of ordinary shares:

W 3 e B vl 45 B
1 O B B

PR G B B A i ) 2
ACAE TR AT 2 I &
T $5 e A8 S M R - 3

5 R — IR A
TS 3

25,232,151,792

25,005,365,378

— Share options — i B B 54,789,854 179,424,805
Weighted average number of JH P 5 534 T 4 9 e ) 2

ordinary shares and convertible 3 e B v 45 I 4 e

preference shares, used in JIRE T 25 B

the diluted earnings per share

calculation

25,286,941,646

25,184,790,183
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2014 B E _~F—NE+ _H=+—H L4 FE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 VX -BEKRRE
Group rE
Furniture, Motor
fistares ~ vehicles and
Office Industrial Plant and and office transport  Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment faciliies in progress Total
fi k8 ik
(B &2 ITEBT  RBEREE  REARGE Bithi g ARE bk
Note US§'000 U000 US§°000 US§'000 U000 US§'000 US§°000
it Fifr #ifr Fifr Fifr #ifi Fifr Fifr
(notes (), (notes (a),(c) (note (c))
(b) and (¢) and (d))
(Wt - (Wita) (o) (i)
B)ke) Kd)
At 1 January 2014: REB-WE—f -0
Valuaton [t 40,168 - - - - - 40,168
Cost WA - Wl 4199 111,556 31,360 B 136444
Accumulated depreciaion and impairment—— EHTE WK - (173,448) (328573) (64,072) (19,200) - (585,293)
Net carrying amount KT 40,168 27001 219426 47484 12,160 229,838 819,349
Net carrying amoun: RIF:
At 1 January 2014 PEF-EE— 40,168 200,73 219426 41484 12,160 29838 819,349
Addiions kE - 7,14 24,309 15,564 21 136,184 35412
Surplus on revaluation, net B RRT 3,844 - - - - - 3,844
Acquisiion of subsidiaris HoEmE A 3 - 51 2974 710 1,006 1 10579
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEAT 3 - - - (4) - - 4
Depreciation provided during the year R 9 (825) (22,942) (29,495) (15,899) (3,613) - (72,834)
Transferin{out) B1/(H) - 51479 3,41 6988 319 (95,993) -
Transfer from investment properties BRRtknE 16 - 1,419 - - - - 1419
Disosels i - (410) (1%) (324) (329) - (1,85)
Exchange realignment (B (101) (4734) (3,763) (191) (194) (5,125) (14,728)
A3 December 2014 BB A0 43,086 318,981 148,805 53,18 11,560 B0 LTS
At 31 December 2014: REB-WEF =40
Valuaton [t 43,086 - - - - - 4,086
Cost ik - 520918 597420 129,053 31,998 385,021 1,664,410
Accumulated depreciation and impairment LAHTE R - (191,937) (348,615) (75,325) (20,438) - (636,315)
Net carrying amount KiiF 43,086 328981 248,803 53,128 11,560 385,011 1,071,181
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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b B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #& £ _~F —MN44E+_H=+—HILEE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE -BERRZE(E)
(continued)
Group (continued) AEE (&)
Furniture, Motor
fistures ~ vehicles and
Office Industrial Plant and and office transport~ Construction
premises huildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
[kl %2 HER
[E{%: T¥ET  WRRRE  REARE LCE ] AR bk
Note U000 Uss 000 US§000 U000 Uss 000 Us§ 000 Us§ 000
it Fifr Fifr Fifr Enyi Fifr FITr Fifr
(notes (@), (notes (a)(c) (note (c))
(b) and (¢)) and (d))
Wit - (W) (o) (W)
(B)k(e)) Kid)
At 1 January 2013: REF-ZE-f-H:
Valuation i 4115 - - - - - 41,152
Cost WA - 356,113 489501 19,198 1859 HLM6 106506
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BB - (150563) (306,215) (44317) (16,514) - (517,609)
Net cartying amount i i 41,151 206,150 183,306 34881 12,084 111,146 588,119
Net carrying amount: TR
At 1 January 2013 Wog-ZE-f-1 41,15 206,150 183,306 34881 12,084 111,146 586,719
Additions HE - 11,198 12,664 0612 3,064 217,661 173,00
Deficit on revaluation, net TR 0) - - - - - 0)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FREAR - - - - - 8,763 §,763
Depreciation provided during the year R 9 (795) (19.845) (24,003) (11439) (3,614) - (59.716)
Tranfer inout) #1/(H) - 61,088 4978 303 1B (109772) -
Transfer to investment properties gufEnE 16 - (759) - - - - (159)
Disposals i - (1,706) (964) (204) (200) - (3,0M4)
Exchange realignment EjiHg (183) 4147 346 {1l 353 1039 10,222
At31 December 103 REZ-ZEZAZ -0 4,168 A0 19416 41484 12160 19,838 819,349
At 31 December 2003 REF-ZFA2AZ-1:
Valuation [hfE 40,168 - - - - - 40,168
Cost W - 1 547999 111,536 31,360 19838 1364474
Accumulated depreciation and impairment~ ZatiE R E - (173,448) (328573) (64072) (19,200) - (583,299)
Net camying amount KR 40,168 mIn 219426 41484 1,160 198% 819,349
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Company

b E B ER

»

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

ME - BERRE (&)

Z NN

Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment

TR AR~ S RO A wk

2014 2013
—F A —REAE
US$’000 US$’000
By n B an
At 1 January: B—H—H":
Cost A 1,639 1,274
Accumulated depreciation BErE (1,319) (1,175)
Net carrying amount R T 1 320 99
Net carrying amount: R T
At 1 January w—H—H 320 99
Additions W 42 363
Depreciation provided during the year ENFHR T (154) (142)
At 31 December WH+—_H=+—H 208 320
At 31 December: Rt+ZA=+—H:
Cost A 1,681 1,639
Accumulated depreciation B2ty (1,473) (1,319)
Net carrying amount R T Y 208 320
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N4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE -BERRZE(E)
(continued)
Notes: Mt :
(a) The Group’s office premises and industrial buildings are held (a) ARG M R TR AE W
under the following lease terms: T
Mainland
Hong Kong China Vietnam Total
Hi L PN < [og] Ham
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FIL T FILFT FILF T
Cost or valuation as at W_F—NETH
31 December 2014: Z=r—HZ ARG
Long term leases EHME 29,305 - - 29,305
Medium term leases of 1 A - 283,065 251,634 534,699
29,305 283,065 251,634 564,004
Cost or valuation as at R_F—=#H1T_H
31 December 2013: Z=1—HZ A
Long term leases R & 27,169 - - 27,169
Medium term leases GELii Ny - 257,538 199,182 456,720
27,169 257,538 199,182 483,889

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s office premises

were stated at open market values.

Had the Group’s office premises been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount of the
premises at the end of the reporting period would have been

US$5,718,000 (2013: US$6,210,000).

The revaluation surplus of US$3,008,000 (2013: deficit of
US$6,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve of the

Group during the year, net of deferred tax (note 32).
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings and
machinery in mainland China with an aggregate net carrying
amount of 4,585,000 (2013: US$5,825,000) were pledged to
secure certain bank borrowings of the Group, respectively
(note 30(a)).

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s industrial buildings with
an aggregate net carrying amount of US$48,045,000 (2013:
US$41,938,000) have not yet obtained ownership certificates.

Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Fair values are categorized into three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined by reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

Level 2: Observable inputs which fails to meet
Level 1, and not using unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for

which market data are not available.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs.

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as

defined in IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.

15
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

M BERRE (&)

MaE - (A7)

(e) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (e) W~ R R A R R (8)
(continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) WRATZ R (FF)
Fair value measurement as at 31 December
categorised into
RT_H=Z=+—HARMlGRZHH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
38 Ny W= B
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FIL T E e E E
2014
Office premises [HE Y &5 - - 43,086 43,086
2013
Office premises E X - - 40,168 40,168
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, BE_FEF-NUER _F—=

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type Valuation technique

T 1l 1675 ¥

Office premises in Hong Kong Market comparison approach
R 7o 5 1 7 A L1473

Office premises in mainland China ~ Market comparison approach

AL P B K P T A T Wi 35 g vk
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HEHZA=ZTHIREER
3 406 55 — Be B AR 3 2 [
B > s A S 5 = A
A SR ) 2 BOSR T R R R e
o Y1 A v A ) 2 A

T AR BN A = AU B A R R
e A 9 AR i 4R 2 A D5 95 K
FAk (A 5K (0 A T B ¢
M2 e

Key unobservable inputs

A BERZ Y

Estimated price of US$29,209 (2013: US$27,080)
per square metre

15775 K 2 A 5HE A% 29,2093 76(2013: 27,0802 78)

Estimated price of US$6,448 (2013: US$5,952)
per square metre

11 J5 K Z A 5 A% 6,44838 8(2013: 5,952378)
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE -BERRZE(E)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mk - (%)
(e) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (e) W3 - R E Bk R R s R ()
(continued)
(ii) Information about level 3 fair value measurements (ii) F I E=R AR A5 22 B
Office premises of the Group were revalued based on AR ) 2 W AR A R T AR B
valuations performed by Castores Magi (Hong Kong) H3%E () FRAR (—xKHih
Limited, a firm of external independent and qualified 08 S S A A Rl A B Y A
valuers. The Group’s finance team has discussions ) iEZ TG o A R4S
with the valuers on the valuation assumptions and O 1 T AT R R AR
results once a year when the valuation is performed 8 2 Vot 75 1G] Bk 34 € BEL A i v
for annual financial reporting. AR AR B A o
The fair value of the office premises in Hong Kong AL T B e R R B Y R R
and mainland China are determined using market ARG g E » 2%
comparison approach by reference to recent quotation SE 0L 3 4 0T ) i B A (F
or sales prices of comparable properties on a price per FK) o
square metre basis.
A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price BV Ik AR ER M E L BT
per square metre would result in a significant increase/ THGEAFHERFEZARMBEKR
decrease in the fair value of the office premises. LT T
16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REWE
Group
A 4L
2014 2013
L
Note US$’000 US$’000
A FL T F T
Carrying amount at 1 January W—H—HZIEHE 29,537 26,513
Changes in fair value AR L] 7 (618) 1,497
Transfer (to)/from owner-occupied wH)/ A%
properties 15 (1,419) 759
Disposal of subsidiaries B W g A T 37 (8,257) -
Exchange realignment iEE e, 3 %% (316) 768
Carrying amount at 31 December RHZHA=1—HZIREE 18,927 29,537

Notes:

Wik -

(a) All investment properties of the Group are situated in (a)

mainland China and are held under medium term leases.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

16

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurements of investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.

B AR

A H

16 REWE(E)

Wit - (4)

(b)  BEWHRNA MR

(i)

ARMEZ RS

TRSNR RS RA L 2 1
Y SEIRF IR G R A A
4 0 B B e 4 S 13 SR AN A
172 S T = AR

Fair value measurement as at 31 December

categorised into

RT+ZH=Z=+—HARMGREZ 58

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
80 3B B0 B
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
B an 5 an FILFIC FILFIT
2014
Investment properties EdcgVE 3 - - 18,927 18,927
2013
Investment properties E3<L/ES - - 29,537 29,537

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of reporting period used in the
valuation models.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16

b E B E R 2 A

Notes: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

REWE (&)

Wit : (4)

(b) Fair value measurements of investment properties (continued) (b)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Type

Valuation technique

B 18 7 ¥

Factories and farms in mainland China Market comparison approach

AT H B K B Y 5 B R T 35t e ik

Commercial buildings in mainland

China 7 % b iR v
AR v IR K e 1 T S

Residential buildings in mainland
China T 35 LU
7 R A e A S A

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Investment properties of the Group were revalued
based on valuations performed by Castores Magi
(Hong Kong) Limited and Beijing Huadeheng Assets
Evaluation Co., Ltd., firms of external independent
and qualified valuers. The Group’s finance team
has discussions with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and results once a year when the

valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The fair value of the investment properties are
determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent quotation or sales prices of
comparable properties on a price per square metre

basis.
A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price

per square metre would result in a significant increase/

decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
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Market comparison approach

Market comparison approach

B E R A R (B

(i) A2 RS (H)

Key unobservable inputs

A BENZ Y

Estimated price of US$8 — US$532 (2013:
US$8 — US$550) per square metre

B 05 Ok Z Al FHE A 83T — 5323856(2013:
8 It — 5505 70)

Estimated price of US$464 — US$530 (2013:
US$494) per square metre

1 O Ok Z Al SHE M 46438 78 - 5309856
(2013: 4943 78)

Estimated price of US$5,545 (2013:
US$3,654 — US$5,268) per square metre

B J5 k 2 A FHET#S 55455 58(2013: 3,654
FEJL - 5,2683E7T)

(i)  HHB=HA AR 22 EH

ARG P 2 4% B S A A SR TS AR
B 7% 18 () A R A 7 KAkt 3
AR 7 AN A PR A T (358 p Sb
ViR S M A A% R A AL Y 2
F) AR Z ARl HOE o B4R AR R
Yo 205 7 T AT 0 S A W o AR
VB 2 B 75 VO B 349 i BT Al B i L
A 0 A8 T A R o

B WA Z oy S TG 450 B ol s
BEE > 275 R0 3 i A0 (e
B (BFTTK) -

IR Z AR I E R BT
THEEIREY R ARMER
LT F Bk -
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5

b#% B B & R 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS

17 BANLHBAES

Group
AR
2014 2013
e ki 2 e SN s
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt it B E S
Carrying amount at 1 January #—H— H R A 58,293 44,872
Acquisition of subsidiaries W I B Jg 2 ) 36 9,271 3912
Additions U E 11,156 11,194
Amortisation provided during the year AN T B Y 9 (2,622) (2,285)
Disposal & (10,049) -
Disposal of a subsidiary & — KK E A F - (277)
Exchange realignment iEE 5o, ) % (1,019) 8717
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=1+—HEmE 65,030 58,293
Current portion included in prepayments, &AM IER - %4 K&
deposits and other receivables JE b 1 WAL R K =2 U 8 58 4 (2,537) (2,297)
Non-current portion JEFE B 62,493 55,996
Analysis of leasehold land by location: RBALE L P AEAL B T E -
Mainland China H K 56,403 38,536
Vietnam ol 8,627 19,757
65,030 58,293
Notes: i3
(a) All leasehold land of the Group are held under medium term (a) AREEFAHE LTI E P HHE -
leases.
(b) At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s leasehold (b) MNE—WEFT_H=1+—H » RKEEHZ

land with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
US$2,586,000 (2013: US$559,000) were pledged to secure

certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 30(a)).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 18 4XYEE
Group NG
Current Other
Breeders livestock — biological
and layers swine assets Total
BHEAEH EMEE- Hi
RER i EWE At
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Wt #Er T #EI T # T F T
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Wit (a) (W7 (b)) (Wit ()
At 1 January 2014: RE-F—N4E—~H—H:
At cost less accumulated AT B R
depreciation and impairment:
Cost BAR 83,874 - 31,925 115,799
Accumulated depreciation and REHTE RN
impairment (20,651) - - (20,651)
63,223 - 31,925 95,148
At fair value less costs of disposal A RAEIRE B AR - 232,330 - 232,330
63,223 232,330 31,925 327,478
Net carrying amount: T
At 1 January 2014 RZZ—WE—~H—H 63,223 232,330 31,925 327,478
Increase due to purchases/raising PRI i B 7 TG 384 95,374 730,953 298,393 1,124,720
Net changes in fair value less A RAEWIEE RAE D)
costs of disposal B - 9,287 - 9,287
Depreciation provided during T
the year 9 (29,779) - - (29,779)
Decrease due to sales ) 8 8 I 9k A (38,229) (686,327) (301,947)  (1,026,503)
Decrease due to culling PR F: 52 1 ik A (26,597) (30,573) - (57,170)
Exchange realignment [ b, 3 4 (916) (3,584) (428) (4,928)
At 31 December 2014 /e S 1
+-H=+—H 63,076 252,086 27,943 343,105
At 31 December 2014: R_F—NEF-H=+—H:
At cost less accumulated A 2 T WA
depreciation and impairment:
Cost JA 84,041 - 27,943 111,984
Accumulated depreciation R Rk g
and impairment (20,965) - - (20,965)
63,076 - 27,943 91,019
At fair value less costs of disposal N RAE TR B AR - 252,086 - 252,086
63,076 252,086 27,943 343,105
Analysed into: AHWE
Current biological assets EHEEE 15,478 252,086 27,943 295,507
Non-current biological assets JEE WA 47,598 - - 47,598
63,076 252,086 27,943 343,105
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N4 B & R A A
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18 4£YEE (&)
Group (continued) A (4)
Current Other
Breeders livestock— biological
and layers swine assets Total
HHEE HHEE- Al
& W& R Bt
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Wik FEr Fr T FEFI Eyon
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Mt (a) (HtiEb)) (Mt ()
At 1 January 2013: RE-F—ZH—F—H:
At cost less accumulated AT B T R A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost B 82,316 - 32,024 114,340
Accumulated depreciation and AEHTE R
impairment (18,654) - - (18,654)
63,662 - 32,024 95,686
At fair value less costs of disposal A RAEIRIE B AR - 197,112 - 197,112
63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
Net carrying amount: W TR
At 1 January 2013 R-F—=Z4—F—H 63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
Increase due to purchases/raising R S 7 T 8 82,651 513,185 289,856 885,692
Net changes in fair value less A RAEWIE B RAE D)
costs of disposal FHE - 10,680 - 10,680
Depreciation provided during R T
the year 9 (28,565) - - (28,565)
Decrease due to sales R 8 8 I 9k A (39,088) (469,578) (289,468) (798,134)
Decrease due to culling P I = T (14,470) (16,011) - (30,481)
Exchange realignment JE b i 2 (967) (3,058) (487) (4,512)
At 31 December 2013 BEE-=ZEF A= 63,223 232,330 31,925 327,478
At 31 December 2013: R_E-ZHE+-H=Z+—H:
At cost less accumulated JA i, R T A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost JA 83,874 - 31,925 115,799
Accumulated depreciation R R g
and impairment (20,651) - - (20,651)
63,223 - 31,925 95,148
At fair value less costs of disposal AR IR BB - 232,330 - 232,330
63,223 232.330 31,925 327,418
Analysed into: AHWT
Current biological assets B EMEE 18,614 232,330 31,925 282,869
Non-current biological assets FEH WG 44,609 - - 44,609
63,223 232,330 31,925 327,478
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Breeders and layers

Breeders and layers of the Group are (i) sows and boars
(collectively “swine breeders”) held for the production
of piglets for sales and/or further raising to become swine
parent stock or fattening pigs, (ii) chicken breeders held
for production of hatching eggs in order to produce day-old

chicks, and (iii) layers held for the production of consumable

eggs.

Breeders and layers are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses as (i)
they are not sold by the Group and no active market exists;
(ii) other references to market prices such as market prices
for similar assets are not available; and (iii) valuation based
on a discounted cash flow method is considered unreliable
given the uncertainty with respect to external factors, such as

climate and mortality rates, etc.

Cost includes all costs incurred during the growth cycle (e.g.
cost of new born animals, feed costs and farmer fees). Swine
breeders are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their productive period of 24 to 36 months starting from
the reproduction phase, while chicken breeders and layers
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
productive period of 12 months, both taking into account a

residual value.

18
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

18 BIOL

OGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(d)

Current livestock-swine

Current livestock-swine are piglets and fattening swines and
are stated at fair value less costs of disposal. Fair values are
determined based on prevailing transaction prices, and where
transaction prices are not available for certain age groups,
based on prevailing transaction prices of other age groups,

with adjustments taking into account difference in weight.

Other biological assets

Other biological assets comprise poultry and aquatic livestock

other than breeders and layers.

Poultry livestock are pullets, broilers and hatching eggs,
while aquatic livestock comprise shrimp and fish. Poultry and
aquatic livestock are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
which are not materially different from their fair value due to

short production cycle.

An analysis of the estimates of physical quantities of the
Group’s biological assets as at the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

BE
KE

Livestock

Aquatic

The estimates of physical quantities of biological assets were
based on experience and historical data. The Group conducts
full physical count in swine farms by rotation to ascertain
the quantity and physical condition of swine and project the
overall weight. For poultry livestock, the Group performs
realtime update on stock movement to project the overall
weight. For aquatic livestock, the Group uses sampling method

to project the overall weight.

B AR

n

18
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18 4£YEE (&)
Notes: (continued) Mtat : (%)
(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets (e) Y& E A REE R
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) R AAMEZ R
The following table presents the fair value of the TR RGP AR AL Z Y
Group’s biological assets measured at the end of the B R R AR R A A s
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into TR Bk B R R 134 2 A
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS ZEFA R = AR
13 Fair value measurement.
Fair value measurement as at 31 December
categorised into
REZA=Z1t—-HARMEREZ 5 H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8 i3 W= A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
B an T an FKILFIC FILT T
2014
Current livestock — Swine EHBE-RE - - 252,086 252,086
2013
Current livestock — Swine EHBE RS - - 232,330 232,330

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18

Notes: (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement of biological asset (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Type Valuation technique
% i 605 1%
Current livestock — swine Market comparison approach
HHEE-RE i ek
(ii) Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of current livestock — swine is
performed by the Group’s relevant finance department
and operations team on a quarterly basis using a series

of systematic procedures.

There is an active market for live swine in Vietnam.
The fair value of suckling swine, weanling swine and
fattening swine are determined based on transaction

price per head and their weight.

The estimated fair value of swine increases/decreases
as a result of an increase/decrease in the transaction
price. As at 31 December 2014, if transaction price
increases/decreases by 10%, the estimated fair
value of swine would have increased/decreased by

US$24,394,000 (2013: US$23,016,000).
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£YEE (H)
Wik - (#)
() EYVETE M/ AL R (A0

(i) ARG Z RS (H)

Key unobservable inputs

A BERS Y

Transaction prices of:

- Suckling swine US$60.8 to US$71.3 (2013: US$61.7 to
US$72.3) per head

- Weanling swine US$88.6 to US$135.8 (2013: US$71.6 to
US$118.2) per head

- Fattening swine US$2.3 to US$2.4 (2013: US$2.3 to US$2.4)
per kg

ok

- REIH60.8RLETIIRIE(2013: 61.7RTLE72.3%70)

- MREREISS.0K T E135.8%6(2013: 716K T E118.2K )

- HREREBATL3FEILEL4EIL(2013: 23FELEL4FET)

(i)  FAHE=RH LM R EH

EHBE - HEZARMETIREF
P A 4R AL 50 B 85 ) % 8 7 1 B
H— R IH RGN RAT A -

7O B 77 AE X I BT o LA -
ANEE o B MR 2 oy SR AR T AR 4 A B
28 G AR T T R T FHESE o

WA RAGNG B 22 5 E Y
EF R LT T e R F
—WEFZH=Z+—H > BERS
ks LT T k10% > FEERA R
A BT T B2,439.48 %50
(ZB— =48 1 2301.683%50) -

TR -0 FF R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B R 3R AR M A
Year ended 31 December 2014 #E_F—WFE+_H=+—H ILFEJE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BEEE
2014 2013
“R W —EREAg
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt it FL T Fw T
At 1 January: W—H—H:
Cost B AR - -
Accumulated amortisation P 30 - -
Net carrying amount R T — —
Net carrying amount: W THI VA
At 1 January w—H—H - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W i BF ) 2 ) 36 40,763 -
Amortisation provided during the year AN T PR S 9 (1,726) -
Exchange realignment [ 58, 3 4% (505) -
At 31 December BT+ _H=+—H 38,532 -
At 31 December: R+-H=+—H
Cost B AR 40,242 -
Accumulated amortisation BT (1,710) -
Net carrying amount M THI R E 38,532 -
Notes: M -
The Group’s intangible asset represents customer relationship of A4 > TR R T A4 T 2 % P B AR R R AR
the Group which is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and 2 EE R A K IRAE E IR B B E o
impairment losses.
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “selling and AAEE B 2 A AL A N R 2 T B K A B R

distribution costs” in profit or loss. A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

—®-m&FH 145



146

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2014 #& £ _~F —MN44E+_H=+—HILEE
20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMBATMESR
Company
A2 H]
2014 2013
ZE N4 R =8
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t E Y an E T n
Investments in subsidiaries, included RS A w I E -
in non-current assets: AL A IR B E
Unlisted shares, at cost ARG A2
I b By 1,846,477 1,846,477
Due from subsidiaries, included JRE Wt i B 2 W] K JE -
in non-current assets A8 7% JE IR B & (a) 307,158 -
Due from subsidiaries, included JRE Ve B 2 W) K JE s
in current assets: AR R B E R :
Gross amount ikl (a) 163,244 511,962
Impairment WA (b) - (8,303)
163,244 503,659
Due to subsidiaries, included in JRE A i I A = Kk E -
current liabilities 1,8 7 I B AR (a) (679) (4,349)
Interests in subsidiaries S B g 2 ) RE 2R 2,316,200 2,345,787
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

20

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

20

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, US$425,000
(2013: nil) and US$7,878,000 (2013: nil) of the provision for

impairment of the amounts due from subsidiaries were written

back and written off respectively.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Company name and operations

E3 S

AR B

Zl

CP China Investment Limited =~ Cayman Islands/

Hong Kong

PR

Chengdu Chia Tai Company PRC/
Limited Mainland China
BB 1E KA R 2 w00 R K
Chia Tai (China) Investment PRC/
Co., Ltd.®” Mainland China
ERCHE) BEFRAF G vp KR
Chong Qing Chia Tai PRC/
Co., Ltd.t Mainland China
B IE KA R A R0 R K

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital
C#fT K
A

C R M A% i A

US$79,228,000

79,228,0003% JC

US$6,300,000
6,300,0003 78

US$196,695,333
196,695,3333 70

US$5,920,000
5,920,0003& J&

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

RKE AR RS (&)

i3
(a) B WAL T W A B g 2 ) AR T TS R~ 40 6
T 0 ] 2 2 R o
(b) MEEZ-NWETA=Z+—HIE4E
W o> 4258 F T (ZF— =48« f§) X787.8
HIRIC (SR — 24 - ) FEW B A W)k
TEC YRR B B8 45 © 43 i) Il 8 D e & o
(c) HZLEMBAFRZFERWT :
Percentage of
attributable equity Principal
interest held by activities
Company Group
JE AL F¢ A L RE T 43 b
AR O] A 4 FEEH
100.0% 100.0% Investment
holding
BB e
- 70.0% Manufacture
and sale of
animal feed
E $ 4 5 B R
- 100.0% Investment
holding and
trading of
raw materials
BB FE e
JE R E 5
- 60.0% Manufacture

and sale of

animal feed

T 85 R
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
M#®% BB AR QA

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 RKHEXRKELZR (&)

Wit - (4)

Notes: (continued)

148

(c)

(continued)

(c) (A1)

Place of Nominal value Percentage of

incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity Principal
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by activities

Company name and operations registered capital Company Group

ST R
RE S, BRBA JE AN 5 A B RE E 43 Lk

NGEAR o 1 O i fH I A T A PN/ | A E FEEH
Huai Hua Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/ USD3,900,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
AL IE KA BRA F @ Mainland China 3,900,0003 6 and sale of
ook animal feed
E § 8 5 R
Huludao Chia Tai Husbandry PRC/ RMB28,100,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
Co., Ltd. @ Mainland China 28,100,000 A\ ¥ and sale of
HERBERBEUERAFY vk pE animal feed
72 S B BB
Hefei Chia Tai Co., Ltd. " PRC/ RMB125,000,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
A IE KA BR A ' (e Mainland China 125,000,000 A\ & # and sale of
=P PN animal feed
7 S 8 s B Rt
Inner Mongolia Chia Tai PRC/ US$8,190,700 - 90.4%" Manufacture
Co., Ltd. @™ Mainland China 8,190,7003 70 and sale of
W& IE KA A =P PN animal feed
22 8 8 s R
Kaifeng Chia Tai Co., Ltd. 9 PRC/ US$10,000,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
B IE KA PR 2 W] 0 Mainland China 10,000,0003 G and sale of
P PN animal feed
E $ 8 s R
Kunming Chia Tai Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC/ US$6,405,300 - 92.4%® Manufacture
B W IE KA R A | Mainland China 6,405,3003 0 and sale of
o v Ok animal feed
E $ 8 5 B R
Lanzhou Chia Tai Co., Ltd ™ PRC/ US$14,953,000 - 90.6%" Manufacture
P IE KB B A W) ) Mainland China 14,953,0003€ 70 and sale of
o v Ok animal feed
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2014 B E _~F—NE+ _H=+—H L4 FE

20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 MRKMEBATIMWEZ (&)
Notes: (continued) Mt o (4F)
(c) (continued) (c) (%)

Place of Nominal value Percentage of

incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity Principal
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by activities

Company name and operations registered capital Company Group

ST R
RE 1 B, BRMA AN 5 B RE & 43 L

GER 8 1 O i 1 I A T A PN/ | AR E FEEH
Nanning Chia Tai Animal PRC/ US$6,774,500 - 91.6%" Manufacture
Husbandry Company Mainland China 6,774,5003 70 and sale of
Limited @ T il PN animal feed
MEIEREHAMRAF® JE 8 85 & B Rl
Nantong Chia Tai Co., Ltd. ™ PRC/ RMB110,060,025 - 60.0% Manufacture
B8 IR KA BR A ] i Mainland China 110,060,025 A\ ¥ and sale of
ook animal feed
JE S B & R
Nanyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd. () PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 91.0%® Manufacture
™ I IE KA R 2 R ) Mainland China 50,000,000 A\ B ¥ and sale of
=P PN animal feed
78 S 8 B R
Qingdao Chiatai Agricultural PRC/ US$8,800,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China 8,800,000 70 and sale of
HEIERRERR =P PN animal feed
FRAFR J2E 8 8 7 R
Shaanxi Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$6,729,100 - 96.0% Manufacture
Vg IE KA PR 2 7] ) Mainland China 6,729,1003 G and sale of
LD PN animal feed
E $ 8 s R
Tianjin Chiatai Feed Tech PRC/ US$23,812,500 - 100.0% Manufacture
Co., Ltd. @ Mainland China 23,812,5003 70 and sale of
KHEE KA BB o gk animal feed
AR AT E § 8 7 R
Wuhan Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$3,750,000 - 100.0% W Manufacture
RV IEKH R A" Mainland China 3,750,0003 70 and sale of
| B K B animal feed
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 RKHEXRKELZR (&)

Notes: (continued) Mt - (%)
(c) (continued) (c) (%)
Place of Nominal value Percentage of

incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity Principal
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by activities

Company name and operations registered capital Company Group

ST R
RE S, BRMA JRE A R A 1B BE T 43 e

2 W 44 1 o 1 C it M 3 A< v Y. /N A AR FEEH
Xiangyang Chia Tai PRC/ RMB97,900,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
Co., Ltd. @ Mainland China 97,900,000 A\ B ¥ and sale of
P IE KA RA R o vk animal feed
JE §1 Y 5 B R
Yichang Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$18,090,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
HEEKRERAA® Mainland China 18,090,0003 7t and sale of
ook animal feed
72 S B & B R
Chia Tai Food Enterprise PRC/ US$117,460,000 - 100.0%  Manufacture and
(Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd. > Mainland China 117,460,0003€ 55 sale of value-
EREMEERESR) LA P PN added processed
ARAF food
JE 8 1H
T A
Chia Tai Food Enterprise PRC/ US$85,700,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd™ Mainland China 85,700,0003% 70 and sale of
EREMEEER) ook value-added
ARAF processed food
2 B M
A
Modern State Investments British Virgin US$106,984,000 100.0% 100.0% Investment

Limited Island/Hong Kong 106,984,0003& 7t holding and
e o 4 provision of

TS, technical

services

BT K&

P A 59l Al 5
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2014 B E _~F—NE+ _H=+—H L4 FE

20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 RKHEXRHNELZE (&)

Notes: (continued) Mtat : (%)
(c) (continued) (c) (%)
Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity Principal
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by activities
Company name and operations registered capital Company Group
ST R
RE R, BRBA JRE A R A 1B BE T 43 e
2 W 44 1 B C it M 3 A< v Y. /N A AR TR
C.P. Vietnam Corporation Vietnam/ VND - 70.8% Integrated
(“CPVC”) Vietnam 1,741,792,500,000 agri-food
Mg, MR 1,741,792,500,000 business
8 g I R R
£ B
Pucheng Chia Tai Biochemistry PRC/ RMB189,890,000 - 69.7% Manufacture
Co., Ltd.t Mainland China 189,890,000 A\ B ¥ and sale of
T IE R AEALA A w0 R K chlorte-
tracycline
Zhumadian Huazhong Chia PRC/ RMB72,000,000 - 69.7% Manufacture
Tai Co., Ltd.(@ Mainland China 72,000,000 A\ B % and sale of
B G 5 v IR R R AR D i vp K chlorte-
tracycline
Chai Tai Enterprises Bermuda/ US$1,195,200 100.0% 100.0% Investment
International Limited Hong Kong 1,195,2003 70 holding
(formerly known as Ek HHREFE Erd<gclld
Chor China Motorcycle
Co., Ltd.)
Hannick Limited Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100.0% Property
Hong Kong 2¥ T investment
i Y R E
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20

Notes: (continued)
(c) (continued)

o The Group is only entitled to 85% of the subsidiary’s
earnings. The remaining 15% is attributable to the

PRC joint venture partner.

(i) The Group is only entitled to 87.15% of the
subsidiary’s earnings. The remaining 12.85% is

attributable to the PRC joint venture partner.

(iif) Established as a contractual joint venture under PRC

law.

() Established as a cooperative joint venture under PRC

law.

i\ Established as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
under PRC law.

S Acquired in 2014.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
Group’s profits and losses or formed a substantial portion
of the Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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® ARG AT AT L A 2.85% o
HEZ15%8 1 &% ANFA

(i AREMEMERAREGHLANZ
87.15% » H:f% 2 12.85% 5 1 B &
BANBA o
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0 e TR P AR W

ERRRIIRZAATME AR > EHR
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2014 & E - F—WE+_H=+—H ILF)¥
21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REELENER
Group
A%H
2014 2013
e S Ui I St
Notes US$’000 US$’000
M FE F#iL T FL T
Investments in joint ventures, included REBRENRE
in non-current assets: BERIERBEERN :
Share of net assets JRE Ay B (a) 90,903 124,435
Due from joint ventures, included in JE WA A K E
prepayments, deposits and B E R FAT IR
other receivables 152 4 T At HE WOHR 3 26 125 4,926
Due to joint ventures, included in WA 68 A S K E >
other payables and accruals A2 7 il JRE A MR
Y&k 34 29 (6,416) (2,378)
Interests in joint ventures A B AR 84,612 126,983
Notes: Mt -
(a) The Group has interests in a number of joint ventures none (a) REBENMESESCLBEARER > WEET

i o 3 — FRAAR By TR o R M DA 2
X T BRI N TR E G O N e i)

of which is regarded as individually material. The following

tables summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of

all individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted BERL s
for using the equity method:
Other Total
Carrying Profit comprehensive comprehensive
amount for the year income income
& ThI ARG A b w4 AR AR
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
LT oo LT oo b n LT T
2014
Group effective interest A4 M A BRE A 90,903 21,670 (564) 21,106
2013
Group effective interest AR A RORE 7% 124,435 20,969 4,389 25,358
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
M#®% BB AR QA

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REeEgEhXENER (E)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mt : (4F)

AEMPATESEZIEREENE S
MRk BRI o © 0 i 2 8 T U 5 Ak = Y
25(c) }28 »

(b) The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances (b)
with joint ventures are disclosed in note 25(c) and 28 to the
financial statements, respectively.

HIAR A W &R A 2 BEAE AR W

(c) Particulars of the principal joint ventures, which are indirectly (c)

154

held by the Company, are as follows:

Company name

ARy

&

Beijing Chia Tai Feedmill
Limited

F o IE KR R A T

Handan Chia Tai Feed
Co., Ltd.
1 6 1E KA BHA R A A

Henan East Chia Tai Co., Ltd.

0 T Y IE KA R A

Jilin Chia Tai Enterprise
Co., Ltd.
HARIERE AR AT

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

ER S
R

PRC/
Mainland China
LU P PN

PRC/
Mainland China
ook

PRC/
Mainland China
=P PN

PRC/
Mainland China
=P PN

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital
%2 E e

B A

L Rk M e A% T A

US$5,000,000
5,000,0003& 7&

RMB11,200,000
11,200,000 A\ R ¥

US$5,400,000
5,400,000 7&

RMB70,000,000
70,000,000 A\ B
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T

Percentage of

HABS
Ownership
interest
attributable to Profit
the Group sharing
A A R A
Jt 45 HE 5 JRE Al 36 7]
50% 50%
50% 50%
50% 50%
50% 50%

Principal

activities

E-E 37

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

7 8 8 R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

A 5 25 A Rk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S 5 25 5 Rk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S 8 5 5 Bk
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

21

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REELENRER (E)
(continued)

Notes: (continued) M it (%)

(c) (continued) (c) (%)

is in a position to exercise unilateral control over the
economic activity of the entity, the Group’s interests

therein are classified as interests in joint ventures.

Disposed in 2014.

Percentage of

REASL

Place of Nominal value Ownership

incorporation/ of issued and interest
registration paid-up capital/ attributable to Profit Principal
Company name and operations registered capital the Group sharing activities

ST R

Rk L B A A 45 T A
2 44 1 B C Rk 5 A% i A Jit i HE i JRE A 3t A1 TR
ECI Metro Investment British Virgin US$12,000,000 50% 50% Investment
Co., Ltd. Islands/ 12,000,0003 76 holding and
Hong Kong trading of
LB 4 TR machinery and
R W spare parts
BB
FkE 2% &
EZ LSO
Luoyang Northern Ek Chor PRC/ US$56,310,000 55% 55% Manufacture
Motorcycle Company Mainland China 56,310,0003 7t and sale of
Limited* * Ea il PN motorcycles
W b 5 5 ) and spare parts
FEHAT IR A A+ A B R T H
FHAE
* Since neither the Group nor its joint venture partner * HAREBEHFHEESLESB AN RGER

RIS AT Z N > ALEEHZ
TR 25 228 B H R 7 A SR R RE 2 -

# PR o

B R AR AR A A A
B A 3 i ) % s 4R R R T R A 4R
HR GRS R AR
RS o FIH TR A S A SRR A
FHET B R BRIt R -

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the Group’s share of profits and losses of joint
ventures or formed a substantial portion in the Group’s
interests in joint ventures. To give details of all the
other joint ventures would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 REEEQTHNER
Group
AR
2014 2013
- S l1' 2 —F—=
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt 7t FFi E T n
Investments in associates, RS AR RERE
included in non-current assets: BERERBEEN :
Share of net assets JRE Ay B (a) 57,988 49,654
Due from associates, included in JRE W W 42 A ] KO
prepayments, deposits and BE R FA IR
other receivables e 4 o L At WE W M 7k 26 2,890 1,411
Interests in associates T Bk 5 2N ) Y RE 2% 60,878 51,065
Note: K3
(a) The Group has interests in a number of associates none of (a) A5 H i B R W A W B RE RS > MEJRAT

which is regarded as individually material. The following

table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all

Ay 8 3 — R T K o TR ML DR A
I 2 AR B T & TR I A W 2

individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using BWapdast .
the equity method:
Group A 42
Other Total
Carrying Profit comprehensive comprehensive
amount for the year income income
JUSTTR N AEwH MW AR A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
LT Fax T FILT T FIL T
2014
Group effective interest A4 WA RE 4 57,988 20,577 (926) 19,651
2013
Group effective interest A A T AT R 2 49,654 13,331 1,821 15,152
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

22

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2014 B E _~F—NE+ _H=+—H L4 FE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22 REELEQXTNERS (&)

Notes: (continued) Mt - (4F)

(b) The Group’s trade receivable balances due from the associates (b) AR L AN T 2 HEWRE B IR ER AR
are disclosed in note 25(c) to the financial statements. W T R 2 B EE25 () P PR o

(c) Particulars of the principal associates, which are indirectly (c) HARA T BERA 2 FEE S A 7 5w
held by the Company, are as follows: T

Percentage of

FHAESL
Place of Nominal value Ownership
incorporation/ of issued and interest
registration paid-up capital/ attributable to Profit Principal
Company name and operations registered capital the Group sharing activities
REMbRSL DR RBERA S 7 45 1 JE A
Ak B 1 e A 1 i 5 i 2 R A Y6 FEEH
Zhanjiang Deni Carburetor Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$21,250,000 28% 28% Manufacture
LR AL 2 R A H Mainland China 21,250,000 70 and sale of
K automotive parts
E §H LA A
Conti Chia Tai International Limited* Hong Kong/ HK$3,122,000 50% 50% Investment
JRE b 1F K I B A PR A )+ Mainland China 3,122,000% J& holding, and
Bk manufacture
and sale of
animal feed
BB R
B B & R
* Since the Group is not in a position to exercise joint * F 7Y A A T R BB % A W) 2 T R
control over the economic activity of the entity and B AT 3L 5 3 ) DA B A4 B R
the Group has significant influence over the entity, A EREE)  REEFHZHE
the Group’s interests therein are classified as interests i 1 S U Ay R W 8 A W) I RE R o
in associates.
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, 3 F T R AR A
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected JRRE A W 28 A ) i ) e s R R R B
the Group’s share of profits and losses of associates or B S A B A T W) R AR
formed a substantial portion in the Group’s interests I E AR - EER L > FIH
in associates. To give details of all the other associates JT AT A I %8 2 ] A A0 R B
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in EIRBRAICE -

particulars of excessive length.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

b#% B B & R 2 A

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—W4E+_H =+ —H L4 )%
23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23 O#tEEZRE
Group
A H
2014 2013
e ki 2 e SN s
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T F T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost b HZRERBRE > A
(note) (P ) 8,826 1,125
Others HAth - 220
8,826 1,345
Note: et -

The unlisted equity investments are not stated at fair value but at cost

because they do not have a quoted market price in an active market,

the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for these

% I T IR A 2 5 R AT I % A R AESIE
5 BB L 3% R TR 355 N6 J0E i 35 A0 ek B A % 4 T
A B R A A6 S R A O R S B DA R AR A S

investments and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be AL 2 AL s 2 T BEdE o
reasonably assessed.
24 INVENTORIES 24 ©®E
Group
A 4R
2014 2013
L L = =t
US$’000 US$’000
#L Tt FL T
Raw materials JEORE 467,707 486,207
Work in progress TE 8 9,403 14,005
Finished goods 7 B 111,222 103,467
588,332 603,679
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2014 #E_F—WFE+_H=+—H ILFEJE
25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25 EBWESERIARERE
Group
A4
2014 2013
e S U'E: 2 e SN2
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T F T
Trade receivables FE W & 5 B Rk 140,993 121,956
Bills receivable W S % 19,063 17,128
160,056 139,084
The Group normally grants to its customers a credit period of AREH—BGETHEP G B mA460H »
up to 60 days, depending on the requirements of the markets Bt T 35 I B R o ANEEH H 45 R
and the businesses. The Group seeks to maintain strict MR K PR BB b 2 S 4 o 45 B O 1 58 WP AR A
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are W Z 4R > KAl e A [ 2 % 1 5 R
reviewed regularly by management and interest may be charged REEZIMEGFL - WEFER > AEER
by the Group for overdue trade receivable balances at rates A B 25 R B o AR AR T R B B R
determined by the Group with reference to market rates. In the KRR IR Z IR AT (DA SR 19 % R )
opinion of the directors, there is no significant concentration Ik
of credit risk. An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
Group
A4
2014 2013
—R WA —HREAg
Note US$’000 US$’000
Btk FiL T Eyan
Trade and bills receivables: JRE W B B MRk B B
60 days or below 60HE LT 127,322 118,523
61 to 180 days 61%180H 29,573 16,734
181 to 360 days 181%&360H 2,295 1,300
Over 360 days %2 A360H 4,071 6,345
163,261 142,902
Impairment ik A5 (a) (3,205) (3,818)
(b) 160,056 139,084
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

b#% B B & R 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

25

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade and

FE W & 5 B =K
Wit :

RE (&)

(a) A P B M S MR sk e S kL 488 44 2 Tl 4

bills receivables during the year are as follows: T
Group
P
2014 2013
e kS —E =
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mtk By n FoLF o
At 1 January »m—H—H 3,818 2,767
(Write back of impairment)/impairment J*4F N T 18 25 iR Z
during the year recognised in (R [T 8% ), A 3
profit or loss, net 9 (71) 1,051
Uncollectible amounts written off 90 3 Wi ] 2 A 8 4 (542) -
At 31 December R+=_H=+—H 3,205 3,818

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade and

bills receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
and bills receivables of US$1,637,000 (2013: US$2,347,000)

with a carrying amount before provision of the same amount.

The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to

customers who were in financial difficulties.

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are

bl i T W ik T T AR R R MR
TE 2516378 KL (ZF—=4 1 234.78 3%
TG ) Z 18 ) JRE WA B 5 R SR A I B VR AR R 44
WA 1) R W B B MR K T B 0 A BT B T TR

Mz EFAR -

(b)  ARBEA A A A 2 HE W B 5 Rk %

neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired BIREB2HWT -
is as follows:
Group
A 4R
2014 2013
R R =
US$’000 US$’000
P n FIL T
Neither past due nor impaired AR B 5 R W AE 131,275 114,499
180 days or below past due WA IR 180H 26,289 21,007
Over 180 days past due W Z R 180H 586 1,675
158,150 137,181
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25 EBRESEREREE (&)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) Mt - (%)

(b) (continued) (b) (%)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to R B 1 B R T A =2 M IR ik B S R ol i R
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. WEZEEAR -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to 408 300 1L S D1 = RO Sk B AR SR L R AT
independent customers that have a good track record with FOERZ ML A B o MLBRIB A KR - A
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the AT E B A RS S E R RS
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment B SR A AR A W A OB e > PR S
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been JRUEE S R A M DA A o

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

(c) Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 (c) AREEMP _F—MNE+ A=+ —HZHE
December 2014 are aggregate amounts of US$372,000 WHE BRABEAREEIREH W EBERS
(2013: US$1,908,000), US$34,000 (2013: US$381,000) R L ARt B37.28 0 (R — =4
and US$92,334,000 (2013: US$79,165,000) due from joint 190.8# 3 J0) 5 34 FE X (ZF— =4
ventures, associates and related companies, respectively, 3818 F0) K9,233 4K (ZF—=
arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary course 41 7.916.58F0) /5 B A& %
of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured, bear T 8 A 5] Je B3N Wl Z K TE o E RS
interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and HEHCHT > 7 0 1] 4% 3 A 45 B BT 2 A R G
are repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by B ROE S B30 9 R (B £ ) 1)
the Group to its major customers. SR TR R R KA BB -

(d) At 31 December 2014, no trade receivable (2013: (d) R_Z2—NE+_HA=+—H - BRAE
US$3,738,000) were pledged to secure certain bank W G (T — =4 373.888 3% 50)
borrowings of the Group (note 30(a)). M B A 45 ) 35 1 SRAT A5 3k 2 4 5 (B

30(a)) °
26 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26 FBENER EEeRHEMEWERR
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
A4 H y: /N

2014 2013 2014 2013
TR Mg CF = DR NE DR =g
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FFx  FExTfr FErLFr  FEILFL

Prepayments P iRk 53,234 29,290 257 222

Deposits %4 26,611 10,764 15 14

Other receivables Al R 3k 63,278 45,216 109 116

143,123 85,270 381 352
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27

N4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26 AR HEeRhEMEKRER
RECEIVABLES (continued) (&)
Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other REHFPN _F—-WE+_H=+—HZHE
receivables as at 31 December 2014 was an aggregate amount fPHRRR ~ e R H YRR P > BE& A5
of US$125,000 (2013: US$4,926,000), US$2,890,000 (2013: 1258 KL (ZF— =4 492.68 %K) »
US$1,411,000) and US$29,458,000 (2013: US$580,000) 289.08 KT (F =4 141L18KT) K
due from joint ventures, associates and related companies, 2,945 88 K0 (ZF— =4 : 58.08 3I0) 4
respectively. The balances are unsecured, interest free and MAEBEKREBLE -BHEBATABEBEAGZ
have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an aggregate BRI o FEBEIR T —ER =812
amount of US$4,500,000 advanced to certain joint ventures as H=+—H&R450.08 £ cMERTHETH
at 31 December 2013 which bear interests at 4.45% per annum B ET L A% Z P EKFE B B — 4 N
and are repayable within one year. JRAN > AR ERAH Y A AL B R M 2
JRFK -
Included in the Company’s prepayments, deposits and other AAR R _FZ—NEF_A=Z+—HZHEMN
receivables as at 31 December 2014 was an aggregate amount WK~ A R AL EWGHK P > BEGFH0.38
of US$3,000 (2013: US$12,000) due from related companies. FIL (B4 1 128 E50) W EA T
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed PRTE o B ZEFRTE ) AR S B M I [ g R
terms of repayment. e
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27 BRERBAIER
Group Company
A4 A2 T
2014 2013 2014 2013
TR DR-ZF DR NE DR =4
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Frxfx FrrFfr FErnFrx FErTrx
Cash and bank balances other Bl & K SRAT B A7
than time deposits (A5 E AR 255,774 228,862 1,271 1,622
Time deposits 7E W1 3K 240,699 271,566 29,393 81,279
Total cash and bank balances Bl 4 T R AT A5 2K 496,473 500,428 30,664 82,901
Less: Pledged deposits W A E R (40,870) (30,357) - -
Less: Time deposits with W BB HEE=MA
maturity over 3 months Z EWITE K (168,462) (95,931) - (10,613)
Cash and cash equivalents Bl& RBEE&EEY 287,141 374,140 30,664 72,288
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7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 27 RE&RBITER(E)

Notes: M EE -

(a) At 31 December 2014, the cash and bank balances of the (a) Ao —NE+H=1+—H > REEZ
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese DA\ B BmR e O s A A B4 R BRAT A5 17
Dong (“VND”) amounted to US$350,739,000 (2013: S A 345,073 98 K00 (ZF—=4F : 3
US$368,042,000) and US$10,144,000 (2013: US$9,070,000), 6,804.28370) K1,014 48 E 0 (ZF—=
respectively. The RMB and VND are not freely convertible A 907.08 3 00) o AR OB R E I A
into other currencies. However, under mainland China’s B 1 H S8 400 S I At £ T o MR v R O
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration A ME A ) B R e A~ B R % A B A B A
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange TE T AN AR R AR B
Regulations and the Law on Foreign Investment in Vietnam, AP EHEAT A S e S 2 BRATHE N R
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB and VND into e e G So e B L A £ s -
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

(b) Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily (b) A7 TR SR AT 2 B 4 ¥ 09 H SRAT VR B M 77k
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods R B, o AR A 42 1 R R B4 1
of between one day and twelve months depending on the Ko —HE+ A MMRAENE
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest WIAE K > MR ) E ARG Z
at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and R o AT 45 4 e O HEHH A7 5K U i 3
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with SEHE R RO Bk B AR R Z BRAT
no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES 28 BENESERX

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of A [ RS 1 3 R A B B M ik 2 R B 4 T

the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (W& B 2 He ) i F

follows:

Group

N
2014 2013
e S 1 K42 R =4
US$’000 US$’000
FL T FL T

60 days or below 60HE LT 235,826 220,542

61 to 180 days 61%180H 8,822 6,870

181 to 360 days 181%2360H 489 1,780

Over 360 days Z*360H 565 955

245,702 230,147

Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December 2014
is an aggregate amount of US$947,000 (2013: US$1,054,000)
and US$13,323,000 (2013: US$24,036,000) due to joint
ventures and related companies respectively, arising from
transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of
the Group. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by its

major suppliers.
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N4 B & R A A
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2014 #& £ _~F —MN44E+_H=+—HILEE
29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29 HiEMKRIAKRFEREHR
Group Company
A4 A ]
2014 2013 2014 2013
RN CF = DR NE DFR=F
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
#xTx Frrfrxr FExFrxk  FExT
Receipts in advance TH W 3% 39,759 29,603 - -
Deferred income TR JE WL 11,515 17,022 - -
Accruals HiR &M 179,067 168,702 8,312 8,207
Other payables oAt JE A HR 3K 75,211 41,856 34 34
305,552 257,183 8,346 8,241

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2014 were an aggregate amounts of US$6,416,000
(2013: US$2,378,000) and US$16,130,000 (2013:
US$15,837,000) due to joint ventures and related companies

respectively.

The balances with joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an aggregate
amount of US$6,404,000 (2013: US$2,362,000) due to certain
joint ventures which bear interests at 3% (2013: 3%) per

annum and are repayable on demand.

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment except for an
aggregate amount of US$13,872,000 (2013: US$13,713,000)
due to a related company which is repayable within one

month.
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(R =400 236,28 5%00) BAE T A8 4
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Year ended 31 December 20

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
14 BEZ-F—NETH=+—HILFEE

30 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 30 MITRHEHMER
Group Company
AL H AL ]
2014 2013 2014 2013
RNy ZF =4 RN ZF =4
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’°000 US$’000
/i F L TFIi E i an FFir F#xFr
Bank loans, secured R ERAT A 3K (a) 38,994 12,823 - -
Bank loans and other e HG A R AT %
borrowings, unsecured HAbAE 3 1,086,241 963,893 395,848 404,252
Total bank borrowings ERAT A K AR5 (b) 1,125,235 976,716 395,848 404,252
Analysed into amounts repayable: 1 %2 & %/ A1 4 ¢
Within one year or on demand —AE N BRI R 515,902 534,003 40,600 10,106
In the second year ) = 132,911 62,139 81,495 38,899
In the third to fifth year BE=EHAE 446,931 380,574 273,753 355,247
Beyond five years AR AR 29,491 - - -
Total bank and other borrowings — #R47 & il i 3k 42 51 1,125,235 976,716 395,848 404,252
Portion classified as current SRR AR
liabilities %0 (c) (515,902)  (534,003) (40,600) (10,106)
Non-current portion FE IR Bh & 4y 609,333 442,713 355,248 394,146
Notes: M Et -

(a)

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s property, plant

(a)

and equipment, land lease prepayments and trade receivables
with carrying amounts of US$4,585,000 (2013: US$5,825,000)
(note 15(c)), US$2,586,000 (2013: US$559,000) (note

17(b)),

and nil (2013: US$3,738,000) (note 25(d)),

respectively, were pledged as security for bank borrowings of

the Group.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
30 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 30 S|MITRHMMERK(E)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) Mat : (%)

(b) The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings of the (b) 2 45 1) Je AR O ) 22 SRAT B LAt A sk R i A
Group and the Company are denominated in the following UL T MR ¥EAL
currencies:

Group Company
A 4R A H]
2014 2013 2014 2013
= 111 F4 2 R = Ry R =4
US$’000 US$000 US$’000 Us$’000
FILFi E iy an FILFir FILFir
US$ EIt 565,507 493,790 395,848 404,252
VND ol g 472,360 454,327 - -
RMB A R¥ 87,368 28,599 - -
1,125,235 976,716 395,848 404,252
As at 31 December 2014, none of the covenants RZZ—NETZH=1T—H o BER
relating to bank borrowings had been breached (2013: A BSRITERNEE (=48
nil). ) o

(c) As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current (c) R-F—ME+ZA=Z+—0 > REHE
portion of long-term bank borrowings amounting to SR AT A 3R 2 B B A 456,299.3 8 35 o0
US$62,993,000 (2013: US$30,611,000). (ZF— =4 : 3061.1# L) -

(d) Included in the Group’s bank and other borrowings (d) AREFMP - F—WE+_H=+—HZH
as at 31 December 2014 is an aggregate amount of AT B B Al A R B 5 18 B A W) 2 AR
US$5,611,000 (2013: US$25,444,000) borrowed from FH561 1M F I (ST — =4 1 2,544 48 5
related companies. Jo) e
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

Bi % 3R & M A
Year ended 31 December 2014 # £ - —WNE+_H=+—H IL4FE
31 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 31 HikERBERE
Group Company
L A2 7
2014 2013 2014 2013

—ER N DR = DR NE DR =
US$°000 US$000  US$’000 US$’000
FxFrx FKrTrn FrTr FKrTrx

Provision for severance allowance & Bt HY 7% 5,087 4,477 608 543
Non-current portion of deferred I ik B & 4 1Y
income AR JE WL 16,716 9,209 - -
21,803 13,686 608 543
32 DEFERRED TAX 32 EEFHIE
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the REEHRNEHB B RN EDT R Z FETER
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: HEE/ (A WT:
Group
NS
2014 2013
—F 4 R =8
US$’000 US$’000
E Y an E e on
Deferred tax assets P GEBLIH & 741 -
Deferred tax liabilities 75 2 B IE £ 4] (46,806) (15,526)
(46,065) (15,526)
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

32

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

b % H

B AR

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and

A H

32 EEHE (M)
AR A > AR B8 T 2 908 J0E B I e S R B

liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows: B AT ¢
Group AR HE
Attributable to
Hefl
Revaluation of Depreciation Losses
properties, plant in excess of available for
and machinery Revaluation related offsetting Dividend Net deferred
and intangible of hiological depreciation ~~ future taxable withholding tax assets]
as8ets assets allowance profits tax Others (liabilities)
W KRR WEER MK
REREE BUNE  ERRAEZ FRERR
BEEN  AHEEER O WERRE  TEEER  REDERE i EE/ (BB
US§ 000 US§ 000 Us§ 00 Us§000 Us§000 Us§000 Us§000
Fitr Eitr Etr Ftr #itr #itr Ftr
At January 2013 RoF-ZE-f-H (644) (11.903) 1671 141 (1913) (3.858) (26,023)
Deferred tax credited)(charged) to ERREENEN/ (R 2
profit o ossduring the year (note 12) FEREBLIE (W3t 12) (264) (1,082) 162 6801 500 (30) 10,06
Exchange realignment B (262) 183 (26) 6 (33) (1m (309)
At 31 December 2013 S St O N (6.971) (12804 1801 9,034 (1) (4065) (15,726)
At January 2014 e (6971) (12,804 1807 9,134 (2,727) (4,065) (15,526)
Deferred tax credited(charged) to ERREENEN/ (B2
profit or Lo during the year (note 17) IR (H3t12) 410 (1,765) 110 (6,152) (11,550) 504 (18353)
Defered tax charged to equity during the year MR ER AR ERRA (836) - - - - - (836)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) HOEH A (Hrto) (12,468) - - - - - (12468)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HEREAR (F7) 444 - - - 3 - 765
Exchange realignment Eig 200 204 (26) (78) 4 49 353
At31 Decenber 1014 REZ-WEFZAZ 10 (19,20 (14365) 1891 3,004 (13951) (3422) (46,065)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

32 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The Group has tax losses arising in mainland China that will
expire within five years for offsetting against future taxable

profits.

At 31 December 2014, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of unused tax losses of US$38,623,000
(2013: US$38,967,000) as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised. Out of this amount, unrecognised tax losses
of US$38,623,000 (2013: US$38,967,000) arose in mainland
China which will expire within five years from the end of the

reporting period.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on any dividends distributable by the subsidiaries established
in mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2014, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$358,837,000 (2013:
US$436,944,000). Deferred tax liabilities of US$35,350,000
(2013: US$43,888,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

32

(b)

(d)
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A B R R DL A TR W R A
IR A B TE B A W B S 1R 43,862 .3 00
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FAVLIA o 5 v 130K e 7 2 1) R e 3R 2 B 7
W 1E 453,862 383800 (R — =48 1 3,869.7
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B 2 e BLR £5%8K10% » B > ACHE
R HP B K o . B A R B )\ AR
— A — H Z 4% 2 A 0 A AH BE 00 AT 4] T 4
VR S ZE 038 G

RF—WEFZA=Z+—H > AR E
2 ) AR 43 IR 31 T 3 oA i e o 2 2 B I
BT e 25 BB 305,883 7TH T (R — =
A 1 4453,694.4 8 3578) © 3,535.08 350 (Z
F =4 1 4,388.88 K 0) ZH B 4R
% S5 R 43 TP I R 2 A8 1 O 2 R A
TR 5575 AR e v > D IR B 2 ] R A0 92 T
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Notes to Financial Statements

b#% B B & R 2 A

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2014 #& £ _~F —MN44E+_H=+—HILEE
33 SHARE CAPITAL 33 RAK
Shares % 4
Company
YN/ |
2014 2013
e~ S 11 4 2 R =4
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FuFi FEoLFoo
Authorised W€
Ordinary shares: AR
36,000,000,000 shares 36,000,000,000/8
(2013: 36,000,000,000 shares) (ZF—=4:
of US$0.01 each 36,000,000,000J8¢)
5 [ T H0.0138 58 360,000 360,000
Convertible preference shares: AR EIEIRE -
Series A — 20,000,000,000 shares A% %)- 20,000,000,000/8
(2013: 20,000,000,000 shares) (ZF—=4:
of US$0.01 each 20,000,000,000/8%)
5 B T H0.0138 58 (a) 200,000 200,000
Series B — 4,000,000,000 shares B£ %1 —4,000,000,000/%
(2013: 4,000,000,000 shares) (=4
of US$0.01 each 4,000,000,000/% )
5 B T H0.0138 58 (a) 40,000 40,000
240,000 240,000
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid C#T A
Ordinary shares: AR
24,071,837,232 shares 24,071,837,232)%
(2013: 21,792,741,076 shares) (=4
of US$0.01 each 21,792,741,076J8%)
5 B T H0.0138 7€ 240,718 217,927
Convertible preference shares: AR EIEIRE -
Series B — 1,261,077,748 shares B& %) —1,261,077,748)%
(2013: 3,261,077,748 shares) (ZR =4
of US$0.01 each 3,261,077,748/%)
5 B T HO.0138 58 12,611 32,611
12,611 32,611
253,329 250,538
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33

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 33

Shares (continued)

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued

ordinary shares and convertible preference shares during the

b E B E R 2 A

A ()

& 12 (&)

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

RBEEZF-WER -F-=Z41+2H
St HIRAE R > AR B8 AT R &

years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows: W B T
Number of shares in issue
BERAYR
Series A Series B Issued
convertible  convertible Issued  convertible Share
Ordinary preference preference ordinary preference premium
shares shares shares share share account Total
ARSI BZJl CHfr
T CE o#f CEYd i f
Lk Bk BEk  EEREE  BERRA (L k]
Note US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Mt Frfr  FEifr  Fifr  FEifr
At 1 January 2013 R-F-ZFE—H—H 18,123,752,317  3,300,540,621  3,261,077,748 181,38 65,616 1,501,569 1,748,423
Issue of shares upon exercise 7 0F M B 3 A7 ek
of share options (b) 368,448,078 - - 3,084 - 17,584 21,268
Conversion of convertible LE TR T
preference shares (a),(d)  3,300,540,621 (3,300,540,621) - 33,005 (33,003) - -
At 31 December 2013 REF-ZEFZA=Z1—H
and 1 January 2014 R-%-mE—f—H 21,792,741,076 S 3610748 20797 e 150905 1,769,691
Issue of shares upon exercise AT 6 B RE T 3647 LA
of share options (b) 279,096,156 - - 2,791 - 15,951 18,742
Reduction of share premium 5% 7 i
account (c) - - - - - (1,524.364)  (1,524,364)
Conversion of convertible ~ BEHLRT HeEB o6 I
preference shares (a),(d) 2,000,000,000 - (2,000,000,000) 20,000 (20,000) - -
At 31 December 2014 el
+ZH=Z1+—H 24,071,837,232 - 1,261,077,748 240,718 12,611 10,740 264,069
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
33 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The convertible preference shares are convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company and are entitled to the
same dividends that are declared for the ordinary shares.
Convertible preference shares do not carry the right to vote
in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the Company’s
residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of the

Company in the following priority:

(i) in paying to the holders of the convertible preference
shares, pari passu as between themselves by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts of the convertible
preference shares held by them respectively, an
amount equal to the aggregate of the issue price of
all the convertible preference shares held by them
respectively;

(ii) the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari
passu basis among the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company other than the convertible
preference shares and other than any shares which are
not entitled to participate in such assets, by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts paid up on the
shares held by them respectively; and

(iii) the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to

and be distributed on a pari passu basis among the

holders of any class of shares including the convertible
preference shares, other than any shares not entitled
to participate in such assets, by reference to the
aggregate nominal amounts of shares held by them

respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by

the Company or the holders thereof.

On 25 February 2014 and 18 July 2014, 129,248,078 and
149,848,078 ordinary shares (18 February 2013: 368,448,078
ordinary shares) were issued pursuant to the exercise of share

options granted by the Company respectively.
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(iii)
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk MY R

Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥
B 7 (48)
Mt - (4F)

(c) Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 6 June
2014, the share premium account of the Company was reduced
by the amount of US$1,524,364,000 with the credit arising
therefrom being credited to the contributed surplus account of

the Company.

(d) On 10 July 2014, 2,000,000,000 Series B convertible
preference shares (2013: 3,300,540,621 Series A convertible
preference shares) were converted into 2,000,000,000 (2013:
3,300,540,621) ordinary shares of the Company.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“2002 Share
Option Scheme”) which became effective on 26 November
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. On 22 June 2012, the
board of directors approved the Company to terminate the
2002 Share Option Scheme and adopt a new share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) in place of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme, which will remain in force for a period of ten
years from that date. Upon termination, no further options will
be granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. However,
the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme will remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any option granted prior to its termination,
or otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance
with the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme. All options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to its
termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in

accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

34
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

34

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme is operated for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the Company’s directors, senior executives, employees of
the Group and those participants that, in the opinion of the
directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the

Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of share options granted
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer (including the date of offer
granted), upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after the grant and ends on a date which is not

later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at a shareholders’ meeting.

The following share options were outstanding as at 31
December 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
L —E=
Number of options Number of options
JichE B H JBe i B H
- 129,248,078
- 149,848,078
- 279,096,156
(a) There was no grant of share options during the year

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

On 25 February 2014 and 18 July 2014, 129,248,078
and 149,848,078 (18 February 2013: 368,448,078)
ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the exercise of
share options with a weighted average exercise price
of HK$0.37 per share (18 February 2013: HK$0.38 per

share).
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Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E
34 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2014, the Company had no share

options outstanding.

At 31 December 2013, the Company had 279,096,156
share options outstanding which represented
approximately 1.3% of the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full
of such options would, under the capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 279,096,156
additional ordinary shares and additional share capital
of approximately US$2,791,000 and share premium
of approximately US$10,558,000 (before any issue
expenses and without taking into account of any
transfer of share option reserve to the share premium

account).

35 RESERVES

(a)

Group
(i) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(ii)  The share option reserve of the Group and
the Company comprises the fair value of share
options granted by the Company which are
yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment in
note 2.4(v) to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related option expire or be forfeited.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2014 B E _~F—NE+ _H=+—H L4 FE

35 RESERVES (continued) 35 fEE(ME)
(a) Group (continued) (a) AKBE (&)
(iii) The Group’s merger reserve represents the (iii)  ASHE [ 2 A Bk A 775 38 R 3L )
excess of the total of the consideration PR MR A BF T AR WO
transferred for the acquisition of subsidiaries Wb JB5 2 R0 T 2 AR e R

(iv)

(vi)

through business combinations under common
control and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests over the carrying amount
of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and

pre-acquisition reserves combined by the Group.

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for office premises held for own use set

out in note 2.4(g).

The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with the PRC Companies Law or
the Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment as applicable
to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates. None of the Group’s PRC
reserve funds as at 31 December 2014 and 2013

were distributable in the form of cash dividends.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in note 2.4(z).
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

35 RESERVES (continued) 35 fREE(ME)
(b)  Company (b)y E2nH
Share premium ~ Contributed ~ Share option Retained
account Surplus reserve profits Total
RpEER ESRNE  BRERE  A2EAN W
Note US §'000 US §'000 US §'000 US §'000 US §'000
Wit Ertrx  Fxfr  ExTx  FExfr  ExTx
At 1 January 2013 REF—-=FE—-H—H 1,501,569 - 8,410 197,525 1,107,564
Profit for the year and total KRR RER2E
comprehensive income Yugs A
for the year - - - 76,077 16,077
Issue of shares upon exercise L7 B8 B 0 58 7 I A
of share options 33(b) 17,584 - (3,111) - 14473
2013 interim dividend CE-SEPHRE 13 - - - (32,328) (32318)
2013 final dividend proposed BEZE-ZERMRE 13 - - - (61422) (61,412)
At 31 December 2013 and REZB-=ZH+ZRE—HR
[ January 2014 ZZ-mE-R—H 1,519,153 - 5,359 179,852 1,704,364
Profit for the year and total AAEW R TRAE 9 2
comprehensive income Yuds
for the year - - - 30,252 30,252
Issue of shares upon exercise FRL 7 68 8 7 B A
of share options 33(b) 15,951 - (5,359) (317) 10,275
Reduction of share premium L B 1
account 33(c) (1,524304) 1,524,364 - - -
2014 interim dividend ZEWETHRE 13 - (55,569) - - (55,569)
2014 final dividend proposed BR_Z-EANRA 13 - (T1.913) - - (71,913)
At 31 December 2014 REF-NEFZAZ A 10,740 1,396,882 - 209,787 1,617,409

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 included a loss
of US$13,616,000 (2013: US$3,313,000) which has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 & E - F—WE+_H=+—H ILF)¥
BUSINESS COMBINATION 36 EKEHf
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired REEZ—NWE+_HA=+—HIEFEE
100% interest in each of Hefei Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (“Hefei o> AREEE EHIEKR (PR BRAERAF ([1E
Chia Tai”) and Kaifeng Chia Tai Co., Ltd (“Kaifeng Chia KEK]) MEBERERERAA ([HEIE
Tai”) from Chia Tai (China) Agro-Industrial Ltd. (“Chia Tai K RBHBEHERAGRAR (TBHHFIEKX]D B
China Agro”). 1009% B HE o
Hefei Chia Tai and Kaifeng Chia Tai both are principally A M0 IE K K B 15k 3 A 3 A 8 B i A
engaged in the manufacture and sale of animal feed products. BE o WO AR AR 43 ) %5 2 42,0008 A R K3
The consideration for the acquisitions were RMB220,000,000 1,10088 N\ R » 3 R AHE BE 2 ¥ 37 f+F -
and RMB311,000,000 respectively, and were settled during the
year.
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the A P 9 A S8 O AC N 194 o S A T Wi
subsidiaries acquired through business combinations during the MHMEERABZERAENT :
year as at the date of acquisitions are set out as follows:
Hefei Kaifeng
Chia Tai Chia Tai Total
A MBIE KR P IE K &t
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Kt FiLFrx FExTrt FExrTx
Net assets acquired: WAL ) R R
Property, plant and equipment LE BN Y & 15 4,803 5,776 10,579
Land lease prepayments THAT A 17 2,731 6,540 9,271
Intangible assets W EE 19 20,216 20,547 40,763
Other non-current assets H A IR R B & A - 300 300
Inventories peyty 4,368 7,860 12,228
Trade and bills receivables JRE Wi B 5 MR ek I R 658 3,339 3,997
Prepayments, deposits and AR - e K
other receivables i W B 3k 3,245 2,534 5,779
Cash and cash equivalents Be Bl &5 EY 377 1,727 2,104
Trade payables VAT B 5 IRk (2,441) (1,827) (4,268)
Other payables and accruals Al R A R ok Kk T R 2 ) (6,868) (5,991) (12,859)
Bank borrowings AT K - (8,129) (8,129)
Income tax payables JRE A e 45 ok (318) (141) (459)
Deferred tax liabilities R A B IE A A 32 (6,044) (6,424) (12,468)
Total identifiable net assets HENE I 47 RE S g /A VL
at fair value 20,727 26,111 46,838
Goodwill on acquisitions™ W I 7 A WY g 15,325 24,452 39,777
Satisfied by cash VLB 4 A 36,052 50,563 86,615
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 36 ¥EBEOF(E)
* The movement of goodwill during the year is as follow: * T ERMETWT
Hefei Kaifeng
Chia Tai Chia Tai Total
B IE K ESNEPN aak
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FrFrx FErxFr FErLFr
Goodwill on acquisitions WA i A Y 15,325 24,452 39,771
Exchange realignment [ 5o, e 2% (256) (218) (474)
Total A 15,069 24,234 39,303

Goodwill represented the assets that do not meet the criteria
for recognition in the financial statements including workforce
and synergies that the Group expected to achieve through the

business combinations.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(CGU) identified according to country of operation and

operating segment.

Goodwill is allocated to the China agri-food operation
segment. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3%. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 15.9% — 18.9%. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating

to the relevant segments.
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 36 EK&0F(E)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of HRBEREAR MBI SRESTNT ¢
subsidiaries is as follows:
Hefei Kaifeng
Chia Tai Chia Tai Total
HFREXR  FHIEX CEi
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Frxrfix Frfrm FrLTrx

Cash consideration Bl 36,052 50,563 86,615
Cash and cash equivalents W I 1) B 4 B B 4

acquired EEY (377) (1,727) (2,104)
Net cash outflow included in BENREFEHZ

cash flows from investing BemENE4E

activities i 35,675 48,836 84,511
Since the acquisitions, Hefei Chia Tai and Kaifeng Chia R R s BREZF—-NEF+Z-H=+—
Tai contributed US$59,799,000 and US$49,774,000 to H 1k 4R B A 45 | e A 225,979.98 36 7t K
the Group’s revenue respectively and US$2,848,000 and 49771 4B FE T K i G F G A 2 284.88 K0
US$2,436,000 to the consolidated net profit respectively for K243.68 304 M B A MR IE K KB HIERE
the year ended ended 31 December 2014. Bk o
Had the business combinations taken place at the beginning B ELE IR ENEE s BE_F Y
of the year, the revenue from continuing operations of the T ZH=Z+—H IR EAREE B EK
Group and the net profit of the Group for the year ended w8 2 W T i R K 3 B A 5608
31 December 2014 would have been US$5,678,310,000 and 7,831.0% 3 7€ K 2189,756.8# K T o
US$297,568,000, respectively.
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37 HEMEAAE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed
the entire issued share capital in Rapid Thrive Limited (“Rapid
Thrive”) to CT Bright Holdings Limited.

Rapid Thrive is an investment holding company, the principal
asset of which is its holding of the entire issued share capital
of Ek Chor Investment Limited (“Ek Chor Investment”). The
principal activities of Ek Chor Investment are investment
holding and, through its joint venture, engages in the

manufacture and sale of motorcycles in the PRC.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E

37

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the

b#% B B & R 2 A

(continued) 37 HEMHEBAT (&)

JPAF JBE P RS 2 T R B

subsidiaries disposed during the year as at the date of disposal AEZREMAENT :
are set out as follows:
Note US$’ 000
A F T
Net assets disposed: B
Property, plant and equipment LE B G & ] 15 4
Investment properties Eg-g//E S 16 8,257
Investment in a joint venture R—REBLEENRE 45,737
Available-for-sale investments LY P -y 219
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEATHR AKX ~ 4 T Al 8 e MR 3 524
Cash and cash equivalents B4 K B4 S E Y 86
Other payables and accruals Al 8 ARk SR R K TE 4 2 (3,110)
Deferred tax liabilities R HE i 45 B 32 (765)
Total identifiable net assets KT 5 R A 50,952
Exchange fluctuation reserve and P HH B B0 A1 R O 38 ok 9 I
available-for-sale investment W]k B A% A A
revaluation reserve realised on disposal (7,954)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries Hh B B JBS 2 R Y i ) 7 6,502
Satisfied by cash VLB 4 S A 49,500

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal of

subsidiaries is as follows:

A7 B A e 4 W) B B A B A AT IR

US$’000

FKIL T 7T

Cash consideration BeRu 49,500

Cash and cash equivalents disposed B4 R B4 (86)
Net cash inflow included in cash flows BTG B 2 B A R

from investing activities Bl &\ T # 49,414
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B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥
GEBREREXRNFT
BEXFEERS

Major non-cash transactions

Apart from the transactions detailed in note 33 to the
financial statements, the Group had no major non-cash

transactions of investing and financing activities during the

years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities in
respect of the Group’s guarantees not provided for in the

financial statements are as follows:

(a) Guarantees were given by the Group in respect of
certain indebtedness of joint ventures. There were no
facilities granted (2013: US$68,084,000) or utilized
(2013: US$17,534,000) as at 31 December 2014.

(b)  Guarantees were given by the Group to financial
institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness of
independent third party customers of the Group. In the
case of financial guarantees provided exceeds the net
asset value of the relevant subsidiaries, our maximum
contingent liabilities are limited to the net asset value
of these subsidiaries. The total registered capital and
net asset value of the relevant subsidiaries as at 31
December 2014 were approximately US$80,566,000
(2013: US$65,548,000) and US$82,240,000 (2013:
US$65,797,000) respectively. The contingent
liabilities of the Group in respect of such guarantees
as at 31 December 2014 were US$51,460,000 (2013:
US$18,277,000).
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AREEBGELEZ TEERMEE
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AEMAEPRKEABILE=ZHES
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7 TR AL 1 B 5 405 R 8 A A B B SRS 4 R
ZHEE > REHE T ZHA A HA
FR RS % 2 B g 2w 2 33 S - A R R
BARN _F—NEF-H=+—H
Z A A B 4 B # 548,056.6
HEIT(ZE =4 1 6,554.88F0)
5%8,224.08 K0 (ZF—=41:6,579.7
HEIG) o REFER - F—W4+ =
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #BE _~F—WN44E+ =+ —H L4 E
40 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 40

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties and certain plant
and equipment under operating leases arrangements, with the
leases negotiated with original terms ranging from 1 to 10

years.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with

its tenants falling due as follows:

=

REHERH
EREBAA

ACHR AR B AR A R P R R R
TR el > Bl Z AL 2 1 2 104F

A5 o

RoR-WEFZAZ—H > ATHEZ
BRI T > ACGE B R A B #8 W
wmE

Group

AR
2014 2013
G- S 111 Ki S ZRE
US$’000 US$’000
By an Fo T
Within one year —4E N 344 1,182
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B OEZPFHEBRFBEERMAE) 14 1,861
After five years FAE DR 288 -
646 3,043

At 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any non-

cancellable operating lease arrangement as lessor (2013: nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2014 & E - F—WE+_H=+—H ILF)¥
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 40 RKEHEELH (F)
(continued)
As lessee ERAEE
The Group leases certain of its equipment and land under ARLEEMMEREHE LML T RH &+
operating leases arrangements, with the leases negotiated with Hu > BT E Z R AL A 1 RS0 o
original terms ranging from 1 to 50 years.
At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum MNoF—NE+"H=Z+—H » A sz
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling BB T » AHE A R 2 o5 A SR B BH %
due as follows: mF
Group
A 4R
2014 2013
e S 11 K42 R =4
US$’000 US$’000
FL T FL T
Within one year —4E N 33,820 21,732
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B oERHAR (B E RS 111,311 94,304
After five years FAEDIR 191,056 161,772
336,187 283,808

At 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any
significant non-cancellable operating lease arrangement as

lessee (2013: nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2014 £ - F—WNE+_H=+—H IL4E

41 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41 BEREIE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as (a) AREFPBRERRZ EAREENMT ¢
at the end of the reporting period:
Group
AL
2014 2013
—2—N4E R =4
US$’°000 US$’000
FL T F T
Contracted, but not provided for: T 254 » fH i A& AE H #
Land i og: 34 1,295
Buildings P s 116,241 65,793
Plant and machinery (note (i)) g 5 B B 25 (BAF (1)) 133,678 87,380
249,953 154,468
Note: M
(i) Included in the Group’s capital commitment of plant (i) ERAER_ZF—WNES A
and machinery as at 31 December 2014 is an amount =Z=+—H > REHBERBAFRHE
of US$6,557,000 (2013: US$10,674,000) contracted SRR > AR R R AR A 0 B R R
but not provided for to related companies. o B e A% 2 B A AR s A L 2 655.7
HEIC (DT — 24 11,0674 3%
JC) °
(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint (b) AR HEAG A8 D EAREEM T ¢
ventures is as follows:
Group
A
2014 2013
G S 111 K4S R =
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T F T
Contracted, but not provided for T 54 » fH i A& AFE H B 251 906
(c) At 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any (c) RoZ—WEF A=+ —H » KA
significant capital commitment (2013: nil). H N AT A AR (=
) -
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Year ended 31 December 2014 W E - F—WN4E+ - H=+—H IL4)¥
42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42 BEAIHEE
(a) In addition to the acquisition of subsidiaries disclosed (a) B B sk 3 64 88 = 1h) — 5% B 8L W) IR
in note 36, and the disposal of subsidiaries and a Vi B B v W) o B B RE3 THR B8 1 —
joint venture disclosed in note 37, the Group had the KBHEA R HEREA R RGEEE
following transactions with related parties during the A > AREE R ENREBREANLH
year: THARS :
Group
A B
2014 2013
- Sl 112 ZE
Note US$’°000 US$’000
Wit FIFI Eean
Sales of goods to: BBEMT
Joint ventures AR (i) 20,496 22,278
Associates =g/ (i) 1,220 1,194
Orient Success International Orient Success International
Limited (“OSIL”)/ Limited (TOSIL]) /
High Orient Enterprises High Orient Enterprises
Limited (“HOEL”) and/or Limited ((HOEL)
its related entities * YEN e (i) 541,077 529,750
Itochu Corporation e S AR S A
(“ITOCHU”) (MG 1) (i) 743 -
Purchases of goods from: FEEE A
Joint ventures aEAE (ii) 14,626 15,875
C.P. Trading Co., Ltd. C.P. Trading Co., Ltd.
and its related entities” &N EEENE S (ii) 450,876 240,623
Rental income received and #OSIL, HOEL J 3 [
receivable from OSIL/HOEL TEERKECKRZ
and its related entities® RN (iii) 2,632 3,101
Rental expenses paid and payable FEAF K AT 4 3 th 7
to OSIL/HOEL and its related OSIL,/HOEL K
entities” s 3 (iv) 2,433 2,263
Technical service fee to CPG* i fig Ik % & P CPG* (v) 30,128 26,008
Project management fee to HEEME T
Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd.* TEKE M A LA ] (vi) 7,563 6,506
Chia Tai Handing Engineering ERESTREHE
Management Co., Ltd.* PR A W) * (vi) 1,098 -
Interest income on trade J8 HOSIL, "HOEL X
receivables from OSIL/HOEL T A 3 2 W
and its related entities B ARz M BWA (vii) 6,424 4,714
Interest income on amounts due from: MEWRZF] BILA :
Joint ventures GEAeE (viii) 233 679
OSIL/HOEL and its related entities ~ OSIL/HOELK& I B A% (viii) 2 13
Interest expenses on amount due to:  JEMF R BMAZMEZH T :
Joint ventures fFER¥E (ix) 56 24
CPF Investment Limited CPF Investment Limited (x) 322 1,855
OSIL/HOEL and its related entities OSIL/HOELK HEH A%  (x) 376 284
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42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)
(a) (continued)

Notes:

(1)

(it)

(iii)

The sales of goods were made by reference to the
prevailing market prices of, the cost of marketing (if
any) of and demand for the goods in mainland China
and Vietnam, and the selling prices shall be no more
favorable than those made available to the Group’s
customers which are independent third parties. The
sales of goods to OSIL/HOEL and its related entities
excluded the sales of goods of US$4,170,000 (2013:
US$1,402,000) from a subsidiary of the Group to
CPVC, a connected non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group.

ITOCHU became a shareholder of the Company on
18 September 2014 and is interested in 25% of the

ordinary shares of the Company.

The purchases of goods were determined on the basis
of arm’s length negotiations and the purchase prices
shall not be higher than the prevailing market prices
in mainland China and Vietnam, and shall be no less
favourable than those made available to the Group
from suppliers which are independent third parties.
The purchases of goods from OSIL/HOEL and its
related entities excluded the purchases of goods of
US$4,163,000 (2013: US$1,413,000) by CPVC, a
connected non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,

from a subsidiary of the Group.

The rental income comprises of (i) US$2,512,000
(2013: US$2,941,000) related to a business carveout
agreement entered between the Group and OSIL
on 31 December 2012 for the lease and/or use of
relevant non-feed related fixed assets located in
PRC by OSIL, which was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets and
applicable tax costs incurred by the Group, and (ii)
US$120,000 (2013: US$160,000) related to the lease
of certain properties of the Group in Hong Kong and
PRC to other related companies at rates determined

by the Group with reference to market rates.

n

42
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42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The rental expense was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets
and applicable tax costs incurred by the related

companies.

The technical service fee was charged at 1.5% of the

net sales value of products sold by CPVC.

The project management fee was charged at 3.0% of
the incurred construction cost of production facilities

of the Group’s food processing plants located at PRC.

The interest income was charged on trade receivable
balances due from related companies at rates
determined by the Group with reference to market

rates.

The interest income was charged on advances to joint
ventures and related companies at rates determined by

the Group with reference to market rates.

The interest expense was charged on advances from
joint ventures at rates mutually agreed with reference

to market rates.

The interest expense was charged on bank and other
borrowings from related companies at rate mutually

agreed with reference to market rates.

These related party transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These related party transactions also constitute

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

42

(a)

(%)

BEANLHKE (&)

MaE - (A7)

(iv)  RH A ST TR o R el 2 R AT O
Vi BT 5 R T A R B 5 SR AR 1 2

(v) g M B I5 IR A CPVCZ B b 8

(vii)
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42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42
(continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

(i) Details of the Group’s balances with joint
ventures, associates and related companies
included in trade and bills receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables, other payables and accruals and
bank and other borrowings are disclosed in note
25(c), 26, 28, 29 and 30(d) to the financial

statements, respectively.
(ii)  Details of the guarantees in respect of certain
indebtedness of joint ventures are included in

note 39(a) to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

BEALHKE (&)

(b) HEEALZBRER

(i) ABAHEE G SR B
O ) Je B4y W) 2 [ A A
175 W W B 5 Bk S S TEAY
HR AR~ #r B S At B Wi R K
JE A S 5 Bk ~ R A B A5k MR sk
B AR 2 T B SR AT M 3L At 3k
O 70 i1l 4% % 7% B 785 e 5% M ik
25(c) ~ 26 ~ 28 ~ 29K%30(d)A ©

(i) BAEBLEZA THEBERME
P 2Z s SORS A B 5 S 3 B
39(a) N o

(c) AEBEZEREEAES(TFRES)ZH

who are also directors of the Group: B :
2014 2013
. .
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FL T
Short term employee benefits S 391 08 B A A 4,664 4,626

43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 43 SEWMIADE
CATEGORY

Other than the unlisted equity investments being classified as
available-for-sale investments as disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements, all financial assets and liabilities of the
Group and the Company as at 31 December 2014 and 2013
were loans and receivables and financial liabilities stated at

amortised cost, respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to market risk arising primarily from
changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments

for trading purposes.
(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk arising from
changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s debt obligations. The Group monitors interest
rate movements and determines appropriate hedging
activities when necessary. The Group’s exposure to
market risk arising from changes in interest rates in
respect of cash and cash equivalents is considered

relatively minimal.

The following tables set out the carrying amounts of

the Group’s bank and other borrowings as at the end

44  BrISEBREIE T § R BUR

AR [ T 3 i B R B R L
TE 3 2 S ) o A 55 ) WOE e AT R R AT AN
ETRAEERTHE -

(a) EB=ERK

AR [ TR R ) 2 i 4 R >
FEPR A G ) 2 (5 AT o ACHRE I B
Ve RORSE T > 5 TR B E 0 b
T o AN B R E 5 S8
Be B 4 S5 (14 = i 5 I i 5 Bl A 3
o

PUTF J A 48 L i 0 01 R - AT
Al A8 5 A T 8 ) UG I B B i A

of the reporting period that are exposed to interest rate EZHWTF :
risk:
2014 2013
- SIS R ER
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount  interest rate amount  interest rate
iR T R vk R TH A ROR &
US$’000 % US$000 %
F T Fx T
Fixed rate denominated in: If] & F) A% DL T & W R
BLAL ¢
RMB N 7,734 6.02 4,916 5.91
Floating rate denominated in: FENRED TR A
HAL
Us$ e 565,507 4.21 493,790 4.06
VND o R G 472,360 4.74 454,327 6.73
RMB IN:H 79,634 6.48 23,683 6.53
1,117,501 971,800
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(a)

The sensitivity analysis below indicates the estimated

annualised impact in the Group’s profit after tax and

equity that would arise assuming that the change in

interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting

period and had been applied to re-measure the bank

and other borrowings which expose the Group to fair

value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting

period.

An sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is as follows:

Us$
US$
RMB
RMB
VND
VND

eV
eV
N
N
oL i
A 7 )i

Increase/
(decrease)
in basis

points

He B,
(W)

100
(100)
100
(100)
100
(100)

BERmEk (&)

2014

B S U122
Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
after tax and
equity

b Bt 1%

i 1 K A g
B, (W)
US$’000

F L F

(5,227)
5,227

(597)
597

(3,684)
3,684

B35 L B B 5 8 R B ()

A ABURR A3 AT 4 AR SR I 2 BR B AR
i A AT RE A AR 2 Al EHAE AL B - R
MRBEHRGEHFACKEE > WOH
TP FE T R A AR B R AT R A S
A5 A 45 1 i B 2 6L 3R e B 2 R AT
Je Fo At i 3k o

BRI Z BURE T

2013
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
after tax and
equity

b 1%

it F) B i 4
B, (A)
US$’000
e n

(4,714)
4,714

(178)
178

(3,407)
3,407
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group places its cash deposits with a number
of major banks and financial institutions. This cash
management policy limits the Group’s exposure to

concentration of credit risk.

A significant portion of the Group’s sales are made
to customers in the agricultural industry and, as such,
the Group is directly affected by the well-being of that
industry. However, the credit risk associated with trade
receivables is considered relatively minimal due to
the Group’s large customer base and its geographical
dispersion. The Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions. Trade
receivables of US$9,964,000 (2013: US$9,739,000)
were supported by guarantee issued by bank provided
by customers. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the effective interest rate computed at initial

recognition.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in note 39, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group or
the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in note
39. The Group held assets of US$203,749,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: US$23,364,000) as pledge
for the guarantees granted to independent third party

customers.

44

(b)
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

The RMB and VND are not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
are conducted with reference to the exchange rates
quoted by the People’s Bank of China and banks in
Vietnam, respectively. Payments for imported materials
and the remittance of earnings outside mainland China
and Vietnam are subject to the availability of foreign

currencies.

The products of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates operating in mainland
China and Vietnam are sold primarily in RMB and
VND respectively. Revenues and profits are thus
predominantly denominated in RMB and VND. For
certain subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
funds denominated in RMB and VND may have to
be, and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported

materials and equipment.

Should the RMB and VND appreciate/depreciate
against the US$, it may increase/reduce the foreign
currency equivalent of such earnings available for
distribution by these subsidiaries, joint ventures and

associates of the Company.

B AR

n

44
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BIHEBEBEESRBCKR (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(c)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (c) HNERKR(4E)
The Group’s businesses are principally operated in A 45 H] 2 26 B R e [ O e R
mainland China and Vietnam and substantially all BN s KA 5 DN R Je ik
transactions are conducted in RMB and VND. TG B HAL o
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at T 25 B 7 A 3 53 A R R S R DL
the end of the reporting period to a possible change in T A SR Z R B i R B RE 25 (R
RMB and VND exchange rates, with all other variables AR 4 [H 1 B A B RS A R 2 B AR &
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and ABZ A R EEE)) R EE B RE A
equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary s B G MR W RE B A 2 B
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries). BEFEE o A BRE A
The analysis excludes differences that would result from SE 5 B R AL ) 2 B B W
the translation of the financial statement of foreign WREAE MR o
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
Appreciation/ Increase/
(depreciation) (decrease) Increase/
in RMB or in profit (decrease)
VND before tax in equity
N B o v B Bt T v
Tl IR HE 23 B~
(WzfH) (WA (I A)
US$’000 US$’000
FL T T Fr T
Year ended 31 December 2014 BEZZ g
+ZH=+—H
| iy 3
If US$ weakens against RMB ik & 7 e N\ R W Bz M 3% 1,226 959
If US$ strengthens against RMB ¥ & ol A\ R THE (3%) (1,226) (959)
If US$ weakens against VND (TESIN § ) N 5% 2,651 1,988
If US$ strengthens against VND i 38 JC i8R o )& JH 16 (5%) (2,651) (1,988)
Year ended 31 December 2013 RE_F =4
+ZA=+—H
kA B
If US$ weakens against RMB i3 TE I N\ R 2 3% (712) (140)
If US$ strengthens against RMB i o N R FHE (3%) 712 140
If US$ weakens against VND ik 3 0 53 B e )G B2 AE 5% 4,984 3,738
If US$ strengthens against VND it 5% 50 8 W 59 )5 FHA (5%) (4,984) (3,738)
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44 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
funding continuity and flexibility through the use of

various types of bank borrowings.

The Group monitors current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:
Group

At 31 December 2014

n

Bl

44

(d)

B35 L B B 5 8 R B ()

RBESRAR

ACSR 0 H B S 2 8 ) A TR Y
Z [ °F- 45 o

AHE B R BN R 2 B E & W
SR DL B e 7 12 00 B 4 okl S SRAT AR

TR HEBIRZ B > A4
VB B A i ) A A0 R B BRI Y
e R

A G

REF-NEFZA=1+—H

Within 1 year 1to5 Over 5
or on demand years years Total
2R
KPR—FE —FEHE  BBRLE kil
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FrxFx FrFr FrFrx FErTrx
Trade payables JRE A B 5 MRk 245,702 - - 245,702
Other payables and accruals Ul A Rk B FELAR 254,278 - - 254,278
Bank and other borrowings SRAT R FC A A R 554,099 626,149 31,519 1,211,767
Guarantee issued in respect of BB ENERZ
certain indebtedness of HTRB R ZIER
independent third party (M 5E39(b))
customers (note 39(b)) 51,460 - - 51,460
1,105,539 626,149 31,519 1,763,207
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 HHEEBEERRS S REE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

Group (continued)

At 31 December 2013

(d) RBEZEMR(E)
A (%)

R =V ES

Within 1 year lto5 Over 5
or on demand years years Total
HER
gAhR—F —FERE BBRE A

US$000  US$'000  US$000  US$000
FKrFx  Frtrx KrFr KT

Trade payables A B 55 Bk 230,147 - - 230,147
Other payables and accruals At A5F Mk M TE PR 210,558 - - 210,558
Bank and other borrowings SRAT T A AE % 586,405 501,260 - 1,087,665
Guarantee issued in respect of BEBREZILETHEE

certain indebtedness of joint Rz PER

ventures (note 39(a)) (BHF5E39(a)) 17,534 - - 17,534
Guarantee issued in respect of BB RPZET

certain indebtedness of HEREZHER

independent third party (F3E39(b))

customers (note 39(b)) 18,277 - - 18,277

1,062,921 501,260 - 1,564,181

Company YN |

At 31 December 2014

L & = ES

Within 1 year 1to5

or on demand years Total
HRE R

AR — 4 —FEHAE Hm
US$’°000 US$’°000 US$’000
BV E Ve E Ve
Other payables and accruals -t B 47 B 3k M T #2 & 8,346 - 8,346
Bank borrowings AT K 54,727 373,690 428,417
63,073 373,690 436,763
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Company (continued)

At 31 December 2013

(d) RBEZER(E)

A 2w (#)

B35 L B B 5 8 R B ()

REF-=ZF+FZH=Z+—H

Within 1 year lto5
or on demand years Total
HE R
g AR — 4R —E A K
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
B n FIT T T FT T T
Other payables and accruals -t JE £ R 2k & T #2 & H 8,241 - 8,241
Bank borrowings AT 3K 27,832 447,416 475,248
36,073 447,416 483,489
Capital management (e) =N
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AREFHSHEARNTFZEE A HREAR

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BIHEBEBEESRBCKR (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
()  Capital management (continued) (e) EXEHE(E)
The Group monitors its capital structure using a AR 4 [ ) SO A S e R s AR
number of financial ratios. A key ratio is the net PN o Forp—TE SRR R A B
debt to equity ratio, which is total bank and other i b 3 > BIVERAT B JE At £ ik A8 A B
borrowings less cash and deposits divided by total SERGHBERUMESRATE - KEAZ
equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the net debt BS54 5 A8 T RE 25 EL R A BLK
to equity ratio at reasonable level. Capital represents Fo ARG A ARATHER ANZ
the equity attributable to owners of the Company. The HEZS o NIRE IR Z B EB SR
net debt to equity ratios as at the end of the reporting W :
periods were as follows:
Group
A 45
2014 2013
e Uk 2 R =4
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve ForTx
Total bank and other borrowings — $RAT M I Al A 2K 48 41 1,125,235 976,716
Less: Pledged deposits W ST (40,870) (30,357)
Time deposits with maturity FHEBEB=MZ
over three months & W E 3K (168,462) (95,931)
Cash and cash equivalents & KRB &S HED (287,141) (374,140)
Net debt i H AR 628,762 476,288
Total equity WE 35 48 1 1,386,408 1,246,315
Net debt to equity ratio BB R A LR 45% 38%
() Agricultural activities (f) BETE
The Group is exposed to risks arising from A A [ T )y BROTEAE  SR AR AR

environmental changes, climatic changes, outbreak of

diseases, regulatory changes, etc..

The Group’s geographic spread of farms allows a
high degree of mitigation against adverse climatic
conditions. The Group has strong environmental
policies and procedures in place to comply with
environmental and other laws. The Group monitors
the health of its livestock on a regular basis and has
procedures in place to minimise and manage risk

exposure to diseases.
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b#% B B & R 2 A

Particulars of Principal Investment Properties
FTERENEER

31 December 2014 —~&F— N4+ _H=+—H

Details of the principal investment properties of the Group as at MR- —NWE+ A=+ HAEEZ FERE
31 December 2014 are as follows: LE 23 I
Location i % Use Hi&
The Whole of Block No. 9 and 17, No. 35-2 Ying Bin Road, Residential units for rental
Aksu City, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region fEERMEHENE

B e Al A T D BT R A R I 352 9% SR Ol B 5B 17 W 4 i

Lao Long He Village, Changji City, Xinjiang Uygur Factory for rental
Autonomous Region Wi 5 A LB W &

TR A B W E R B T RN

Hejialiang Village, Zhongchuan Town, Yongdeng County, Factory for rental
Gansu Province 5 A AL i

G E-E - LUlE DSy

Zhao Village/Xin’an Village/Luoli Village, Gaoqu Township, Factory for rental
Sanyuan County, Shaanxi Province i B 1 R B R i@

B VE A = RUBR R AN R R A
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